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2017 2021
( ( )
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
47,156 43,133 42,007 41,884 39,863
46,619 39,451 39,962 39,697 36,587
93,775 82,584 82,059 81,581 76,450
29,855 28,427 27,556 27,001 25,439
24,659 22,084 22,178 22,540 21,520
14,714 12,159 11,355 10,775 10,594
900 181 890 1,126 408
(53) (111) (357) (611) (385)
183 201 318 1,005 934
489 2,899 2,525 1,405 42)
252 247 266 251 309
70,999 66,087 64,731 63,582 58,777
22,776 16,497 17,328 17,999 17,673
1,898 1,783 2,209 2,702 16,373
20,878 14,714 15,119 15,297 1,300
20,878 14,714 15,119 15,297 1,300
22.3% 17.8% 18.4 18.8 1.7
7.81 5.51 5.63 5.61 0.47
() 30. 4% 24.0% 25.4 25.5 2.0
) )
13.6% 0.6% 0.6 6.7 6.3
41.7% Q.1)% 0.4 92.1)

16/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

oooooog
( ( ))
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
18,962 18,766 17,658 17,035 17,005
3,652 3,347 3,498 3,670 3,279
182,018 174,894 157,728 152,954 157,303
29,985 32,635 26,494 27,684 30,675
23,410 23,536 23,416 22,201 21,056
4.19 3.98 3.75 3.54 3.32
28.16 24.04 22.59 22.44 22.43
) 171.07 157.38 145.75 127.27 139.72
)
2,632.1 2,632.8 2,645.1 2,681.5 2,692.0
2,674.0 2,670.7 2,684.3 2,728.7 2,745.3
( ) 141.7 134.5 132.2 135.1 134.0
« )
1887
1919 (Johnson & Johnson Canada)
(Ethicon) 1941
1949 1992 (Ethicon Endo-
Surgery, Inc.) (Ethicon, Inc.)
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(McNeil Laboratories, Inc.) 1959
1977 (McNeil Pharmaceutical)
(McNeil Consumer Products)
(Ortho Pharmaceutical)

(Ortho-McNeil Pharmaceutical) 1993

(Janssen Pharmaceutica) 1961
(Ortho-McNei l-Janssen

Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

(Frontier Contact Lenses) 1981 ACUVUE®

(Johnson & Johnson Vision Care,

Inc.)

(Johnson & Johnson - Merck Consumer

Pharmaceuticals Co.) 1989

(Ortho Biotech) 1990

(Centocor Ortho Biotech Products, L.P.)

1993 S.A.(RoC, S.A.) 1994

(Neutrogena Corporation)

1994 (Kodak) (Clinical Diagnostics)
(Ortho
Diagnostic Systems) (Clinical Diagnostic Systems)
1997 (Ortho-Clinical Diagnostics, Inc.)
2014

(Johnson & Johnson Hospital Services)
(Johnson & Johnson
Advanced Behavioral Technologies)

(Johnson & Johnson Health Care Systems Inc.) 1995
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(Cordis Corporation) 1996

(DePuy, Inc.) 1998

(Johnson & Johnson Consumer

Products Company) (5.C. Johnson & Son, Inc.)

AVEENO® 1999
(Centocor, Inc.) 1999
(Centocor Ortho Biotech Inc.)
(BabyCenter, L.L.C.) 2001

(ALZA Corporation) 2001

(Inverness Medical) 2001

VA(Tibotec-Virco Comm. VA) 2002

(OraPharma, Inc.)
2003

(Scios
Inc.) 2003

(Merck) 50 (
) 2004
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(Gene Writer)
(Egea Biosciences, Inc.) 2004
X
(Artemis Medical, Inc.) 2004
(Biapharm) 2004
(BIAFINE)
(Peninsula Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) 2005
(Closure Medical Corporation) 2005
(TransForm Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) 2005
(Hand
Innovations LLC) 2006
S.A.(Future Medical Systems S.A.) 2006
(Animas Corporation) 2006
(Group
Vendome) 2006
(Vascular Control Systems Inc.) 2006
(ColBar

LifeScience Ltd.) 2006
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(Pfizer Inc.) 2006 12

(Conor Medsystems, Inc.) 2007

(Maya’ s Mom, Inc.) 2007

(Children With Diabetes, Inc.) 2008

( (point-of-care)

(near-patient) ) AB(Amic AB) 2008

(Beijing Dabao Cosmetics Co., Ltd.) 2008

enseaL®

(SurgRx, Inc.) 2008 10

(HealthMedia, Inc.) 2008 10

LGE (LGE Performance Systems, Inc.) 2008 12

(Human Performance Institute, Inc.)

(Omrix Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.) 2008 12
(Mentor Corporation)

2009

(Cougar Biotechnology, Inc.) 2009
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2009 (Elan Corporation, plc)
(Gloster Europe) 2009 11
2009 12
(Finsbury Orthopaedics Limited)
2010
(Acclarent, Inc.)
(RespiVert Ltd.)
(Micrus
Endovascular Corporation)
2011
N.V.(Crucell N.V.)( )
RINZA® DOKTOR MOM®
J.B. (J.B. Chemicals &
Pharmaceuticals Limited) (Merck
Sharp & Dohme Corp)
(SterilMed, Inc.)
2012 (Synthes Inc.)
. . ST S TM .
(Guangzhou Bioseal Biotech Co. Ltd) Quill (Quill ™ Knotless Tissue-

Closure Device)
(Angiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

(Corlmmun Inc.)

(Calibra Medical, Inc.)
(Spectrum Vision LLC)

7vRTEC®
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2013
(Flexible Stenting Solutions, Inc.)
(Shanghai Elsker Mother & Baby
Co., Ltd)
(Aragon Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
®
2014 FynomAb
(Covagen AG)
(Alios BioPharma, Inc.)
(Jagdale Industries Ltd.)
ORsL™
2015
(X01 Limited) B
(Novira Therapeutics, Inc.)
2016
(Vogue International LLC)
(NeuWave Medical, Inc.)
(NeoStrata Company, Inc.) RHINOCORT®
2017 (PAH)
(Actelion Ltd.) (Abbott
Laboratories)
(AMO)
(Newuravi Limited)
(TearScience Inc.)
(Sightbox, Inc.) Linx™

(LINXTM Reflux Management System)
(Torax Medical, Inc.)

(Megadyne Medical Products, Inc.)
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2018

(Zarbee' s, Inc.)

(Medical Enterprises Distribution LLC)

(BeneVir Biopharm, Inc.)(BeneVir)

(Orthotaxy)
2019
(DR. CI:LABO)
FDA
(Auris Health, Inc.)
(Taris Biomedical LLC)
(JointPoint, Inc.)

2020 (bermekimab)

(XBiotech Inc.)
(Momenta Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
(Verb

Surgical Inc.)

2021

( )
141,700

1887
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AvEENO®  cLEAN & cLEAR® DR. C1:1ABO®  NEUTROGENA
06x® (0TC) TYLENOL®
suparen® BenaDRYLY  zvRTEC®
MoTRING 1B NICORETTE® 7ARBEE’ S°
pepciD? JoHNSoN's®  AVEENO Baby®
LISTERINE®
STAYFREE®  CAREFREE® 0.b.%
BAND-AID® NEOSPORIN®
(e )
2021 11

18 24
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( ) (HIV  AIDS
) ( ) (
) ( ) (
)
®
REMICADE®( )
stupon1®( )
(PI1A) SIMPONI
ARIAY( )
STELARAY(
) TREMFYA®
( ) 18 (SARS-CoV-2)
(EUA)
(HIV-1)
EDURANT ( Yy PREZISTAY(
) PrRezcoBIX® REZOLSTAY( ) HIV
syTuza®(
) CONCERTA®( 7))
cl INvEGA SUSTENNA®  xepL1oN®(
) INVEGA SUSTENNA®
INVEGA TRINZA®  TREVICTAY( )
I RISPERDAL CONSTAY(
) 2vT16A%¢ )
ERLEADAY( ) B
IBRUVICA®( )
DARZALEXY( ) AL
DARZALEX FASPRO®( )
PROCRITY  EPREXY( )
(CAD)
(PAD)
XARELTO®( )
INVOKANA®( )
INVOKAMET®  VOKANAMET®(
HCI)
INVOKAMETXR( )
(PAH) OPSUMITO( )
(PAH) P )

upTRAVI®(
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19
STELARAY( ) 2021
9.7
(Janssen Biotech, Inc.) STELARA®
2023
2024
DARZALEX®( ) DARZALEX FASPRO%(
) 2021 6.4
(Genmab
A/S) DARZALEX® (Janssen
Biotech, Inc.)
2029 2032

(Janssen Biotech, Inc.) DARZALEX FASPRO®

29/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

( FDA )
FDA

30/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

oooooog
FDA
FDA
FDA
FDA
FDA
(2022
)
2010 (Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act)( ACA )
ACA
(CMS)
ACA
ACA 2020
11 ACA Texas v. Azar
ACA D
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(
Brexit )
FDA
2022 2021
2021 2020
C ) 141,700 134,500
( )
( )
g B B (R
16.2%
33.9%
29.4%
20.5%
. TLUETRER F—a S W T
g . 1k
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DEI
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J&J Flex 2021
J&J Flex 2021
2022
2021
( )
2021 10
2022
www. jnj.com SEC SEC
www . investor. jnj.com/sec.cfm
SEC SEC Www.sec.gov

www . Factsaboutourprescriptionopioids.com  www.factsabouttalc.com

www . LTLManagementInformation.com

www. jnj.com SEC
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LTL
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A&M

(SterilMed, Inc.)

USA

USA
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WH4110
3D ApS
« D
C )
C )
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Pty
Pty
ApS
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B.V.
SRL
BV
AS
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Pte.
GmbH
UK
AB
2
6
B.V.
( )
( )
C ApS
GmbH
0TC S.r.l.
B.V.
GmbH
S.L.
S.A. C.V.
GmbH
( )
SA
S.A. C.V.
SARL
EES S R.L C.V.
EES S.A. C.V.
EIT GmbH
( ) GmbH
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PR
Sarl
Sarl
( )
S.A.
S.A.
( )
( )
FMS SA
GH
B.V.
GMED BV
GMED BV( )
GmbH
UK
«c
mbH
J J
J J
J.C. BV
(
( )
B.V.
S.A.
S.p-A.
SPA
C.A.
Lda
GmbH
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uc

NV

S.A.

R&D

B.V.

GmbH

A/S

AG

AS

B.V.

Lda.

Ltda.

GmbH

NV

Kft.

Kft.

NV

oY

GmbH

S.A.C.I.

Sp. z o.0.

Pty
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Pty C )
S.A.
s.r.o
S.A.
S.A. C.V.
S.L.
J-C
NN S.L.
Jac B.V.
JJsv BV
JJsv SDN. BHD.
JJsv AB
JJsv Ltda.
INJ s.r.o.
INJ EMEA B.V.
( ) Limitada
C )
C )
( ) S.A.E.
C )
( )
( )
( )
( ‘ ))
, ) (
, ( ) (
( ) Limitada
( ) ( )
( )
( )
( )
C )
( )
( )
AB
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AG

NV

EAME
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Limitada

S.A.

S.A.

S.A.

C.V.

S.A.

S.A.

S.A.

S.A.

S.A.

Ltda.

S.A.S.
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m.b.H.
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46/443

EDINETOOOO

OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

S.A.
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S.A.
GmbH
Ltda.
§ (
(
) Pte
(
) Pte
Kft
)
Sarl
(
(
C D
C
C D
B.V.
GmbH
S.A.
C.V.
NV
GmbH
Pty
S.A.
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S.p-A.
SAS
S.C.S.
( )
( )
Fz
( )
Fz
FZ
( )
Fz
( )
FZ
( )
NCB( )
AB
Pty.
( )
S.A.
( ) S.A.
Sp. z o.0.
Sp. z 0.0. oddizial w
Warszawie
Pte.
Pte.
Pty.
S.R.L.
S.E. d.o.o.
SDN. BHD.
UK
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(
Lda
S.A.
S.A. C.V.
S.r.o
S.r.o
(
S.A.
AB
ApS
( )
()
S.L.U.
AB
MDS
Sarl
Sarl (
)
Sarl
S.A. C.V.
B.V.
GmbH
B.V.
UG (haftungsbeschrankt)
S.A. C.V.
Sarl
0GX
oMJ GmbH
omMJ
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NV

(
y
S.R.L.
S.A.
PT
PT
Pte.
S.A. C.V.
ESV
GmbH
S.C.R. Limitada
GmbH
GmbH
GmbH
GmbH
S.M.P. S. R.L. C.V.
GmbH
UAB
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UAB

2022

367
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134,500

1887
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(Our Credo)

25

141,700
(Our Credo)

2021

147

BT
(Bl . g )

14.7
122

2021 2020

Wi — iRl i
(BLfE ; HER P

7.3

0.1

2021 2020

-Pe S 0 DEY

(BLAE : 2 Fa)

4.19 3,08
2021 2020
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2020 2021

11

(Emergent BioSolutions)

10
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CPI

FDA

2011

2021
)

2021
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1995
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( )
FDA(U.S. Food and Drug Administration )(
(
( )
( )
(
)
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EU

19

JOHNSONS®
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FDA( )

(Good Manufacturing Practices)( )

19
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(USPTO (IPR
FDA
Drug Application ANDA) ANDA
2010
Competition and Innovation Act BPCIA) FDA

(“ at-risk” launch)
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5 2021 25

2021 50 25
19
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3 100

(Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
FCPA)

FCPA FCPA

2010
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2021 11

18 24
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141,700
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(Our Credo)
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2021
25 2021 147
141,700
(Our Credo)
e e I —Rie R aiEkkE —EYT D OEY
CHAAL & s F o) (Bifr - g% Fa) (Hifir : % P
14.7
122 7.3
4.19 31.9%
.1 ‘
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
( )
2020 2019 2021
2021 2020 0.6 13.6 938
« ) 2021 2020
12.9 3.5
0.7) (2.3)
1.4 (0.6)
13.6 0.6
2021 0.6 2020
0.3
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2021 9.3 472 2020 2.5 431
2021 18.2 466 2020 1.3 395
5.5 4.5 6.5
10 3.7 5.0 2.6
2021 20.7 3.6
24.3 7.3
0.5 7.8
11.4 2.7 14.1
2020 53 2021 1.0
( )
2021 14.0 11.0
11.0 2020
16.0 12.0 12.0
202145 B B IR - (WL - e ) 2021 EEE Y A FRIEE L (B HER Fa)
§52.1
517.3 5:?.’
$57 N
$23.6 $34.6
B—o =t " . o - o
Y . E’;—ﬂmﬂl&h‘r{i m Ewas AETRD ) EEE
)
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2021 2.8 1.3
2020 4.1 146
2.4 65 3.1 2.5
5.6 81 2021
1.0
)
) 2021 2020 22(2);0
5,227 4,824 8.4
4,541 4,450 2.0
1,645 1,641 0.2
1,566 1,517 3.2
017 901 1.8
739 720 2.6
14,635 14,053 4.1
8.4 52
TvLenot®  wotRin® (ORSL)
2.0 45
NEUTROGENA®  AVEENQ® e
DR. CI:LABO
0.2 16
2021 3.2 16
AvEENO® e
1.8
2021 2.6

BAND-AID

®
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2021 11

2020 14.3
18.8

2021
521
2.8

2021

18 24
13.1
8.6
21.6

2020
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)
) 2021 2020 2%;0
16,750 15,055 11.3
REMICADE” 3,190 3,747 (14.9)
SIMPON1®/SIMPONT ARIA® 2,276 2,243 1.4
STELARA® 9,134 7,707 18.5
TREMEYA® 2,127 1,347 57.9
24 11 « )
5,861 3,574 64.0
2.385 — « )
EDURANT® / 994 964 3.1
PREZISTA®(/@PREZCOBI)®(® 2 083 ) 180 @5
/JREZOLSTA"/SYNTUZA
399 427 (6.5)
7,011 6,548 7.1
CONCERTA®/ 667 622 7.3
INVEGA” SUSTENI;A®/XEPLIOI;® 4022 3 653 0.1
/INVEGA TRINZA®/TREVICTA
RISPERDAL® CONSTA” 502 642 7.7
1,729 1,632 6.0
14,548 12,367 17.6
DARZALEX” 6,023 4,190 43.8
ERLEADA” 1,291 760 70.0
IMBRUVICA® 4,369 4,128 5.8
ZYTIGAY/ 2,297 2,470 (7.0)
« ) 568 821 (30.8)
3,450 3,148 9.6
oPSUMIT® 1,819 1,639 11.0
UPTRAVI® 1,237 1,093 13.1
395 416 (5.0)
4,460 4,878 (8-6)
XARELTO® 2,438 2,345 4.0
INVOKANA® /7 INVOKAMET® 563 795 (29.3)
PROCRIT"/EPREX” 479 552 (13.3)
981 1,186 (17.3)
52,080 45,572 14.3

(

)100

) VELCADE®
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2021 11.3 168
STELARAY(
@
TREMFYAY( )
REMICADED( )
REMICADE®
REMICADE®
STELARAY( ) 2023
2021 STELARA®( ) 59
2021 64.0 59
@ @
PREZISTAY( ) PREZISTAY( )
prezcoIX2/REZOLSTAY( / )
7.1 70
INVEGA SUSTENNA®  xerL10N®( ) INVEGA
TRINZA®  TREVICTA®( )
INVEGA HAFYERA™
2021 17.6 145
2020
DARZALEX®( ) ERLEADAG(
) IMBRUV1CA®( )
2vT16A%¢ )
VELCADEY( ) INBRUVICAG( )
®
9.6 35 opsumITE( )
®
upTRAVI®( )
8.6 45
® 8
invokana®  InvokameT®( )
PROCRIT®  EPREX®( )
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2021

( ) us EU us EU
BYANNLI® .

CABENUVA( HIV R

AL (SC)
DARZALEX®(
)

DARZALEX® FASPRO(
~fihj)
INVEGA HAFYERA(
) .

PONVORY (

)
PONVORY (

)
RYBREVANT( EGFR 20
- vmjw)
SPRAVATO®(
)
STELARA®(
)

UPTRAVI®( (PAH)
)
XARELTO®(
)
XARELTO®( (LER)
) (PAD)
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2021 16.2 1.7
2020 17.9 271 14.9 127
17.3 3.3 20.6
144 2021
0.6 (ASP)
Q)

( ) 2021 2020 S
(Surgery) 9,812 8,232 19.2
4,622 3,839 20.4
5,190 4,392 18.1
(Orthopaedics) 8,588 7,763 10.6
1,485 1,280 16.0
1,325 1,170 13.3
2,885 2,614 10.4
2,893 2,699 7.2
(Vision) 4,688 3,919 19.6
3,440 2,994 14.9
1,248 925 34.9
(Interventional Solutions) 3,971 3,046 .
27,060 22,959 17.9
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2020 19.2 98
(ASP)
2020 10.6 86
KINCISE™  VELYS™
2020 19.6 47
2020 30.4 40
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228 165 2021
24.3 20.0

5E LIR{E

5299 Side

2021 2020

2020

2021 2020

BRER. v— 71 v YRAUV—BEER
$24.7

5321

2021 2020

47
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2021 2020
(G (G
455 3.1 422 3.0
11,882 22.8 9,563 21.0
2,377 8.8 2,174 9.5
14,71 15.7 12,159 14.7
/( 21.0 7.1
( )
2021 2019 (Auris Health)
(Ottava)
2022
DCF ( )
Ottava 15
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2021 2022 28 AD
(AD) (AD)
(HS) (InJ-77474462)
AD 2022
2020 X
« ) « D
JJbC (Johnson & Johnson Innovation - JJDC, Inc.)(JJDC)
2021 ( ) 24
( o) 2021 2020
C ) 2.3 5.1 (2.8)
(G (0.5) 1.9 0.6
« (0.5) (0.5) 0.0
0.1 0.1 0.0
(0.6) (0.4) 0.2)
« D (0.3) 0.3) —
« ) 0.5 2.9 2.4
( ) 2021 Risperdal 2020
( ) 2021 2020
(Auris Health) 11
( ) 2021
2021 2020 90
130
2021
316 284 (2020
252 222 ) 2021
2020 353 315 338

345
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« )
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
1,294  (1,064) 14,635 14,053 8.8  (7.6)
18,181 15,462 52,080 45,572 34.9 33.9
4,373 3,044 27,060 22,959 16.2 13.3
( 23,848 17,442 93,775 82,584 25.4 21.1
1,072 945
« )
22,776 16,497 93,775 82,584 24.3 20.0
« ) 17
« ) ¢ >y )
2021
2020 7.6 8.8
2021 16 2020 39
2021 2020
33.9 34.9
2021
2021 Risperdal 2020
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2021 2020
13.3 16.2
2020 2021
(2019 (Auris Health)
(Ottava) 2021 )
2018
2022
21 23
( )y 70 2021
« ) 18
2022
20
2021 2020 8.3 10.8

2021
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)
14.0 2020

23.4
8.7
(14.0)

(0.2)
14.5 2021

2021

171

234

2020

112

20.9

6.8

1.1
2.4

(5.6)
23.4

87

G.7)
G-4)

0.7

0.2
(0.1)
0.4)
(8.7)
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140

(11.0)
(3-5)
(1.0)

1.0
0.3
0.2

(14.0)

2022

2022 101 21

2021 2020 353 338

11 50
20

2022
2017

15
2022 10 15

(R&D)

R&D

R&D ( TCJIA
) 2021
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2022

( ) (TCIA)
2022 812 2,131 909 3,852
2023 1,522 1,551 893 3,966
2024 2,029 1,518 843 4,390
2025 2,536 1,732 789 5,057
2026 — 1,995 744 2,739
2026 — 23,189 8,786 31,975

6,899 32,116 12,964 51,979

11
2022 10
2022 10
22

(CSA)
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(100 )
2021 364
100 2022
(SOFR)
2021 2020 338 353
2021 (
) 2020 101 21
) 2021 31.3 2020 35.8
2021 24.04 2020 28.16
2021 59 2021 2020
3.98 4.19
2022 2022 22 2022

1.06
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GAAP

2021 2020
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2022 2021
( )
2021
¢ ) 289 893 (895) 287
76 136 (136) 76
428 1,958 (1,999) 387
793 2,987 (3,030) 750
39 0 @ 32
12 213 (210) 15
844 3,200 (3,247) 797
2020
¢ ) 284 793 (788) 289
63 138 (125) 76
487 1,988 (2,047) 428
834 2,919 (2,960) 793
35 7 ®) 39
17 201 (206) 12
886 3,127 (3,169) 844
« ) 2022 2021
80 66
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( )
)
2021
¢ ) 9,837 37,922 (37,428) 10,331
460 345 (285) 520
6 13 (16) 3
10,303 38,280 (37,729) 10,854
52 18 (20) 50
70 1,163 (1,139) 94
10,425 39,461 (38,888) 10,998
2020
¢ ) 9,013 32,415 (31,591) 9,837
500 233 73) 460
5 10 ©) 6
9,518 32,658 (31,873) 10,303
36 24 ®) 52
65 1,034 (1,029) 70
9,619 33,716 (32,910) 10,425
« ) 2022 2021
218 174
« )

94/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

( )

2021
¢ ) 1,174 5,942 (5,670) 1,446
138 559 (563) 134
52 140 (138) 54
1,364 6,641 (6,371) 1,634
202 12 (66) 148
9 9% (95) 10
1,575 6,749 (6,532) 1,792

2020
¢ ) 1,013 5,144 (4,983) 1,174
118 578 (558) 138
46 118 112) 52
1,177 5,840 (5,653) 1,364
155 95 (48) 202
10 88 (89) 9
1,342 6,023 (5,790) 1,575

« ) 2022 2021
845 707
GAAP
GAAP
2017 12 31
2018
( )
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GAAP

19

10

2020

ESP TSR) 2020
( ESP TSR)

16
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2022

2020 2021

11

(Emergent BioSolutions)

10
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CPI

FDA

2011

2021
)

2021
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ASC450-20-25

19

JINJ 2022 10
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JINJ 2022 10
127,899 2021 2020
2021 2020
173.65 151.47 154.50 109.16
172.74 156.53 157.00 125.50
179.92 161.41 155.47 137.84
173.51 155.85 157.66 133.65
$171.07 $157.38
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85 15.0
( )
.............................................................................. 4,562
............................................................................................................... 5,517
............................................................................................................ 4,908
...................................................................................................... 14,987
17 23
13 23
( )
.................................................................................... 26 4,233
........................................................................... 25 5,991
( ) e 9 1,733
......................................................... 25 3,030
........................................................................ 85 14,987
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PPC ( (Johnson &
Johnson Consumer Inc.)( PPC ) 2011 FDA
PPC
PPC ( )
FDA PPC
FDA 2015
FDA
cGMP 2020
FDA
2021

17
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(¢H)
2022
4,320,000 3’119’8§3 N 1,200,157
2,000 0 2,000
) 490,878,000
2019 12 29
3,119,843 «C )
( 1.00 ) (D)
] )
— 3,110,843 — —
C )
D) 490,878,000
C )
C )
( 2,000,000 )
@)
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(©))
2001 12 30 50,000 3,119,842 50 3,120
(GID) ( (6446.5) (402,261.
2012 _ 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261.
2012 12 30 — 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261
2013 12 29 _ 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261.
2014 12 28 _ 3,119,843 B 3,120
( (402,261.
2016 _ 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261
2017 _ 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261.
2017 12 31 _ 3,119,843 B 3,120
( (402,261
2018 12 30 _ 3,119,843 B 3,120
( (402,261
2019 12 29 _ 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261.
2021 . 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261
2022 . 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261.
C )
C )
C
16
)
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2022
19355 224,338,201 §.92 ,
100 C )
10055 200,021,352 7.60
52 55 C ) ¢ )
02111 144,996,127 5.51
C ) «C )
2022 SEC 136G 2021 12 31
8.92 224,338,201
224,338,201 10,444,431 3,961,997
2022 31 SEC 136 2021 12 31
7.6 200,021,352
173,829,767 200,021,352
2022 14  SEC 136 2021 12
31 5.51 144,996,127
126,280,614 144,677,639
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2022
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2021

19

2020

2022

2022

59
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22
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c/o Johnson & Johnson, One
Johnson & Johnson Plaza, Room WH 2133, New Brunswick, NJ 08933 USA

( )
(
)
LeadDirector@its. jnj.com
( ) https://secure-www. jnj.com/wps/wcm/ jsp/contactUs. jsp.

18

Office of the Corporate Secretary, Johnson & Johnson, One Johnson & Johnson

Plaza, New Brunswick, NJ 08933 USA
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https://www.investor.jnj.com/corporate-governance
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(
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(USO)

(Americares)
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ESG

2021
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OREKBERFEOI LK LOSHMESD, )OS KEBMLE, £ o2 RUYHORRICH
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(
)
( 2021
)
EEO- ESG
ESC (
ESG
) 2021 2020
EEO-
ESG 2021
2025
ESG
( ESG ESG
)
ESG
You Belong: Diversity and Inclusion
Impact Review
TCFD TCFD

CDP
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ERM (

ESG ESG

27

www. jnj . com/code-of-business-conduct

24 24
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https://healthforhumanityreport. jnj.com/responsible-business-practices/product-quality-safety

«C ) JOHNSONS”
C ) «C )

factsabouttalc. com LTLManagementinformation.com

2021 12

(Janssen Pharmaceutical Companies)

factsaboutourprescriptionopioids.com

2020 2020 10
investor. jnj.com/board-report-on-oversight-of-risk-

related-to-opioids
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ESG
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ESG

ESG

ESG

(STSC)

(ESG)

ESG

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

ESG
ESG

ESG
STSC ESG

2021 ESG
ESG

https://www.jnj.com/about-jnj/policies-and-positions

139/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

OoOoOoOoOodno
ESG
ESG ESG
ESG ESG (
) ESG
ESG
ESG
ESG ESG
(ESG
) (ERM)
ESG ERM
ESG

ESG  (

ESG

ESG ESG

140/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

ooooooo
ESG
(PTA) ESG
PTA PTA 2000
2020 2021 2021 PTA
2021 2021 PTA 2021 21
ESG ESG
ESG PTA 2021
https://www.jnj.com/health-for-humanity-goals-2025
ESG
ESG
ESG
ESG
2025
ESG ESG
ESG
( )
ESG ESG
ESG
2021 2020
(SASB)
2020
(TCFD)
CDP

ESG

141/443



2020
2025
2022
2021 2020
ESG ESG
)
ESG
ESG
30
2021 ESG
21
2025

CDP A

Race to Zero Business Ambition for 1.5

2025 100

CDP A

142/443

2020
SDG

ESG

17

11

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

2045



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

ooooooo

70 40 COVAX ( )
20
(
)
100
HIV CABENUVA
100
2030
FTSE4Good Index Series ESG
(Drucker Institute) 2021 250

Fortune 2021 50 19

2025 45 (2020 20 )

143/443



ESG

(DED)

144/443

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

ESG

ESG



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

oOoOooodn

(DED)

(DEI)

DEI

DEI

DEI

IGEEIL, Bl Ba—a T4V« Fyls
JOTODA <o Bt (iman Rights Coupaign) DARTEA

ETI0% D2 TR L,

DEI

DEI
DEI

A s = Ea—vEF £ 2026E RN . FEWMOSEME

MEEE T, i, DTEERT sl b2 A Wi LTS,

- R @M v, FEE
2ERcHVT, FARD ‘ fﬁ:‘;%;ﬁfg B SHDRARUTZY
SR IIEICT B L smionfei il HBT AU HADEREK

U 0% MM EESH E

145/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

ooo0000
DEI
2021 DEI
2021 2025
2025 50
35
50 2021 (
) EEO- (https://
healthforhumanityreport. jnj.com/2020-JNJ-U. S. -Federal-Employer-Information-Report )
2021
45.8 (

(Our Credo)

146/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

DEI

2021 77 36
91 2019
82 2019

Mayflower Group

( ) Mayflower Group

TS APt FEMRO LA
EFrme Tk

0 FErl o2 B el HiRG
04% EraSEyreT e raa g
TR TR B S,

B?u; Vel T FEo e le RN
U C L CRERTE D LA,

0 1EE EFalr ¥ 2 F o P
91 a"'::l R T L,

147/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

12

J&J Flex Eg @

FinBEAORBCECT, % S, SEARETHrge | SHE ETORES LR
Hit, BHOF 7 ANSOER LESrREARATHIEBETF Bioo0T, 20221 W
Bicd LANRABERUNE: | REXRHBIAL#SICRL  SWRRRKEKESW TS
Y- b D—rOAFeAOEE  WEMOREES: 5, RAT  ([MHCIZEMCERLE,
FRA AT v FEFATHD hEEMRFCLLOMEREN

J&IZ Ly 2 AR ML, EWMEEALE,

148/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

2021

https://www_jnj.com/covid-19/caring-for-employees

https://healthforhumanityreport. jnj.com/responsible-business-practices/our-people ESG
ESG

149/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

https://www. investor.jnj.com/ corporate-governance

72

150/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

20
20

10
25

(https://www. investor . jnj.com/corporate-governance )

151/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

ESG

ESG
ESG
ESG
ESG

(www. investor . jnj .com/gov/compensation-recoupment-policy.cfm

)

12

2021

117

PAC) (Our Credo)

PAC 2021

152/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

ooooood
(
) https://www. investor._jnj.com/gov/political-
engagement
transparencyreport. janssen.com
( )
healthforhumanityreport.jnj.com. 2021 6
EEO-1 DEI
130
You Belong: Diversity and Inclusion Impact Review (DEI ) DEI
https://youbelong.jnj.com/ ESG
ESG
jnj.com/esg-resources 2020
2020 10 5

https:// www.investor.jnj.com/board-report-on-oversight-of-risk-

related-to-opioids

153/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

https://www. investor.jnj.com/gov/committee )

2021

154/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

2021

AUD CB NCG RC STS FIN SC

I 56 2022 iy

(Huntsman Cancer

¢ I 67 2015 Institute)CEO i C
S
) I 70 2014 (United Parcel Service, Inc.) c [ix Ri* i
E L
(RolIs-Royce Holdings plc.)
201 ) i i
71 2010 (McKinsey & Company)
A
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D 59 2022 Johnson & Johnson
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I 68 2019 (Lockheed Martin Corporation) Cc* i
B B ., Inc. o
I 62 2019 (Best Buy Co., Inc.) 7B 7
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(Honeywell  Performance Materials and
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PMT
2012 2014
(Honeywel l
Process Solutions) 2008
2012
(Honeywell Scanning and
Mobility)
(Metrologic, Inc.)
2008

(Ingersoll Rand)
(Booz Allen Hamilton)
(General Electric)
(US-China Business Council)

(Business Roundtable)
(The Business

Council)
(2016 )
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(Garrett
Motion Inc.)(2021 4 2021 9 )
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(Intellia
Therapeutics, Inc.)
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(Howard Hughes
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(Fortune)
(Fast
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The Wall Street Journal
Management 250
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F (Robert F.
Kennedy Human Rights Ripple of Hope
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Roy Vagelos Pro Bono Humanum Award)(2021
)
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(Franklin Institute
Bower Award for Leadership)(2022 )
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U.S. Military Academy at West Point) (2022
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(Apple) 1BM
(New York Presbyterian
Hospital) (Travis
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(Electronic

Data Systems France)
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Company) (
)

(Harvard Business School)

(Sciences Po Foundation)
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(Program on Health Outcomes
Research)
(Reagan-Udall Foundation)

(National Academy of
Medicine)

(Leadership Consortium for
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Learning and Action Network)

(Research! America)
(Long Term Quality Alliance)

(Alignment
Healthcare)
(National Alliance for Hispanic Health)
10 (PrognomlQ, Inc.)
(United
States of Care)
(Cigna

Corporation) (2018 )
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(Duke University Health System)
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UCLA
(Pavid Geffen School of Medicine)
UCLA (UCLA Health
System) UCLA
UCLA 2004 2010
(University
of California, San Francisco)(UCSF)
1993 UCSF
(Medical
Effectiveness Research Center for Diverse
Populations) 2005
1996 2004 UCSF

(Department of
Obstetrics, Gynecology, and Reproductive
Sciences) UCSF

(UCSF-Stanford
Evidence-based Practice Center)

1997 2002

UCSF
(Centers  for Disease Control and
Prevention) 1997

(National Academy of
Sciences’ Institute of Medicine)

(Patient-Centered
Outcomes Research Institute)

(NTH)

(Scientific Management Review

Board)
(California HealthCare
Foundation)
(California Wellness Foundation)

(Kaiser
Foundation Hospitals)
(Kaiser Foundation Health
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(U.S. Social

Security Administration Advisory Board)

(Stone Canyon Industries
Holdings Inc.) (Teneo)
G100
50

(FCLTGlobal)

(JUSTCapital) CEO (CEO
Advisory Council)
(NBER)

(Chief Executives for Corporate
Purpose CECP)
(Aspen
Economic Strategy Group)
(Emory University)
(Case
Western Reserve University)
(The Concord Coalition)
(The
Greater Washington Partnership)
(United States
Council for International Business)

(MetLife Inc.)
(2019 ) (Saudi
Aramco) (2020 )
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(44th Army Surgeon General)
(Commanding
General of the U.S. Army Medical

Command)

2013 2015
(Joint Staff Surgeon)

2012 2013

(Deputy Chief

of Staff for Support) 2010

2012
(Commanding General of the
Regional Medical Command)

(
)

(National Recreation Foundation)
St. Mary’ s University)

(Americares)
(Woodruff Foundation)

Corporation) (2019 )

Healthcare Corporation) (2019

Europe

(Mount

(Nucor
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2005
15,667
(53 2008
(Cardiovascular &
Institutional Franchise) 2011
(Janssen
Therapeutics) 2012
2013 2017
(Amgen)
(Amgen in Inflammation &
Cardiovascular, Cardiovascular & Bone)
2017
(Janssen Americas Leadership Team)
2018
2022
2022
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( )
2009
2011
2016
2018

181/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oooodn

2004
(Cordis Corporation) 114,676.005578
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(Kohlberg
Kravis Roberts & Co.) 2010
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(Human  Resources  Policy
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(Save the Children) 2017
(National Academy of
Human Resources)
2007
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(Janssen Research & Development)
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182/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

2017
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2017 6
(Merck Research Laboratories)
(Harvard University)
1997
(Theravance)
2022
1996
(McNeil Consumer 41,812 .954535
(1 ) Health)
2012
(Vision Care)
2014
2018
(Ethicon) (DePuy
Synthes)
(Biosense Webster)
(Johnson &
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2014 2016

(Janssen Pharmaceutical Companies)
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@
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(7,225,237.2 ) | (333,541.91 ) | (6,922,251.7 ) | (284,935.3 )
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2021
2021
B C D F
(
)
) ) ) )

M C 140,000 184,868 20,000 344,868
D S 145,000 184,868 0 329,868
Il E L 120,000 184,868 0 304,868
J A 120,000 184,868 20,000 324,868
M A 120,000 184,868 11,000 315,868
H 120,000 184,868 20,000 324,868
M B 120,000 184,868 0 304,868
A M 175,000 184,868 20,000 379,868
C () 126,580 184,868 20,000 331,448
A E 120,000 184,868 20,000 324,868
% § 133,861 184,868 0 318,729
N Y 120,000 184,868 20,000 324,868
R A 140,000 184,868 20,000 344,868

() 2021

( )
2021

2021
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11,022
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16,531
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2021
2020 2021
2019 2020
A B c D E F G H 1
( ) ( ) ( D | ( )| ( ) ) [ ( )

2021 | 1,650,000 | 14,789,176 | 5,069,996 | 4,252,800 702,916 | 277,071 | 26,741,959
2020 | 1,650,000 | 13,757,654 | 4,382,995 | 3,148,515 6,436,000 | 200,810 | 29,575,974
2019 | 1,650,000 | 9,956,365 | 4,049,997 | 3,690,971 5,775,000 | 243,444 | 25,365,777
2021 | 938,077 | 4,877,538 | 1,688,997 | 1,560,863 1,809,897 | 78,243 | 10,953,615
EVP 2020 | 885,385 | 4,163,841 | 1,448,997 | 1,044,179 2,607,000 | 46,636 | 10,196,038
2019 | 796,538 | 2,379,419 | 1,182,003 | 1,132,914 1,925,000 | 81,818 | 7,497,692
2021 | 1,222,500 | 7,487,478 | 2,567,995 | 2,660,400 966,888 | 102,189 | 15,007,450
ve | 2020 | 1,222,500 | 6,871,123 | 2,202,001 | 2,056,395| 4,005,000 | 82,949 | 16,439,968
¢ 2019 | 1,222,500 | 4,824,472 | 2,040,008 | 2,388,631 3,519,000 | 73,238 | 14,067,849
2021 | 1,030,000 | 7,001,281 | 2,393,998 | 2,319,450 875,767 | 184,796 | 13,805,292
2020 | 1,021,538 | 6,798,093 | 2,193,000 | 1,820,403] 3,746,000 | 45,969 | 15,625,003
2019 | 969,615 | 4,622,787 | 1,974,005 | 2,295,437| 3,469,000 | 88,458 | 13,419,302
2021 | 938,007 | 4,947,245 | 1,713,005 | 1,510,314 | 1,067,411 49,707 | 10,225,759
EVP 2020 | 884,615 | 4,468,928 | 1,499,997 | 990,058| 1,642,000 | 46,871 | 9,532,469
2019 | 796,154 | 2,625,279 | 1,200,004 | 1,179,065| 1,237,000| 59,798 | 7,097,300

() v €S0 EVP

2022
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( c )
c
( D)
D PSU ) ( RSU
2021
PSU 2021 PSU
2021 EPS TSR 2021 PSU 100 2021
2019 PSU
2019 2021
PSU 2021
2021 2023
2021 2023
2021 EPS TSR
2021 2023 50 50 100
2019 2021 1/9 1/9
(i) (i) (i) (200 ) PSU
) ) ) |( )| «( ) ( )
A 2021 2023 PSU 0 66,396| 132,792 0] 11,908,056 23,816,112
2019 2021 PSU 0 7,419 14,838 0 1,191,120 2,382,241
J 2021 2023 PSU 0 22,119 44,238 0 3,967,021 7,934,041
2019 2021 PSU 0 2,165 4,330 0 347,591 695,182
P 2021 2023 PSU 0 33,630 67,260 0 6,031,507 12,063,014
2019 2021 PSU 0 3,737 7,474 0 599,975 1,199,951
J 2021 2023 PSU 0 31,351 62,702 0 5,622,770 11,245,541
2019 2021 PSU 0 3,616 7,232 0 580,549 1,161,098
J 2021 2023 PSU 0 22,433 44,866 0 4,023,336 8,046,672
2019 2021 PSU 0 2,198 4,396 0 352,889 705,778
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CLC  CLP
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CLC CLP
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2021 3,750,000 502,800 0 4,252,800
2020 2,610,000 477,600 60,915 3,148,515
2019 3,120,000 450,000 120,971 3,690,971
2021 1,540,000 16,760 4,103 1,560,863
2020 1,020,000 15,920 8,259 1,044,179
2019 1,110,000 15,000 7,914 1,132,914
2021 1,990,000 670,400 0 2,660,400
2020 1,380,000 636,800 39,595 2,056,395
2019 1,710,000 600,000 78,631 2,388,631
2021 1,670,000 649,450 0 2,319,450
2020 1,170,000 616,900 33,503 1,820,403
2019 1,650,000 581,250 64,187 2,295,437
2021 1,340,000 157,125 13,189 1,510,314
2020 815,000 149,250 25,808 990,058
2019 1,000,000 140,625 38,440 1,179,065
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( G )
CLC CLP
CLC CLP
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2021 676,000 26,916 0 702,916
2020 6,436,000 0 0 6,436,000
2019 5,775,000 0 0 5,775,000
2021 1,809,000 897 0 1,809,897
2020 2,607,000 0 0 2,607,000
2019 1,925,000 0 0 1,925,000
2021 931,000 35,888 0 966,888
2020 4,005,000 0 0 4,005,000
2019 3,519,000 0 0 3,519,000
2021 841,000 34,767 0 875,767
2020 3,746,000 0 0 3,746,000
2019 3,469,000 0 0 3,469,000
2021 1,059,000 8,411 0 1,067,411
2020 1,642,000 0 0 1,642,000
2019 1,237,000 0 0 1,237,000
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2021
10
2021 | PRI-2012 MMP-2021 2.89
2020 | PRI-2012 MMP-2019 2.55
2019 | PRI-2012 MMP-2019 3.46
2018 | RP-2014 MMP-2018 4.47
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2019 2021 (i)
D) SEC
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2021 2,286,000 (1,610,000) 676,000 676,000
2020 2,236,000 4,200,000 6,436,000 6,436,000
2019 2,274,000 3,501,000 5,775,000 5,775,000
2021 2,365,000 (556,000) 1,809,000 1,809,000
2020 1,508,000 1,099,000 2,607,000 2,607,000
2019 1,176,000 749,000 1,925,000 1,925,000
2021 1,926,000 (995,000) 931,000 931,000
2020 1,541,000 2,464,000 4,005,000 4,005,000
2019 1,396,000 2,123,000 3,519,000 3,519,000
2021 1,812,000 (971,000) 841,000 841,000
2020 1,341,000 2,405,000 3,746,000 3,746,000
2019 1,379,000 2,090,000 3,469,000 3,469,000
2021 1,430,000 (371,000) 1,059,000 1,059,000
2020 814,000 828,000 1,642,000 1,642,000
2019 672,000 565,000 1,237,000 1,237,000
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CLC CLP
CLC CLP
12 ( AFR ) 120
SEC
CLC CLP
CLC CLP
50.25 5.65
51.62 5.70
( ) 1.37 0.05
() 2.73 0.88
2.28 2.28
0.45 (1.40)
0.45 0.00

203/443



EDINETOOOO

OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

OooooOodd
( H )
H 2021 401(K)
2019 2020 2020
2021 (2020 11 2021 10 )
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) )
193,568 0 74,250 9,253 277,071
28,942 0 42,214 7,087 78,243
37,567 0 55,013 9,609 102,189
138,446 0 46,350 0 184,796
o ) 0 42,214 7,493 49,707
10,000
( H )
2021
A 162,362
193,568
J
28,942
P 37,567
J 113,447 138,446
J
)
)

2013
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2021 2021 PSU
2021 RSU D E
B ® b | E F ¢ | v | v J K L M N
( ) ( )
« 7
C 21 C 21 C 21 () (@D) (@D) ) (@D) H K¢ 21 C )
0| 2,887,500| 5,775,000
2021 2021
2023 PSU o| 66,39 132,792 11,908,056
2019 2021
2021 PSU of 7.419| 14,838 1,191,120
2021
RSU 11,066 1,690,000
14,789,176
2021
243,072 164.62|  164.92| 5,069,996
0| 1,181,250| 2,362,500
2021 2021
2023 PSU o| 22,119| 44,238 3,967,021
2019 2021
2021 PSU o| 2.165| 4,330 347,501
2021
RSU 3,686 562,926
4,877,538
2021
80,976 164.62]  164.92| 1,688,907
0| 1,528,125 3,086,250
2021 2021
2023 PSU o| 33.630| 67,260 6,031,507
2019 2021
2021 PSU of s.737| 7,47 599,975
2021
RSU 5,605 855,996
7,487,478
2021
123,118 164.62]  164.92| 2,567,995
0| 1,287,500| 2,575,000
2021 2021
2023 PSU o| s31,351| 62,702 5,622,770
2019 2021
2021 PSU ol s.e16] 7,232 580,549
2021
RSU 5,225 797,962
7,001,281
2021
114,776 164.62|  164.92| 2,393,998
o| 945,000[ 1,890,000
2021 2021
2023 PSU o| 22,433| 44,866 4,023,336
2019 2021
2021 PSU o| 2,198 4,306 352,889
2021
RSU 3,739 571,020
4,947,245
2021
82,127 164.62|  164.92| 1,713,005
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0.30
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PSU RSU
2021
(
164.62
)
2.50
2021 2021 2023 EPS RSU  PSU ( )
RSU 152.720
2021 2023 EPS 2021 2023 PSU 152.720
2021 PSU
2019 2021 PSU 160.550
2021 2023 PSU
( )
2021 2023 EPS 50 152.720
2021 2023 TSR 50 205.979
179.349
2021
164.62
( ) 0.83
(
) 18.586
C ) ) 7.00
20.858
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2021
2021 RSU  PSU
A B c D E F G Ho | 1 | J K
(@)
( ) (@D K¢ ) (@) ¢ )
2012 | 2015 2022
17 17 | 231,951 65.37| 17
2013 | 2016 2023
16 17 | 547,692 72.54] 13
2014 | 2017 2024
10 11 | 495,146 90.44
2015 | 2018 2025
10 | 427,127 100.06
2016 | 2019 2026
411,264 101.87
2017 | 2020 2027
13 13 | 377,673 115.67| 13
2018 | 2021 2028
12 12 | 239,519| 227,464 129.51| 12
2019 | 2022 2029
11 11 266,849 131.94] 11
2020 | 2023 2030
10 10 243,072| 151.41] 10
2021 | 2024 2031
164.62
RSU
2019 | 2022
11 11 11,129] 1,903,838
2020 | 2023
10 10 10,432| 1,784,602
2021 | 2024
11,066 1,893,061
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B c D E F | ¢ H 1 J K
(@)
( ) (@D K¢ ) (@) ( )
2019 2021 PSU
2019 | 2022
11 11 47,441| 8,115,732
2020 | 2022
10 11 4,667| 798,384
2021 | 2022
11 8,843| 1,512,772
2020 2022 PSU
2020 | 2023
10 10 0 0 55,991 9,578,380
2021 2023 PSU
2021 | 2024
0 0 75,193| 12,863,267
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B c D E F | ¢ H I J K
(@)
( ) (G ¢ ) (D) ( )
2013 | 2016 2023
16 17 1,855 72.54] 13
2014 | 2017 2024
10 11 | 12,926 90.44
2015 | 2018 2025
10 | 13,015 100.06
2016 | 2019 2026
8 16,820 101.87
2017 | 2020 2027
13 13 | 19,241 115.67| 13
2018 | 2021 2028
12 12 | 12,066 129.51 12
2019 | 2022 2029
11 11 66,386] 131.94] 11
2020 | 2023 2030
10 10 88,219 151.41] 10
2021 | 2024 2031
80,976| 164.62
RSU
2019 | 2022
11 11 3,248| 555,635
2020 | 2023
10 10 3,449 590,020
2021 | 2024
3,686] 630,564
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B c D E F G H 1 J K
)
( ) (G0 ¢ ) ) ( )
2019 2021 PSU
2019 | 2022
11 11 13,846 2,368,635
2020 | 2022
10 11 1,362] 232,997
2021 [ 2022
11 2,581 441,532
2020 2022 PSU
2020 [ 2023
10 10 0 0 18,510 3,166,506
2021 2023 PSU
2021 | 2024
0 0 25,050 4,285,304
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B C D E F G H 1 J K
(@)
) (@D K¢ ) (@) ( )
2015 2018 2025
10 170,668 100.06
2016 2019 2026
174,787 101.87
2017 2020 2027
13 13 138,982 115.67 13
2018 2021 2028
12 12 111,816 129.51 12
2019 2022 2029
11 11 114,575 131.94 11
2020 2023 2030
10 10 134,064 151.41 10
2021 2024 2031
123,118 164.62
RSU
2019 2022
11 11 5,606 959,018
2020 2023
10 10 5,241 896,578
2021 2024
5,605] 958,847
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B c D E F G H 1 J K
)
( ) (G0 ¢ ) ) ( )
2019 2021 PsU
2019 | 2022
11 11 23,896/ 4,087,889
2020 | 2022
10 11 2,351] 402,186
2021 | 2022
11 4,455| 762,117
2020 2022 PSU
2020 | 2023
10 10 0 0 28,130[ 4,812,199
2021 2023 PsU
2021 | 2024
0 0 38,086 6,515,372
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B C D E F G H 1 J K
(@)
( ) DI« ) (@) ( )
2012 2015 2022
17 17 84,423 65.37 17
2013 2016 2023
16 17 148,538 72.54 13
2014 2017 2024
10 11 130,969 90.44
2015 2018 2025
10 126,369 100.06
2016 2019 2026
125,824 101.87
2017 2020 2027
13 13 123,291 115.67 13
2018 2021 2028
12 12 105,307| 110,868| 129.51 12
2019 2022 2029
11 11 133,516 131.94 11
2020 2023 2030
10 10 114,776 151.41 10
2021 2024 2031
164.62
RSU
2019 2022
11 11 5,424 927,884
2020 2023
10 10 5,220 892,985
2021 2024
5,225 893,841
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B c D E F G H 1 J K
)
( ) (G0 ¢ ) ) ( )
2019 2021 PsU
2019 | 2022
11 11 23,123| 3,955,652
2020 | 2022
10 11 2,274 389,013
2021 | 2022
11 4,310| 737,312
2020 2022 PSU
2020 | 2023
10 10 0 0 28,015 4,792,526
2021 2023 PsU
2021 | 2024
0 0 35,505 6,073,840
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B C D E F G H 1 J K
(@)
( ) (@D K¢ ) (@) ( )
2013 2016 2023
16 17 76,923 72.54 13
2014 2017 2024
10 11 59,397 90.44
2015 2018 2025
10 58,504 100.06
2016 2019 2026
56,471 101.87
2017 2020 2027
13 13 43,712 115.67 13
2018 2021 2028
12 12 43,491 67,397 129.51 12
2019 2022 2029
11 11 91,324 131.94 11
2020 2023 2030
10 10 82,127| 151.41 10
2021 2024 2031
164.62
RSU
2019 2022
11 11 3,297 564,018
2020 2023
10 10 3,570 610,720
2021 2024
3,739 639,631
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B c D E F G H 1 J K
)
( ) (DI N ¢ ) ) ( )
2019 2021 PsU
2019 | 2022
11 11 14,057 2,404,731
2020 | 2022
10 11 1,383 236,590
2021 | 2022
11 2,620 448,203
2020 2022 PSU
2020 | 2023
10 10 0 0 19,162| 3,278,043
2021 2023 PsU
2021 | 2024
0 0 25,405 4,346,033
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( B )
PSU 2020
PSU
( c )
RSU  PSU 100 PSU
PSU
( B )
( H )
PSU  H
2019 2021 (PSU)
(
J )
PSU
(i) TSR 2020 2022 PSU 98.00 ) EPS
2019 2021 PSU 80.90
(i) TSR 2021 2023 PSU 88.00 (i) EPS
2020 2022 PSU 138.50
( I K )
I K RSU  PSU

2021 12 31 (2021 ) 171.07
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ooooooo
2021
2021 2021
PSU  RSU
(D) ( ) D) )
A 0 0 75,105 $12,433,633
J 0 0 5,086 841,987
P 0 0 35,062 5,804,514
J 0 0 33,021 5,466,627
J 0 0 13,606 2,252,473
2020

2021 2021

() ) ) ( ) ( ) ( )
A 29.42 62 1,994,000 36,810,000 | 38,804,000 0
J 23.58 62 1,338,000 7,487,000 8,825,000 0
P 28.33 62 1,810,000 18,931,000 [ 20,741,000 0
J 32.25 62 2,067,000 18,012,000 [ 20,079,000 0
J 16.92 62 1,033,000 6,010,000 7,043,000 0
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2021
2015
2026
2015
62

55 62

62
@ 1.667 2005
&) 1.55 2004
(3) 65 1.429
4) cLC 2009 (

)
120 60
2021 290,000

2015 2015
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2020
A B C D E F
(¢ ) )] (¢ )] (¢ )] (¢ )}
0 61,200 266,260 2,246,525 7,416,563
0 29,164 24,932 148,256 541,402
0 41,963 296,710 1460,243 9,052,570
0 33,300 277,508 1235,599 8,667,213
1,247,971 29,164 665,055 449,316 6,422,243
( B )
B
50 100

( c)

c

H
( D)
D D
( cLC ) ( CLP )
cLC CLP

CLC CLP G
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cLe cLP
C ) C )
(¢ )} (¢ )] (¢ )} (¢ )] ( )]
0 101,860 164,400 266,260
0 18,069 5,480 1,383 24,932
0 77,510 219,200 0 296,710
0 65,158 212,350 0 277,508
571,357 37,876 51,375 4,447 665,055
( E )
E 2011 CLP 10
( F )
F F
CLC  CLP ) cLC
CLP
cLC cLp
C ) C ) (¢ ) C ) ( )
0 1,222,163 6,194,400 0 7,416,563
0 177,203 206,480 157,719 541,402
0 793,370 8,259,200 0 9,052,570
0 666,113 8,001,100 0 8,667,213
3,586,677 392,886 1,935,750 506,930 6,422,243
50
100
401(K)
401(K)
4.5
2021 290,000
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11.09
2008 12 15
cLc CLP
cLC CLP
cLe cLp
( ) ( )
50.25 5.65
51.62 5.70
1.37 0.05
2021
2021 2021
2021
2021
( F )
2021
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(¢ ) (¢ ) ) (¢ ) ( )
0 1,650,000 0 0 0
211,000 212,000 211,000 107,000 276,000
54,164,767 54,164,767 0 54,164,767 54,164,767
54,375,767 56,026,767 211,000 54,271,767 54,440,767
0 945,000 0 0 0
199,000 207,000 199,000 104,000 350,000
17,125,558 17,125,558 0 17,125,558 17,125,558
17,324,558 18,277,558 199,000 17,229,558 17,475,558
0 1,222,500 0 0] 0
175,000 180,000 175,000 91,000 285,000
27,307,334 27,307,334 0 27,307,334 27,307,334
27,482,334 28,709,834 175,000 26,457,547 27,592,334
0 1,267,692 0 0 0
175,000 180,000 175,000 91,000 285,000
26,366,547 26,366,547 0 26,366,547 26,366,547
26,541,547 27,814,239 175,000 26,457,547 26,651,547
0 945,000 0 0 0
138,000 147,000 138,000 74,000 306,000
17,490,363 17,490,363 0 17,490,363 17,490,363
17,628,363 18,582,363 138,000 17,564,363 17,796,363
) 2022 1 3
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( RIF )
( ) 2021
12 31 (qualifying separation)
RIF
( )
52
(
)
( ) (@D) (@) (@) (@D) ( )
1,650,000 13 26 52 52 1,650,000
945,000 23 46 52 52 945,000
1,222,500 24 48 52 52 1,222,500
1,030,000 32 64 52 64 1,267,692
945,000 16 32 52 52 945,000
) 2022 1 3
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10 27 27 27
55 14 14 14
4 i
52
) i
2021
CEO
2021 90,000
2021 26,757,015 2021
297
100
91 24
( )
Q) ( )
(ii) 2021 2021
(
) (i) (
)
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26,741,959

CEO

2020

®

50

2021
15,056

90,000

2020

90,000
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() 2022 2021 2022
( ) GAAP SEC
S X
( 38
59 ) 131
() 2022 2021 2022
(
( 23 103 ) )
193
) « ) SEC
« ) « )
() « )
134 2022 UFJ
128.93 (
)
)

()
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€))
( )( )
2022 2021
( ) 14,487 1,867,809 13,985 1,803,086
( ) 17,121 2,207,411 11,200 1,444,016
2 29,654
(2020 203 30 @7 776( 9’65)) ) 15,283 1,970,437 13,576 1,750,354
( ) 10,387 1,339,196 9,344 1,204,722
3,701 477,170 3,132 403,809
60,979 7,862,022 51,237 6,605,986
( ) 18,962 2,444,771 18,766 2,419,500
( ) 46,392 5,981,321 53,402 6,885,120
( ) 35,246 4,544,267 36,393 4,692,149
( ) 10,223 1,318,051 8,534 1,100,289
10,216 1,317,149 6,562 846,039
182,018 23,467,581 174,894 22,549,083
( ) 3,766 485,550 2,631 339,215
11,055 1,425,321 9,505 1,225,480
13,612 1,754,995 13,968 1,800,894
12,095 1,559,408 11,513 1,484,371
3,586 462,343 3,484 449,192
( ) 1,112 143,370 1,392 179,471
45,226 5,830,988 42,493 5,478,622
( ) 29,985 3,865,966 32,635 4,207,631
( ) 7,487 965,299 7,214 930,101
( 10) 8,898 1,147,219 10,771 1,388,705
( ) 5,713 736,577 6,559 845,652
10,686 1,377,746 11,944 1,539,940
107,995 13,923,795 111,616 14,390, 651
C 19
( 2,000,000 ) — — — —
1.00 ( 12
3,120 402,262 3,120 402,262
( 4,320,000,000 3,119,843,000 ) ’ ’ ’ ’
« ) ( 13) (13,058) (1,683,568) (15,242) (1,965,151)
123,060 15,866,126 113,890 14,683,838
113,122 14,584,819 101,768 13,120,948
¢ 1 39,099 5,041,034 38,490 4,962,516
(490,878,000 487,331,000 )
74,023 9,543,785 63,278 8,158,433
182,018 23,467,581 174,894 22,549,083
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OoooooO
@
( )( )

2021 2020 2019
93,775 | 12,090,411 82,584 | 10,647,555 82,059 | 10,579,867
29,855 | 3,849,205 28,427 3,665,093 27,556 | 3,552,795
63,920 | 8,241,206 54,157 6,982,462 54,503 | 7,027,072
24,659 | 3,179,285 22,084 2,847,290 22,178 | 2,859,410
14,714 | 1,897,076 12,159 1,567,660 11,355 | 1,464,000
( ) 900 116,037 181 23,336 890 114,748

(53) (6,833) @11) (14,311) (357) (46,028)
( ) 183 23,594 201 25,915 318 41,000
« ) 489 63,047 2,899 373,768 2,525 325,548
( 20) 252 32,490 247 31,846 266 34,295
22,776 | 2,936,510 16,497 2,126,958 17,328 | 2,234,099
( ) 1,898 244,709 1,783 229,882 2,209 284,806
20,878 | 2,691,801 14,714 1,897,076 15,119 | 1,949,293
( 15)
7.93 1,022 5.59 721 5.72 737
7.81 1,007 5.51 710 5.63 726
( 15)
2,632.1 2,632.8 2,645.1
2,674.0 2,670.7 2,684.3
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©)
( )( )
2021 2020 2019
20,878 2,691,801 14,714 | 1,897,076 15,119 | 1,949,203
C )
(1,079) (139,115) (233) (30,041) 164 21,145
¢ ) o) (516) 1 129 — —
o) (516) 1 129 — —
« ) (169) (21,789) 1,298 167,351 (18) (2,321)
«C ) 4,318 556,720 @@,135)|  (146,336) (714) (92,056)
106 13,667 (229) (29,525) @ (129)
4,255 548,597 (66) (8,509) (733) (94,506)
« ) (199) (25,657) 1,000 128,930 (107) (13,796)
(789) (101,726) (53) (6,833) 7 903
(988) (127,383) 947 122,097 (100) (12,893)
« ) 2,184 281,583 649 83,676 (669) (86,254)
23,062 2,973,384 15,363 | 1,980,752 14,450 | 1,863,039
2021 2020 2019 346
(44,610 ) 536 (69,106 ) 19 (2,450 )
2021 ) 1,198 (154,458 )y 21 (2,708
222 (28,622 ) 263 (33,909 ) 252
y 27 (3,481 )
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@
( )( )
« )
2018 12 30 59,752 106,216 (15,222) 3,120 (34,362)
15,119 15,119
( 3.75 ) (9,917) (9,917)
1,933 (758) 2,691
(6,746) (6,746)
() ()
« ) (669) (669)
2019 12 29 59,471 110,659 (15,891) 3,120 (38,417)
14,714 14,714
( 3.98 ) (10,481) (10,481)
2,217 (931) 3,148
(3,221) (3,221)
"D D
« D 649 649
2021 63,278 113,890 (15,242) 3,120 (38,490)
20,878 20,878
( 4.19 ) (11,032) (11,032)
2,171 (676) 2,847
(3,456) (3,456)
« D 2,184 2,184
2022 74,023 123,060 (13,058) 3,120 (39,099)
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@ (
( )( )
C )
2018 12 30 7,703,825 13,694,429 (1,962,572) 402,262 (4,430,293)
1,949,293 1,949,293
483 ) (1,278,599) (1,278,599)
249,222 (97,729) 346,951
(869,762) (869,762)
(129) (129)
(86,254) (86,254)
2019 12 29 7,667,596 14,267,265 (2,048,827) 402,262 (4,953,104)
1,897,076 1,897,076
513 ) (1,351,315) (1,351,315)
285,838 (120,034) 405,872
(415,284) (415,284)
(9,154) (9,154)
83,676 83,676
2021 8,158,433 14,683,838 (1,965,151) 402,262 (4,962,516)
2,691,801 2,691,801
540 ) (1,422,356) (1,422,356)
279,907 (87,157) 367,064
(445,582) (445,582)
281,583 281,583
2022 9,543,785 15,866,126 (1,683,568) 402,262 (5,041,034)
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®

2021 2020 2019

20,878 | 2,691,801 14,714 | 1,897,076 15,119 | 1,949,293

7,390 | 952,793 7,231 932,293 7,009 | 903,670
1,135 146,336 1,005 129,575 977 125,965
989 127,512 233 30,041 1,096 141,307
— — | @,148)| (148,012) — —
®617)|  (79,550) ay|  @a,51)| @159 (77,715
2.,079)| (268,045)| (1,141)| (147,109)| (2.476)| (319,231)
(48) (6,189) 63 8,123 (20) (2,579)
« ) (2,402)| (309,690) 774 99,792 89)| (37,261)
(1,248)| (160,905) 265)|  (34,166) em| 5,719
2,437 314,202 5,141 662,829 4,060 | 523,456
(1,964)| (253,219)| (3,704)| (477,557)| (1,054)| (135,892)
«C ) @,081)| (136,795) 744 95,924 1,425 183,725

23,410 | 3,018,251 23,536 | 3,034,496 23,416 | 3,019,025

3.652)| (470,852)|  (3,347)| (431,529)| (3.498)| (450,997)

711 91,669 305 39,324 3,265 | 420,956
( 18) (60) @.736)|  (7,323)| (944,154)| (5.810)| (749,083)

(30,394)| (3,918,698)| (21,089)| (2,719,005)|  (3,920)| (505,406)

25,006 | 3,224,024 | 12,137 | 1,564,823 3,387 | 436,686

214 27,591 80| (127,254) 338 43,578

( ) 08)|  (65,496) G| (67,173) 44 5,673

(8,683)| (1,119,499)| (20,825)| (2,684,967)|  (6,194)| (798,592)

(11,032)] (1,422,356)|  (10,481)| (1,351,315)|  (9,917)] (1,278,599)
(3.456)| (445,582)| (3,221)| (415,284)| (6.746)| (869,762)

1,997 | 257,473 3,391 | 437,202 39 5,028
1,190)| (@153,427)| (2.663)| (343,341) @o0)|  (12,893)
5 645 7,431 | 958,079 3 387

@,802)| (232,332)] (1,064) (137,182)| (2,823)| (363,969)

1,036 | 133,571 1,124 | 143,628 954 | 122,999
281 36,229 @333)|  (42,932) 100 12,893

114 14,698 90| (37,905) 475 61,242

(14,047)[ (1,811,080)|  (6,120)] (789,052)| (18,015)|(2,322,674)

@)  (22,950) 89 11,475 ©) (1,160)

« ) 502 64,723 | (3,320)| (428,048) (802)| (103,402)
( ) 13,985 | 1,803,086 | 17,305 | 2,231,134 [ 18,107 | 2,334,536
( ) 14,487 | 1,867,809 | 13,985 | 1,803,086 | 17,305 | 2,231,134
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( )( )

2021 2020 2019
990 127,641 904 116,553 995 128,285
941 121,323 841 108,430 925 119,260
4,768 614,738 4,619 595,528 4,191 540,346
1,811 233,492 1,937 249,737 1,736 223,822
— — 27 3,481 1 129
61 7,865 7,755 999,852 7,228 931,906
) (129) 432)]  (55,698) (1,418)| (182,823)
( 18) 60 7,736 7,323 944,154 5,810 749,083
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ASU 2021-01
2017 (FCA) 2021 ( LIBOR
) (
) 2021 LIBOR
ASU  2020-04 ( 848)
LIBOR
( ) LIBOR
( SOFR )
LIBOR
ASC 848
( RRA )
RRA 102
A ( )
RRA 102

RRA
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20 - 30
10 - 20
2-13
( )
30 90
(
)
2022
2021 77 72

238/443



GAAP

0.5

GAAP

2021

2021

2020

1.0

2021

17

2019
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GAAP

€Y
@ ®
*

2021 2020 10
2021 2020 10 11
2021 2020 2019
2021 2020 2019
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(Bayer HealthCare AG) XARELTO® (AbbVie)
(Pharmacyclics LLC) IMBRUVICA®
(Genmab A/S) DARZALEX®
2021 2020 2019
27 21 22
GAAP
GAAP
2017
35 21 2018
15.5
8.0
2018 2025 2021 69
61

12
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2018 FASB

2017 12 31
2018

GAAP
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COVID-19 (
2022
COVID-19

2022
COVID-19

12
2020 2026

COVID-19
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2021 2020
2021
)
2,936 — 2,936 2,936 —
@ 1,006 — 1,006 90 916
1,659 — 1,659 1,659 —
@ 3,479 @ 3,478 200 3,279
1,901 — 1,901 1,901 —
@ 900 — 900 900 —
11,881 @ 11,880 7,686 4,195
19,485 ) 19,481 6,785 12,696
1 — 1 1 —
245 — 245 15 230
©) 19,731 0)) 19,727 6,801 12,926
14,487 17,121
2020
)
2,863 — 2,863 2,863 —
@ 690 — 690 — 690
1,937 — 1,937 1,937 —
@ 2,674 — 2,674 1,451 1,223
2,102 — 2,102 2,102 —
@ 877 — 877 877 —
11,143 — 11,143 9,230 1,913
13,777 1 13,778 4,731 9,047
14 — 14 — 14
250 — 250 24 226
@ 14,041 1 14,042 4,755 9,287
13,985 11,200
@
@
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2022
)
19,709 19,705
22 22
10 — —
19,731 19,727
2021 2020
) 2021 2020
1,592 1,410
2,287 2,040
6,508 5,894
10,387 9,344
2021 2020
) 2021 2020
884 882
12,882 12,502
29,774 29,104
4,139 4,316
47,679 46,804
28,717 28,038
(€D 18,962 18,766
2021 2020 2019
49 63 70
2021 2020 2019 27

26 25
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2021 2020
( ) 2021 2020
38,572 39,990
(20,088) (17,618)
18,484 22,372
23,011 22,898
(11,925) (10,912)
11,086 11,986
6,985 7,195
9,837 11,849
16,822 19,044
46,392 53,402
@
(2) 2021 (Auris Health)
2022
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2022 2021
( )
2019 12 29 9,736 9,169 14,734 33,639
— 1,222 238 1,460
600 618 76 1,294
2021 10,336 11,009 15,048 36,393
® — — ®
(517) (429) (192) (1,138)
2022 9,810 10,580 14,856 35,246
12
21 2022 2021 2019 12 29
47 47 45
« )
( ) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
4,600 4,600 4,400 3,600 3,000
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2022
570
¢ D
2022
458 374 100 2021
378 306
¢ )
2016
2022 2035
2022 336
( ) 13

12

18
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2022 2021
2022
« )
) ¢ )
(
— — — (109) —
_ — — 109 _
)
— — — 174 —
)
_ — — — 174 —
)
( ) 17 119 30 — 47
« ) 94) (557) 123 — 146
- — — — 402 —
¢ ) — — — ° ~
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2021
«C )
(
— — — 153 —
— — — 153 —
(
( 12 (329) 137) — (16)
44 298 1) — 52)
— — — 370 —
(
— — — 748 —
2022 2021
2022 2021 2022 2021
9,793 — (142) _
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2022 2021
2022 2021
« ) (70) 24
2022 2021
¢ C ) )
2022 2021 2022 2021
387 (473) C ) - -
548 65 C ) — -
2022 2021
2021 2022 2022
@
(€))
1,481 198 205 1,884 1,884
738 394 (632) 500 500
2019 2021 2021
12 29
@
()
1,148 527 (194) 1,481 1,481
712 (55) 81 738 738

@
¢))
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2022

21

ASC 820

2021
28

2021
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2022 2021
2021 2020

) ()
— 540 — 540 849
) — 796 — 796 240
— 1,336 — 1,336 1,089
— 881 — 881 702
) — 979 — 979 1,569
— 1,860 — 1,860 2,271
— 24 — 24 49
— 28 — 28 38
(©) 1,884 — — 1,884 1,481
[0 — 19,727 — 19,727 14,042
) 533 533 633

) 2021 2020
1,360 1,138
(1,285) (1,107)
75 31
1,888 2,309
(1,855) (2,172)
33 137
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2021 2020 2019
633 1,715 397
) (52) (1,089) 151
— 106 1,246
(48) (99) (79)
533 633 1,715
(1) 2020 1,481 633
)
©)
O]
(5) 2022 2021 2019 12 29 520 594
1,631 2022 2021 2019 12 29
13 39 84
®) 2020
1,148
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( ) 2021 () 202 ()
3.55 2021 — — 450 3.67
2.45 2021 — — 350 2.48
1.65 2021 — — 999 1.65
0.250 2022

(10 1.1311)(2) 1,131 @ 0.26 1,227 ® 0.26
(10 1.2281)(3)

2.25 2022 1,000 2.31 999 2.31
6.73 2023 250 6.73 250 6.73
3.375 2023 802 3.18 803 3.17
2.05 2023 499 2.09 499 2.09
0.650 2024

(750 1.1311)(2) 847 @ 0.68 919 ® 0.68
(750 1.2281)(3)

5.50 2024

(500 1.3485)(2) 672 @ 6.75 679 ® 6.75
(500 1.3654)(3)

2.625 2025 749 2.63 748 2.63
0.55 2025 983 0.57 996 0.57
2.45 2026 1,995 2.47 1,994 2.47
2.95 2027 978 2.96 997 2.96
0.95 2027 1,478 0.96 1,494 0.9
1.150 2028

(750 1.1311)(2) 843 @ 1.21 915 & 1.21
(750 1.2281)(3)

2.90 2028 1,495 2.91 1,495 2.91
6.95 2029 298 7.14 297 7.14
1.30 2030 1,723 1.30 1,743 1.30
4.95 2033 498 4.95 498 4.95
4.375 2033 854 4.24 855 4.24
1.650 2035

(15 1.1311)(2) 1,683 @ 1.68 1,827 ® 1.68
(15 1.2281)(3)

3.55 2036 974 3.59 989 3.59
5.95 2037 993 5.99 992 5.99
3.625 2037 1,475 3.64 1,488 3.64
5.85 2038 696 5.85 696 5.85
3.400 2038 992 3.42 991 3.42
4.50 2040 540 4.63 539 4.63
2.10 2040 974 2.14 986 2.14
4.85 2041 297 4.89 297 4.89
4.50 2043 496 4.52 496 4.52
3.70 2046 1,975 3.74 1,974 3.74
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( ) 2021 () 2020 ()
3.75 2047 971 3.76 991 3.76
3.500 2048 743 3.52 742 3.52
2.250 2050 983 2.29 984 2.29
2.450 2060 1,222 2.49 1,228 2.49
7 — 7 —
32,116 @ 2.89 1 34,434 @ 2.85
2,131 1,799
29,985 32,685
@
() 2022
(3) 2021
) 2021 32 2020 54
2021 364
100 2022
2021 2020
2021 2020 38
26 2021 2020 21
18
2022 0.11
16
2022
( ) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2026
2,131 1,551 1,518 1,732 1,995 23,189
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) 2021 2020 2019
1,525 1,026 1,941
2,452 1,898 2,744
3,977 2,924 4,685
583 (76) (814)
(2,662) (1,065) (1,662)
(2,079) (1,141) (2,476)
1,898 1,783 2,209
2021 2020 2019 21
) 2021 2020 2019
6,110 4,312 3,543
16,666 12,185 13,785
22,776 16,497 17,328
21.0 21.0 21.0
(€)) (16.4) 9.9) (5.9)
@) 6.7 2.7 1.8
1.3) 1.2) 0.3)
(1.0) (1.5) (0.5)
(0.5) 0.7 (3.9 ®
0.2) (1.0) 0.5
8.3 10.8 12.7
(€))
2021
2020 2019
@
2021 2020 2019
(3) 2017
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2021 2020 2.5 2021
(
) « ) 27
23
17
2021
2021 1.3
2021
16 23.5
(Risperdal) 16.4 (
19 )
(2019 ) Ottava
22.4 (

18 )

2020 2019 1.9 2019
( TRAF ) 2020
TRAF
( )
TRAF
TRAF 1)
2)
2019

TRAF
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2020
2020
¢ ) 2.6
2020
2020
TRAF
2020
2020
40
21.4
2020
)
2019
2017
2019
40
19 ) 23.5
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TRAF
( )
2020
)
450
1.2
2020
23.5
10
( 18
)y 2.2
2019



2019 12

IRS(

2019

2019 12 29

2019
0.6

2017
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2019
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2021 2020
2021 2020 (1)
)
1,244 2,434
679 627
(876) (823)
(2,659) @ (5,023)
1,664 1,517
2,882 3,466
2,566 1,777
1,073 990
1,015 (1,461) 812 (1,435)
(4,853) (3,606)
1,006 (39) 854 (211)
495 (59)
12,624 (9,888) 12,477 (11,157)
€Y
@ 23
( ) 2021 2020 2019
3,373 3,853 3,326
242 265 249
23 668 408
(128) (551) (105)
187) (839) )
0 (23) (16)
3,323 3,373 3,853
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2022 33
IRS 2012
2013 2016 2020
2010 2012
2008
12
IRS
2021 2020 2019
44 32 50 2021 2020
512 468
2021 2020
) 2021 2020
4,088 5,761
2,069 2,229
3,117 3,078
181 250
9,455 11,318
557 547
8,898 10,771
2021 2020 4,436 656

10

263/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

Ogoooood
2015
(
) 2014
( )
2021 2026
2026
2021 18
2021 2020
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020 2019
) 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019
1,421 1,380 1,163 309 287 274
770 955 1,096 81 133 185
(2,645)  (2,461)  (2,322) @ @ (6)
(181) 2 4 31) (31) (31)
«C ) 1,257 891 579 151 142 129
1 23 73 — — —
623 790 593 503 524 551
« )

10
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2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019
2.14 2.82 3.63 2.09 3.04 4.45
2.34 3.13 4.13 2.33 3.08 4.25
4.01 4.00 3.99 4.25 4.25 4.29
7.71 8.12 8.31
2.49 2.14 2.91 2.68 2.23 3.39
4.01 4.00 4.01 4.21 4.27 4.29

2021 2020
5.33 5.68
( 3.73 4.49
2046 2040

265/443




EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

Ogoooood
2021 2020
) 2021 2020 2021 2020
43,300 37,188 5,028 5,076
1,421 1,380 309 287
770 955 81 133
67 61 — —
@ 5 (1,780) — —
«C ) @ (2,132) 5,716 (188) (75)
@ (88) — —
Q) (24) — —
(1,157) (1,111) (348) (396)
(683) 1,003 ) 3
41,582 43,300 4,878 5,028
38,195 32,201 90 115
4,439 5,524 17 14
969 870 343 357
67 61 — —
Q) 13) — —
@ (84) — —
(1,157) (1,111) (348) (396)
(574) 747 — —
41,930 38,195 102 90
348 (5,105) (4,776) (4,938)
4,436 656 — _
(115) (125) (438) (418)
(3,973) (5,636) (4,338) (4,520)
348 (5,105) (4,776) (4,938)
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2021 2020 2021 2020
5,539 10,860 1,113 1,463
( @ (1,610) (1,797) (13) 44
3,929 9,063 1,100 1,419
39,049 40,356
623 790 503 524
) (3,927) 2,616 (199) (1)
(1,257) (891) (151) (142)
« ) 5 (1,780) — _
( 181 () 31 31
(136) 293 — 1
( ( (5,134) 236 (319) (191)
(4,511) 1,026 184 333
(1) 2021
2026
) 2021 2020
2006 (Pension Protection Act of 2006)
2021 102 867
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
) 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
27,944 25,554 — — 13,986 12,641 — —
25,041 25,466 2,703 2,748 13,428 14,541 410 545
23,985 24,158 2,479 2,495 12,212 13,210 373 493
C )
2,903 88 (2,703) (2,748) 558 (1,900) (410) (545)
3,959 1,396 (2,479) (2,495) 1,774 (569) (373) (493)
2021
39 42 2020 88 98
44
2027
) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2031
1,317 1,386 1,421 1,496 1,572 9,279
447 459 472 485 434 2,379
2027
) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2031
114 119 126 133 139 794
( )
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2021 2020 2022
2021 2020 2022
65 66 61
35 34 39
100 100 100
NAV
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NAV
NAV
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
€Y
( ) ( ) ( )
) 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
102 127 1,033 763 — — — — 1,135 890
— — 7,016 5,023 — — — — 7,016 5,023
— — 3,505 3,931 — — — — 3,505 3,931
14,107 14,375 2 2 — — — — 14,109 14,377
— — 5,496 4,690 105 160 8,708 8,236 14,309 13,086
— — 34 11 15 21 1,807 856 1,856 888
14,209 14,502 17,086 14,420 120 181 10,515 9,092 41,930 38,195
o
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 102 90
( )
2021 12 31 2020
12 31 385 ( 0.9 ) 946 (
2.5 )
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401(K)
2021 2020 2019
256 243 235
12
( « ) )
2018 12 30 457,519 34,362
(20,053) (2,691)
49,870 6,746
2019 12 29 487,336 38,417
(21,765) (3,148)
21,760 3,221
2021 487,331 38,490
(17,399) (2,847)
20,946 3,456
2022 490,878 39,099
2021 2020 2019 3,119,843,000
2020 3.98 2019 3.75 2021
4.19
2022 2022 22 2022
1.06
2018 12 17 50
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13 «C )
( ) C )
2018 12 30 (8,869) — (6,158) (195) (15,222)
2019 164 — (733) (100) (669)
2019 12 29 (8,705) — (6,891) (295) (15,891)
2020 (233) 1 (66) 947 649
2021 (8,938) 1 (6,957) 652 (15,242)
2021 (1,079) (O] 4,255 (988) 2,184
2022 (10,017) €)) (2,702) (336) (13,058)
« ) «C )
10
« )
14
( 100
)
( )
2021 2020 2019 13
« ) 2021 2020 2019
236 209 267
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15
2022 2021 2019 12 29
2021 2020 2019
7.93 5.59 5.72
2,632.1 2,632.8 2,645.1
138.0 118.3 136.3
(96.1) (80.4) (97.8)
— — 0.7
2,674.0 2,670.7 2,684.3
7.81 5.51 5.63
2021
2022
2020
18 2021
2019
2019
)
16
2022 2005
2012 2005
2012 26
2012 2012
650 2012 26 2005
2012
2021 240

273/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

2021 1,135 2020
1,005 2019 977
2021 218 2020 210 2019
227
2021 2020 2019 223 248 209
2021 862 2020
2019 823 2021 2020 2019
1.78  1.76 1.71
10
2021 2020 2019
10
( )
2021 20.86 2020 16.42 2019
17.80
2021 2020 2019
0.83 1.47 2.56
18.59 15.33 16.27
« ) 7.0 7.0 7.0
2.50 2.60 2.80
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2022 2021 2019 12 29
C ( ) ( )
2018 12 30 109,652 98.29 3,214
19,745 131.94
(14,785) 82.43
(2,975) 125.11
2019 12 29 111,637 105.63 4,478
20,723 151.41
(16,275) 86.05
(1,835) 137.62
2021 114,250 116.22 4,703
18,525 164.62
(13,248) 97.48
(2,166) 149.75
2022 117,361 125.36 5,364
2021 2020 2019 919
1,021 807
2022
C D
@
65.08 -90.44 16,007 1.6 81.92 16,007  81.92
100.06 -101.87 22,647 3.6 101.07 22,647  101.07
115.67 -129.51 24,543 5.6 122.59 23,972 122.43
131.94 -151.41 36,304 7.6 142.23 100  140.72
151.42 -164.62 17,860 9.1 164.62 16 164.62
117,361 5.8 125.36 62,742 104.42
(€Y)
2021 2019 12 29 114,250 ( 6.0
) 111,637 ( 6.0 ) 2021 2019 12 29
61,289 ( 96.97 ) 60,761 ( 88.88 )
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(
) 2020
(
)
200
2022

« D
2021 14,998 2,236
4,981 741
(5,101) (610)
(756) (55)
2022 14,122 2,312

2021 2020 2019
152.62 139.58 121.31
2021 2020 2019
611 650 586
2021 2020 2019
179.35 160.54 124.67
2021 2020 2019

83 91 119
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)
2021 2020
2021 2020 2019 2020 2015
2,594 2,460 2,010 5.4 22.4
2,634 2,364 2,434 11.4 2.9)
5,227 4,824 4,444 8.4 8.5
2,400 2,350 2,392 2.1 @a.n
2,141 2,100 2,201 1.9 (4.6)
4,541 4,450 4,593 2.0 G.1)
637 683 621 6.7) 9.9
1,008 958 906 5.1 5.7
1,645 1,641 1,528 0.2 7.4
378 376 362 0.5 3.7
1,188 1,141 1,313 4.1 (13.1)
1,566 1,517 1,675 3.2 9.4)
13 13 12 (1.6) 8.2
905 888 974 1.8 (8.8)
917 901 986 1.8 (8.6)
495 480 441 3.1 8.9
243 240 230 1.7 4.1
739 720 671 2.6 7.2
6,516 6,362 5,839 2.4 9.0
8,119 7,691 8,059 5.6 (4.6)
14,635 14,053 13,898 4.1 1.1
10,843 10,175 9,641 6.6 5.5
5,907 4,880 4,309 21.0 13.2
16,750 15,055 13,950 11.3 7.9
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) 2021 2020 2019 223;0 22529
REMICADE”
2,019 2,508 3,079 (19.5) (18.5)
236 346 204 (31.9) 18.0
935 893 1,007 4.8 (11.4)
3,190 3,747 4,380 (14.9) (14.4)
SIMPONI _ SIMPONI ARIA®
1,127 1,155 1,159 Q.4 0.3)
1,148 1,088 1,029 5.5 5.8
2,276 2,243 2,188 1.4 2.6
STELARA”
5,938 5,240 4,346 13.3 20.6
3,196 2,467 2,015 29.6 22.4
9,134 7,707 6,361 18.5 21.1
TRENFYA”
1,503 926 764 62.3 21.3
624 421 248 48.2 69.9
2,127 1,347 1,012 57.9 33.2
21 — — o _
3 11 10 (73.3) 6.4
24 11 10 o 6.4
2,249 1,735 1,597 29.7 8.6
3,612 1,839 1,815 96.3 1.3
5,861 3,574 3,413 64.0 4.7
COVID-19
634 — _ o wx
1,751 _ _ . .
2,385 — — o o
EDURANTE
(rilpivirine)
41 44 50 (7.6) (11.2)
953 920 812 3.6 13.3
994 964 861 3.1 11.9
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) 2021 2020 2019 223;0 2020
PREZISTAY PREZCOBIX®
REZOLSTA®  sywTUZA®
1,508 1,587 1,422 (4.9) 11.6
575 597 689 (3.6) (13.4)
2,083 2,184 2,110 (4.6) 3.5
66 104 126 (36.0) (17.6)
333 323 315 3.0 2.6
399 427 441 (6.5) (3.2)
3,347 3,001 2,919 8.3 5.9
3,664 3,457 3,409 6.0 1.4
7,011 6,548 6,328 7.1 3.5
CONCERTA®
(methylphenidate)
172 183 233 (5.8) (21.4)
495 439 463 12.8 (5.1)
667 622 696 7.3 (10.6)
INVEGA SUSTENNA® XEPLION®
INVEGA TRINZA® TREVICTA®
2,550 2,314 2,107 10.2 9.8
1,472 1,339 1,224 10.0 9.4
4,022 3,653 3,330 10.1 9.7
RISPERDAL CONSTA”
287 296 314 2.9) (5.9)
305 346 374 (11.8) (7.5)
592 642 688 .7 (6.8)
338 298 266 13.3 12.4
1,301 1,334 1,349 4.3 (1.1)
1,729 1,632 1,614 6.0 1.1
5,958 5,002 4,299 17.0 18.5
8,590 7,275 6,393 18.1 13.8
14,548 12,367 10,692 17.6 15.7
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) 2021 2020 2019 223;0 22529
DARZALEX”
3,169 2,232 1,567 42.0 42.4
2,854 1,958 1,430 45.8 36.9
6,023 4,190 2,998 43.8 39.8
ERLEADA®
813 583 297 39.3 96.1
478 176 35 o o
1,201 760 332 70.0 o
IMBRUVICA
1,747 1,821 1,555 (4.0) 17.1
2,622 2,307 1,856 13.6 24.3
4,369 4,128 3,411 5.8 21.0
2YTIGA
119 373 810 (68.1) (54.0)
2,178 2,007 1,985 3.9 5.6
2,207 2,470 2,795 (7.0) (11.6)
110 83 70 31.7 18.6
458 738 1,087 (37.9) (32.1)
568 821 1,158 (30.8) 29.1
2,365 2,133 1,684 10.9 26.6
1,085 1,015 939 6.9 8.2
3,450 3,148 2,623 9.6 20.0
OPSUMIT®
1,147 1,008 766 13.7 31.7
672 631 562 6.6 12.3
1,819 1,639 1,327 11.0 23.5
UPTRAVI®
1,056 955 714 10.5 33.8
181 138 105 31.1 30.9
1,237 1,003 819 13.1 33.5
163 169 205 @G.7 (17.6)
232 247 272 (5.9) 9.2)
395 416 476 (5.0) (12.8)
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)
2021 2020
) 2021 2020 2019 2020 2010
3,192 3,509 3,734 (9.0) (6.0)
1,268 1,369 1,458 (7.4) 6.1)
4,460 4,878 5,192 (8.6) (6.0)
XARELTO®
2,438 2,345 2,313 4.0 1.4
2,438 2,345 2,313 4.0 1.4
INVOKANAZ  INVOKAMET®
308 564 536 (45.4) 5.2
254 231 199 9.9 16.3
563 795 735 (29.3) 8.2
PROCRIT. EPREX®
223 277 505 (19.7) (45.1)
256 274 285 (6.8) (3.8)
479 552 790 (13.3) (30.2)
223 323 380 (31.0) (15.1)
758 864 974 (12.2) (11.3)
981 1,186 1,353 17.3) (12.4)
27,954 25,735 23,874 8.6 7.8
24,126 19,837 18,324 21.6 8.3
52,080 45,572 42,198 14.3 8.0
1,836 1,452 1,443 26.4 0.6
2,135 1,594 1,554 34.0 2.6
3,971 3,046 2,997 30.4 1.6
5,126 4,779 5,319 7.3 (10.2)
3,462 2,984 3,520 16.0 (15.2)
8,588 7,763 8,839 10.6 (12.2)
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2021 2020
2021 2020 2019 2020 2019

883 793 863 11.4 (8.2)

602 487 575 23.6 (15.3)
1,485 1,280 1,438 16.0 (11.0)

787 743 889 5.9 (16.4)

538 427 591 26.1 (27.8)
1,325 1,170 1,480 13.3 (21.0)
1,819 1,648 1,652 10.4 0.2)
1,066 966 1,068 10.4 (9.6)
2,885 2,614 2,720 10.4 (3.9)
1,637 1,595 1,915 2.6 (16.7)
1,256 1,104 1,286 13.8 (14.1)
2,893 2,699 3,201 7.2 15.7)
3,867 3,249 3,828 19.0 (15.1)
5,945 4,983 5,673 19.3 12.2)
9,812 8,232 9,501 19.2 (13.4)
1,761 1,535 1,637 14.9 (6.2)
2,861 2,304 2,458 24.1 (6.2)
4,622 3,839 4,095 20.4 (6.2)
2,105 1,714 2,192 22.7 (21.8)
3,085 2,679 3,215 15.2 (16.7)
5,190 4,392 5,406 18.1 (18.8)
1,857 1,557 1,794 19.3 (13.2)
2,831 2,362 2,830 19.8 (16.5)
4,688 3,919 4,624 19.6 (15.2)
1,398 1,213 1,304 15.2 (7.0)
2,043 1,781 2,088 14.7 14.7)
3,440 2,994 3,392 14.9 11.7)
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)
2021 2020
) 2021 2020 2019 2020 2019
459 344 490 33.5 (29.7)
788 581 742 35.7 (1.7)
1,248 925 1,232 34.9 (24.9)
12,686 11,036 12,384 14.9 (10.9)
14,374 11,923 13,579 20.6 12.2)
27,060 22,959 25,963 17.9 (11.6)
47,156 43,133 42,097 9.3 2.5
46,619 39,451 39,962 18.2 1.3)
93,775 82,584 82,059 13.6 0.6
*
** 100
« )
2021 2020 2019
) 2021 2020
(©) (O) (©)
1,294 (1,064) 2,061 25,081 27,355
18,181 15,462 8,816 64,376 66,158
4,373 3,044 7,286 53,372 49,578
23,848 17,442 18,163 142,829 143,091
o 1,072 945 835
0 39,189 31,803
22,776 16,497 17,328 182,018 174,894
) 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019
331 248 328 759 785 765
1,198 863 950 4,029 4,006 3,910
1,933 1,980 1,912 2,286 2,140 2,014
3,462 3,001 3,190 7,074 6,931 6,689
190 256 308 316 300 320
3,652 3,347 3,498 7,390 7,231 7,009
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(6)
) 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020
47,156 43,133 42,097 48,586 49,951
23,594 18,980 18,466 43,257 49,363
( ) 5,750 5,335 5,941 2,708 2,734
17,275 15,136 15,555 5,035 5,484
93,775 82,584 82,059 99,586 107,532
1,014 1,029
81,418 66,333
93,775 82,584 82,059 182,018 174,894
2021 14.0 11.0 11.0
2020
16.0 12.0 12.0
2019 15.0 12.0
11.0
@ « ) « )
@
®
16
*
39
11
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(Alios)
(argenx)
(Actelion)
ASP 20
(6) 2021 2020
2021 2020

(DR. CI:LABO)

285/443

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

18,962 18,766
81,638 89,795



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

2021

2020

2020

ooooooo
18
2020 73
75
(XBiotech Inc.)( )
(Momenta Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)( )
(Verb Surgical Inc.)
( ) (
20 60 )
16
2021 2022 28 ( AD )
AD ( HS ) (InJ-77474462)
AD
2022 2020
2020

(Verily)
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2020 10
20
2019
2019
2019 17
16
2019
( )
12

77

58

61

16

109.06
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) 60

14

68

FDA

21
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ooooooo
)
12
13
(Auris Health, Inc.)
2,300 (2019
)
2020
15

15.3



2019

FDA

18

2021

2020

445
2021

2019

Corporation)

( ) 30
18 (
11
2020
66
( )
8.3
)
357
2022
ASP

20 ( )

(

28
27

23.5

20

2020

Ottava

GAAP

11.8

2027
110
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( )
)
2020
2021
Ottava
9.5
2021 2020 2019
(ldorsia, Ltd.)
337 ( 28.55
2020
) 38.7
(120 ) 9.6
2021
(Fortive
« )



19

ASC 450-20-25

2022

(COVID-19)
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(
)
ASC 450-20
ASR™ XL (DePuy ASR™ XL Acetabular
System) ASR™ (DePuy ASR™ Hip Resurfacing System) PINNACLE®
(PINNACLE® Acetabular Cup System) RISPERDAL® XARELTO®
( JOHNSON*®S® ) INVOKANA® PHYSIOMESH®
(ETHICON PHYSIOMESH® Flexible Composite Mesh) 2022
ASR™ XL ASR™ PINNACLE®
RISPERDAL® XARELTO® INVOKANA®
PHYSI1OMESH®
250 5,300 10,100 8,800 5,500 40,400 100 4,700
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2010

( ASR

ASR
10,000

PINNACLE®

ASR
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(DePuy Orthopaedics, Inc.)(

ASR ™ XL

2013

2013

ASR

PINNACLE®

2019
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2015
2017
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AsR™
2013 11
ASR
2017
15
ASR
ASR



)
2021
2019 11
2020
2021
2021 11
2021
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(Ethicon, Inc.)(

(VDL)

2021 2021

2022
2020

2022
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2016

2021

(PROCEED® Ventral Patch)

2019

(C.R. Bard, Inc.)

3,600

90

2021

Polypropylene Hernia System)

PROLENE"

PHYSIOMESH®

PHYSIOMESH®

3,729

PROLENE™
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PROCEED®
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(VCL)

4,300 )

2022

(PROCEED® Mesh) ~ PROCEED®

(PROLENE™
2020

PROCEED®
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ooooooo
RISPERDAL®
(Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)( JPI )
2019 10 80 (
2020 6.8 )
2021
XARELTO® JPI
XARELTO® JPI (Bayer Healthcare AG)
2019
JPI XARELTO®
2019 2019 12 2020
XARELTO®
( JOHNSON'  S® )

(Johnson & Johnson
Consumer 1Inc.)
2021
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47
Johnson, et al.)
21

25

2021 10
( 2021

LTL

JJcl )

( LTL
LTL Jacl

LTL JJCI JJCI

Pl
LTL

( ED 207476 (

2020

(
)

) (0

(Royalty A&M LLC)( RAM

JJCI

) LTL

Pl
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2018

(Ingham v. Johnson &

2021
2021

JJCI )
JJCI ()
(LTL Management LLC)(

LTL

2021 10

) (©

JJCI

11

2021 11 15

( Pl )

LTL 2021 11

Pl 2022

2022 14



2019
Inc.)

2021
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ooo0000
LTL 20
LTL 20
2021 LTL
LTL
LTL
(Imerys Talc America,
(Imerys Talc Vermont, Inc.)
(Imerys Talc Canada, Inc.) ( )
11 ( )
( )
( )
2020
(Imerys S.A.) ( TCC )
( FCR )( ) (
)
2021
2021
2021
2021 10
2021 10 TCC FCR
( )
(
TCC FCR

2021 10
LTL
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2020
(Cyprus Mines Corporation) ( )
( )
2021
11
11 TCC FCR
2021 10
LTL
2021 ( )
2021
2021 10 LTL
LTL
2018 ( JOHNSON'  S®
)
2019
2019 2019 12
2020 2021
2021
2021 12

2022

297/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

ooo0000
2019
2019
2019
2022
2019 10 2019 12 2020
( JOHNSON'  S@ )
2020
(In re
Johnson & Johnson Talc Stockholder Derivative Litigation) 2020
2020 10
2021 2021

2021 11
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2019 ( JOHNSON’  S® )
(ERISA)
2019 2020
2020 2020
2020 10
2021 2021

2021 2021

2021
2021 10 2022

JOHNSON"  S® (Consumer Legal Remedies Act)
65
2019
2019 10
2019 12
2020 2020
2020
2021
2021
2021
2021 10 2021 10

2021 12
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JPI

JP1

2016 12

ELMIRON®
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(Senator Murray)

INVOKANA®

ELMIRON®

2020 12

ELMIRON®
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ooo0000
2016 12 (Dr. Ford Albritton) (Acclarent,
Inc.)( ) RELIEVA® Spin RELIEVEA SpinPlus®
9,011,412
8,414,473 2021 10
2021 10 2021 11
2018 (Intuitive Surgical, Inc.)
(Intuitive Surgical Operations, Inc.)(
) (Auris Health,
Inc.)( )
Monarch™" Platform 6,246,200 (
200 ) 6,491,701 ( 701 ) 6,522,906 ( 906
) 6,800,056 ( 056 ) 8,142,447 ( 447
) 8,620,473 ( 473 ) 8,801,601 ( 601
) 9,452,276 ( 276 )
200 056 601 701 447
276 906 ( USPTO )
200 473 701
2019 12 USPTO 601 056
2020 USPTO 200 447 701
906 276 2020
12 USPTO 601
2021 USPTO 447 906
2021 11 276

USPTO 2022 2023
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2019
2019 10 RSB
(DePuy Synthes Sales, Inc.)
Products, Inc.) RSB
ZERO-P® (ZERO-P® Spacer) ZERO-P NATURAL™
(SYNFIX® LR Spacer) SYNFIX® Evolution
6,984,234 9,713,537
2019 11
(Medacta USA, Inc.)
USPTO
2022 12
2020
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OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
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(RSB Spine LLC)( RSB )
(DePuy Synthes, Inc.)

(DePuy Synthes
ZERO-P-VA™ (ZERO-P-VA™ spacer)

(ZERO-P NATURAL™ Plate) SYNFIX® LR

(SYNFIX® Evolution System)

RSB
RSB
(Life Spine, Inc.)

(Precision Spine, Inc.)

(Osteoplastics, LLC)

(Medical Device Business Services, Inc.)

(Synthes, Inc.)(
PROPLAN CMF®

Planning Services) TruMatch® CMF

Solutions) 8,781,557 9,929,920
9,672,302 9,275,191
9,929,920
2020 10

PROPLAN CMF®
2021 10

302/443

)
(PROPLAN CMF® Virtual Surgical
(TruMatch® CMF Personalize
9,330,206 9,626,756 9,672,617
2020
9,292,920
2020
2021
2022 10
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2020 10 (Rasmussen Instruments, LLC)(
)
( )
Attune® (Attune® Balanced Sizer) 9,492,180
10,517,583 ( 583 )
2021 Attune® (Attune®
Balancing Blocks) 583
2022
( ANDA )
FDA  ANDA
ANDA
ANDA
FDA
2011 (2011 America Invents Act) USPTO

ANDA
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ooo0000
2YTIGA"
2019 (Janssen Inc.) (Janssen Oncology,
Inc.)( ) 2,661,422 ( 422
) ZYTIGA®
( ANDS ) (Apotex Inc.)( )
(Pharmascience Inc.)( )
(Dr. Reddy’ s Laboratories Ltd.)
(Dr. Reddy’ s Laboratories, Inc.)( DRL ) ( )
2020 11 2021
422 2021
XARELTO"
2021 ( JPI )
(Bayer Pharma AG) (Bayer AG)( )
10,828,310 ( 310 ) XARELTO®
ANDA (Lupin Limited)
(Lupin Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
2021 JPI1 310 XARELTO®
ANDA
2021 JPI1 310 XARELTO®
ANDA (Taro
Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd.) (Taro
Pharmaceuticals U.S.A., Inc.)( )
2021 JPI 310 XARELTO®
ANDA (Teva Pharmaceuticals
USA, Inc.) (Teva Pharmaceutical

Industries Ltd.)

2021 10
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2021 JPI1 310 XARELTO®
ANDA (Mylan Pharmaceuticals Inc.)
(Mylan Inc.)
2021 JPI1
( MDL ) 2021 12 MDL
JPI1 310 XARELTO®
INVOKANA®/ INVOKAMET "/ INVOKAWET XR®
2019 10 JPI (Janssen Research &
Development, LLC) (Cilag GmbH International)
(Janssen Pharmaceutica NV)( )
( MTPC ) INVOKAMET® MTPC 7,943,788 (
788 ) INVOKAMET® ANDA
(
DRL )
2021 MTPC INVOKAMET XR® MTPC 7,943,582 (
582 ) 8,513,202 ( 202 )
INVOKAMET XR® ANDA
(Macleods Pharmaceuticals Ltd.)
(Macleods Pharma USA, Inc.)( )
MTPC INVOKAMET®
INVOKAMET XR®
2020 10 MTPC
2,799,204 2,534,024 2,671,357 INVOKANA®
ANDS (Sandoz Canada Inc.)( )
( )
MTPC INVOKANA®

2022
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OPSUMIT®
2020 ( )
(Actelion Pharmaceuticals Ltd)(
2,659,770 ( 770 )
ANDS
2020 770
ANDS
) 2022
2020 770
( 273 ) OPSUMIT® 10mg
ANDS
( )
OPSUMIT®
INVEGA SUSTENNA
2018 JPI(
9,439,906 ( 906 )
ANDA
)
2020 10 2021 10
2019 906
ANDA
)
2021 12
2019 12 906
ANDA

PLC) (Specgx LLC)(

306/443

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

)
OPSUMIT® 10mg

( )

OPSUMIT® 10mg

(
2,621,273
(JAMP Pharma Corporation)
2022
)
INVEGA SUSTENNA®
(

INVEGA SUSTENNA®

(Mylan Laboratories Limited)(

INVEGA SUSTENNA®

(Mallinckrodt
)



2021 11 906
ANDA (Tolmar, Inc.)
(Tolmar Therapeutics, Inc.)
(Tolmar Holding, Inc.)(

2018
) 2,309,629 ( 629
335 ) INVEGA SUSTENNA®
ANDS (Teva Canada Limited)(
( )
2020
335
335
(Public Judgment and Reasons)
2020 11 335
ANDS
2022
2021 335
ANDS (
( )

2022

SUSTENNA®
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INVEGA SUSTENNA®

(Tolmar Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

)

INVEGA SUSTENNA®

) 2,655,335 (

629
INVEGA SUSTENNA®

INVEGA SUSTENNA®

( )
2021 11 2022

INVEGA SUSTENNA®

)
2021 12

INVEGA
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2020 JPI
( )
(Mylan Institutional
LLCY( )
INVEGA TRINZA®(546mg) 10,143,693 ( 693
) INVEGA TRINZA®(546mg) ANDA
693 INVEGA TRINZA®
2022 10
2021
693 INVEGA TRINZA®(819mg)
ANDA 693 INVEGA TRINZA®
(819mg)
2021 10
693 INVEGA TRINZA®(273mg  410mg)
ANDA 693 INVEGA
TRINZA®(273mg 410mg)
2022 2020
IMBRUVICA®
2019 (Pharmacyclics LLC)(
) (Janssen Biotech, Inc.)( JBI )
7,514,444 8,003,309 8,476,284 8,497,277 8,697,711 8,753,403
8,754,090 8,754,001 8,952,015 8,957,079 9,181,257 9,296,753 9,655,857
9,725,455 10,010,507 10,106,548 10,125,140 IMBRUVICA®
ANDA
(Alvogen Pine Brook LLC) (Natco Pharma Ltd.)(
) 2019
JBI 10,213,386
JBI IMBRUVICA®

2020 10
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2021 ( )
2,663,116 2,928,721 2,800,913 3,007,787 3,007,788 2,875,986
3,022,256 IMBRUVICA® ANDS
( ) (Natco Pharma (Canada) Inc.)( )
( ) 2023
IMBRUVICA®
upPTRAVI®
2020 ( )
( ) UPTRAVI® 7,205,302 (
302 ) UPTRAVI® ANDA
( ) (Zydus Pharmaceuticals (USA), Inc.)
(Zydus Worldwide DMCC)( )

302 2022
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( AWP )

( AWP )

AWP

AWP AWP
AWP

AWP
AWP
AWP
(Centocor, Inc.)
(Ortho Biotech Inc.)( )
(ALZA Corporation) AWP
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( JPI
3,400

Alkaloids Pty, Ltd.)

3,000
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DURAGESIC® NUCYNTA® NUCYNTA® ER
(Tasmanian
(Noramco, Inc.)( 2016 )
JPI
380
( )

2019 10
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2019 465
JPI JPI
2021 11 2019

10 JPI

2021

JPI
2021 10 2021 12
2022

2019

(Controlled Substances Act)

2019
( NYDFS
) 2020 NYDFS
2021 JPI ( )
50
263
2021
JPI NYDFS
2021 10 JPI ( )
50

297
2022

JP1
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JPI
50
2021
)
2017 2019 12
2019 11

JPI
2019 10
2020 10
12
2022
2022
2022
(
2020
2021
2022
2020

2020 10
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2017
38
40
40 10
45 5
2021 2022 2023
2020
2020



2019 12

Opioid Stockholder Derivative Litigation)

2020
2020 12
2020
2012
)
Inc.)( )
2014
(False Claims Act)
2017
2021
11
2021 12

2021 12
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2020
(In re Johnson & Johnson
2020
2021
2021
2021
(DePuy, Inc.)(
(Johnson & Johnson Services,
ASR™ XL
( )
2016
2021
2021
2021

2022
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2012 10
( )
2016
(Ethicon US, LLC)
2019
2019 2019 2019 10
41
2020
344 2020
2020 344
2020
2020 10
2023
2014
(Johnson & Johnson Consumer Companies, Inc.)(
)( JJCI )
JJCI
(Mississippi Consumer Protection Act) JOHNSON’  S® JOHNSON’  S®
(2012 )
JJCI
2019
JJCI 2021
JJCI LTL
LTL
JJCI 2021 11 2022
2021 JJCI 2021
2021 11 JJCI

2021 12
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2020

25
42

2016
2006

2016

HIV PREZISTA®

2017
SIMPONI ARIA®

JBI

2017
DARZALEX® OLYSIO®

2022

JPI

INTELENCE®

2019
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2020
2020 12
2021 2022
( JPI ) JPI
(Janssen Products LP)
2012 12
2021 12
( JBI ) REMICADE®
2019

REMICADE® SIMPONI® STELARA® ZYTIGA®
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2017
( ) (DePuy
Synthes, Inc. spinal implants)
2018 (CADE)

(Johnson & Johnson do Brasil Indlistria e Comércio de Produtos

para Saide Ltda) 30
(Foreign Corrupt Practices Act)
2015
(Johnson & Johnson Vision Care,
Inc.) 30
2015
2015 11
2022
2017 REMICADE®
REMICADE®
( )
REMICADE® (In re REMICADE®

Antitrust Litigation)
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2018 (Walgreen Co.) (Kroger Co.)
( )
REMICADE®
2019 2020
2022
2019 REMICADE®
2017 10
(United States Anti-Terrorism Act)
2020 2022
2018 10
(Actelion Pharmaceuticals U.S., Inc.)
(Actelion Clinical Research, Inc.)( )
TRACLEER®
TRACLEER®
2019
2019 10
2021
2018 12
(
) 28 2017
12
ZYTIGA®

2021 12
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2019
R&D
2020
2020
2019 10
)
BWI
2022
2006
11
Health, Inc.)
2020

(Janssen R&D Ireland)(

(Gilead)

(Bristol-Myers Squibb)

2021 12
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HIV

2020
( )

(Innovative Health, LLC)

BWI

2020

2019 11

(Biosense Webster, Inc.)(

2021 12 BWI

(Pfizer Inc.)

oOoOooodn

BWI

2019

(Sanofi Consumer

2016

(Boehringer Ingelheim Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

2006
ZANTAC®(
ZANTAC®

(NDMA)
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2020 10 (Fortis Advisors LLC)(
) ( )
( )
2019
2021 12
2021 (
)
(Neutrogena) (Aveeno)
2021 10
2021 12
( (
JJCI ) ) 120 (Occidental
Chemical Corporation) 2018
(Lower Passaic River)
(Superfund)
(Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability
Act) (
)
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20
2018
2021 )
« )
18
( ) 2022
2022 21 23
( )
2021
( ) @)
2019 12 29 164 — 16 180
2020 (29) — ) (36)
2021 135 — 9 144
— 53 420 473
(23) (404) 427
— (53) (53)
2022 [6h) 112 — 25 137
@

¢
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)
2002 404

2022
— (2013 ) (C0S0)

2022

2022
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JOHNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
At Tameary 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021
{Dollars in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounis) (MNoie 1)
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021 2020

Assels
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 1 and 2) £ 14,487 13,985
Marketable securithes (Motes 1 and 2) 17,11 11200
Accounts reoeivable trade, bess allowances for douliful accounts $230 (220, 5293) 15,283 13576
Invemtaries (Sotes 1 and 3) 10,387 9,344
Prepald experses and other receivables 3,701 3132
Twtal current asseis 50,4979 51,237
Property, plant and equipment, net (Notes 1 and 4) 18,962 18,766
Intangible assets. met (MNodes §and 5) 46,392 534072
Ciondbwill (Notes 1 and 59 15,246 36301
Drefermed maxes on income (Mot B) 10,223 B.534
by assets 10,216 562
Total assets 5 182,018 174,854
Liahilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities
Loans and notes payable (Note 7) 5 3,766 2631
Accounts payable 11,055 9,505
Acorued liabilities 13,612 13,968
Acorued rebates, refums and promotionms. 12,095 11,583
Accrued compensation and employee related obligations 3,506 3484
Actrued jaxes on income (Mot ) L1112 1352
Total current liabilities 45,226 42,493
Lang-temm debt (Kote 7) 0015 2685
Drefered tees an income (Mot &) 7487 7214
Employee related obligations (MNotes % and 10) 8,858 10,771
Long-tenm taxes payabibe (Nove 1) 5,713 6,559
Cither lahilities 10,686 11,9:44
Twtal Halyilities 107,395 111616
Commitments and Coningencies (MNote 193
Sharcholders' equity
Preferred stock — without par value (authorized and unissoed 2 000,000 shares) — -_
Commaon siock — par value 51,00 per share {Note 12) (amborized 4.320,000,000 shares; issoed
3,119 843, shares) 3,130 3120
Accumulated other comprebensive income (Toss) (Mote 1) [ 13,058) {15.242)
Hetained eamengs 123,060 113,150

113,122 101,768
Less: common seck beld in reasory, ancost (Note 12) (490,878,000 shares and 447,331,000 shares) S, 3490
Tital sharehalders’ equliy 74,0213 63,270
Total lialsilities and shareholders® equity 5 182,018 174,894

See Nores o Consalidared Fimancial Starements
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JOHNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(Dollars and Shares in Millions Except Per Share Amounis) (Note 1)

2021 2020 2019

Sales o Customers 5 93,775 B2.58:4 B2 059
Cosd of products sold 25,55 28427 27.556
Gras profil 63,520 54,157 54,503
Selling, marketing and adninistrative expense 24,659 22 084 22178
HResearch and development expense 14,714 12159 11355
In-process reseanch and development {Note 5) L] 181 a0
IRteTest meame (53) {1 (157
Interest expense, it of porion caplalized [Move 4) 183 il L
Cither {income]) expemse, net 408 2, 2,523
Restructuring {Mote 207) 252 7 266
Earnings before provision for taxes on income 21,776 16497 17,328
Provision far mxes on income (Noge ) 1,730 1,783 2,209
Net earnings -] 20,878 14,714 15,119
Met earnings per share (Notes 1 and 15)

Basic 5 783 559 572

Dilated 5 7481 551 563
Average shares outstanding [Motes 1 and 15)

Hasic E3L1 26328 2651

Diluned 26740 2670.7 25843

Sep Nates tn Consalidated Financinl Statements
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{Diollars in Millions) (Note 1)
2021 2020 2019
el samings 5 0878 14,714 15,119
Oiber comprehenibve income (loss), net af tax
Foreign curency wanslation (1.07%) {233) [
Secourities:
Unreallzed holding gain {loss) arising during perbod {4y 1 —_
Reclassifications to camings - — —
Met change (4) 1 —_
Employee benefit plans:
Prior service credit (cost), net of amomization [16%) 1,248 (18)
Gain {loss), net of amartization 4318 11.125) 714)
Effect of exchange rates 106 (229} {11
Net change 4255 (B5) (733
Derivatives & hedges:
Unrealized gain (boss) arising during period (19%) 1,000 7y
Reclassifications to eamings 7B%) [53) 7
et chugge (SR} 47 {100y
Cuher compashensive Income (foss) 2154 Gt {6
Comprehensive incoms 5 1062 15,363 14,450

Thee tax effects in ather comprehensive income for the fiscal years 2021, 2020 and 2019 respectively: Foreign Cuy
Hedges: 5263 million, $252 million and $27 million.

Sep Noles to Consalidated Financial Starentents
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Translation; 5346 million,
2536 million and 519 million: Secudtie: 51 million in 2021, Emplayes Benelit Plans: §1,198 miltion, 521 million and 8272 million, Derivatives &
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JOHNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
{DialLars in Millions) (Note 1)

Accunialaed
Oither Treasary
Hetakned Camprehens L= Stock Stock
Total Earnings Imcome (L) lssued Amaumi Aaoumnt
Balance, December 18, 2010 5 252 106,216 (15, XXFy L1 (LBETY
Net pansings 15,118 15,119
Cah dividends paid (81.75 per shane) LTy (W7
Employes compensatien and siock optdon plans 1833 (758 2640
Repurchase of comman sinck (i, F4iap {6,746)
Ohier (L] [Li)
Crcher comgechensive icome (koss), net ol iax (] [[E22]]
Balance, December 29, 7019 S9AT) 11065 [15,891) 3,038 (3RA1T)
Nl pammings 14,714 14714
Cashdinddends paid (5398 per shane) (148N} (10481
Employes compensation and siock option plans 2217 (931} 1048
Repunchase of commean sinck [3,221) 221}
eher ) (7iy
Uther comprehensive income (loas), net of ax L] dlh
alance, Jansary 3, 2021 RN TN (15,242) EXFN X}
Net sarmings HATH 2087E
Cash dividends paid (54,19 per share) {11032 G103y
Employee compensation and stock option plam 171 ] 1B47
Repunchase of comman sinck [ ASE) § AT
Cxhes comgarehensive income (hess), net of 1ax Pl £ LA
Balance, Jammary 2, 2022 5 74023 LXL060 [13,058) ENTT] {44,01)

Kae Notes to Consalidoned Financial Storemenms
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JOHNSON & IOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dolkars in Millions) (Note 1)

2801 26 0%
Canh flows rom operating activities
Net cemnings 5 20,878 14714 15,119
Adprsiients (o recondile pet earnings to cash Dows from operaging activities:
Depeeciation and amonization of progerty and inungible 73590 7.231 700
Siock based compensation L1356 1,005 @7
Ansel wrile-dhow s ki) 133 1096
Continges oonaideration revenal - (1,145} -
Mo e o sale ol assetslundnsoses {617} [y 2,154
Deferred v provision 07y [N ET] 12,476)
Credia [ossis and acooints recdivable albowandes {48} b3 (200
Charges in assets and Habi liths, netof effeces breem scquisons and divesainres:
(Increasel Decrease in accounts peoeivable {2.A02) 7T [ 205)
Increase in invessories. (1.24H) {363) (2
pcyease im acoosss payable snd sconeed Labilisies 2437 5,141 40640
Tocrwase (i peher curment aned non-Curon asset. {1.54) (3,704 11,054)
({Decreane Vincrease in othes curment and pon-curren lkabilites {1.061) T4 LAZS
Nt cash flosws from ativitles 23418 13,536 13416
Cash lows lrom imvesting activities
Addlitlons w peopermy, plant and equipmes (xean (3347} 13,40
Procecds Fram the disposal of sssctybusinesses, et T £l 3,265
Acquisitions, et of cash acquiced (MNote 18) (60) (7333) 13810
Purchases. of Imvestments (30,2940 (21,085} 13920
Salles ol invesiments 25,006 12,137 a7
Credin SUppon agreemens activiny, oot 214 (54T} 138
Didher | primarily licenses and milesiones) (508 {521} 4=
Pt cash sl by imvesting activities {BERT) (20,E25) I, 150
Cash Nows rom Mnancieg acthdties
Dividends 10 sharcholders (11,062) [ 1481 ) 19,917
Repchase of common sock [REH] {3,221} 16, T4E)
Procerds from short-term debt 1 9a7 3,391 x4
Regayment of shon-term debt 1150 (2.663) (100
Procecths from long-term debs, net of |svaanoe cosis 5 7430 3
Mepaymest of Jong-ierm debi {1801 {1y 2
Procesds from the execise of ook optioms/employer withhaolfing tax on seock swands, net 1,036 (WAIY i
Credis suppernt sgreemesss acelvity, net I8k {3T) o0
Other 14 [Pzl dT5
Net cash wsed by finanting activities (14847 {6,120} (18.015)
Effect of oxchumge rme changes on cash and cash equivaleniz {1TH) A L]
Increase [ Diecmmase ) in cash snd cash equivalenis. S0z {3,300y (B
Canlh and cash enquivalenss, beginning of year (Note 1) 13,965 17,305 1RL107
Cash and cash equivabents, end of year (Note 1} 5 14,487 13,985 17,305
Supplemental cash flow data
Cany bl during the year o
Tiiwrest 3 90 T w5
Interisst, el ol Aol Capitallzed R 1| B4l 95
oo laxes 4,768 Afile 4191

45
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Treasury sbock ssaeed for employee compensation and stock opgion plans, nét ol cash procesd

emplayre withholding tax on sock awands 5 LElI 1937 1736
Camversion of debi - 7 1
Acquisitions

Faiir valoe of asssts acquired 5 il 7,755 7228
Fair vabor of Rabilities avsumed and poncontmlling intercits {1 (412} 11,418
Meet canh paiil For acquisitions (Noie 18] 5 2] 7333 S.bL0

See Nates to Comsalidared Financiol Starements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies

Principles of Comsslidation

The consalidated financia] staements include the sccoums of folinson & Johnsan and is subsidiaries (ihe Company ] Inlercompany acomunts and
transactions are eliminaed, Columns and rows within tables may not add due 1o rusding. Percentages hove been calculated using actual, non-rousded
g,

Dreseription of the Company and Business Segments.

The Company has approximately 141,700 emplavees worldwide engaged in the research and develapment, mamidsciare and sale of o brosd ange of
prodicts in the healtheare felid. The Company conducts business in vinually all countries of the world amd its primany focus is en products related o
Iirnien health amd well-being.

The Company is organieed into three business segments: Corsumer Health, Pharmaceutical and Medscal Devices. The Consumes Health segmem
ineludes a broad range of products used i the Baby Care, Oral Care, Skin HealthBeauty, Over-the-Counter pharmaceutical, Wamen's Health and \Wousd
Care markets. These prsducts are marketed 10 the general public and seld enline (sCommerce) and 1o retall outbers and distributors throughout the world,
The Pharmaeceutical segment s focused on sty therapeutic aness, including Immunalogy, Infectious diseases, Neumscience, Oneology, Pulmanary
Hypenension, and Candiovasoular amd Meabolic diseases, Produicts in this segment are diseribted directly o retailers, wholesalers, distributors, hospiials
v healihcare professionals for prescription use, The Medical Devices segment Bclades 3 broad range of prodects used in the Onbopaedic, Sungery,
Imterventional Solutlons (cardiovasoular and neurovasoular) and Vision fields, These producs sre distributed o whislesalees, hispitals sid retsilers, and
used principally in the professional Gelds by physiclans, purses, lospiials, eye care professionals and clinics.

In Movember 2021, the Company announced its intenthon (o separae the Company's Consumer Health business, with the intentlon 1o create a new,
publicly raded company. The Company ks targeting completion of the planned separation in 18 10 24 months afier [nltial announcement.

MNew Accounting Standards
Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

There were no pew matedal acoouniing standands adopied in fiscal 2021,

Recently Esued Accounting Standards

Mot Adapted as of January 2, 2022

The Compaity assesses the adoplion impacis af recently ssued sccounting standards by the Financlal Accoanting Standards Board on the Company's
fimancial staements as well as material updoies o previoiss ssessments, i any, lom e Company’s Annual Report an Farm 10-K for the fiscal vear ented
January 3, 2021, There were no new nuserial accounting standards issued in fiscal 2021 that impacted the Company.

ASL 2021-01: Reference Rate Reform

I mid: 2017, the Financial Conduct Awbority (FCA) annawmeed that it will no longer requine banks o submit rates for the London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR) after 2021 henoe maske! participants should work so transition 1o allemaolive reference rotes { Beference Rote Reform) and should not rely on
L1BCR being available afier the end of 2021, Reference mie refoom is the term used 1o refer 1o the efforts that have boen undereaken by rogulators and
other market panticipants 1o ntrodoce new relerence rates that are based on a larger amd more ligquid population of observable transactions, The Company
evaluated the Implications of reference rae reform and applicable finoeclal reponing gukdance in ASL 2020-04, Reference Hate Reform (Tople B48):
Facilitation af the Effects of Reference Rate Relorm on Financial Reporting on s key financial and comnmercial comtracts that referenced LIBOR including
any hediing relationships. Maest contracts resdewed will mature prioe o the tesminatbon of LIBOR or will be modified 1o apply & now reference rate
{primarily the Secumd Creemight Finamcing Rite “SOFR" where applicable). The company alse applisd avatlable practical expedients under ASC 848 io in
scope financial and commercial contracts that previously relerenced LIBOR when applicable. As a resubt, the Campany’s implementation of any relerence
rave reform provisions 1o commerclal and financlal contracts did nod result in any maerial change for the Comparny.

Cash Egprivalents

The Compamy classifies all highly lguid investments with stated maturities of three months or less from date of perchase as cosh equivalenes and all highly
ligquid investments with stated maturities of greater than three months from the dose of purchase os current marketable securities. The Company has a policy
al making i tments only with ¢ ial instilutions that have

47
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al least an invesiment grade credit ring. The Company invests s cash primarily in govemment securities and obligations, comporate debt securities,
maney market funds and reverse repurchase agreemenis (RREAs),

RRAs are collaieraliced by deposits in the form of Govermment Securities and O'bligations for an amount not Tess than 102% of their valoue, The
Company does not recond an asset or liahilliy as the Campany is not permitied o sell or repledge the assoclated collaieral, The Comparsy has a palicy that
the collateral has at beast an A (or equivalent) credit rating, The Company utilizes a thind party custodian to manage the exchange of funds and easure that
callaeral meceived is maintained ar 102% of the value of ihe RRAS on o daily basis, REAs with sqaved matorities of greater than three mongles fom the daie
ol prirchuse are classilied as markeble securities.

livvestments

Investments classified as held v maturity investments are reponted at amonized cost and realized gains or losses are reponed [neamings. Investments
classified as available-for-sale debi securites ame corried at estimated fair valoe with unrealized gains ond losses reconded as a componend af accomulaced
other comprehensive income. Available-forsale securities available for currend operations are classified as current assets atherwise, they are classified as
long term. Management determines the appropriate clossification of its investment in debt and equity securities at the time of purchase and re-evaluates
such determination at each balance sheet date, The Company reviews s investments for impairment and sdjuses these investments fo fair value through
camings, as megquinsd.

Froperty, Flant and Exquipment and Depreciation
Propesty, plant and equipment ane stabed at cost. The Company utilizes the siraight-lime meihod of depreciation over the estimated useful lives of the assets;

Buibiding and building equipment 20 - 30 years
Land and leasehald improvements 10 - 20 years
Machinery amd equipment 2-13 years

Ther Company capitalizes conain compuier saftware and development costs, included in machinery and equipment, when incurmed In connection with
developing or ohaining computer seftware for ineemal wse. Capltalized sofrwane costs are amontized over the estimated usefual lives of the software, which
generally range from 3o B years

The Company reviews long-lived assets 1o assess recoverablliny using andiscounied cash fows, When certaln evenis ar changes in operating or
econamic conditions occur, an impaiment assessment may be perfommed on the recoverabilny of the cammying value of these assets, 11 the asset is
determined to be impaired, the lss is measumed based on the diffenence betwem the asset's fair value and i camrying valoe, 1T queded maroe prices ane pot
available, the Company will estimate fair valoe osing a dscounbed value of estimated Bitire cach flows,

Revene Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue fram prodict sales when abligations ander the werms of o comtract with the cussoaer are satisfied; generably, this oocers
with ibe transfer of contml af the gonds 16 custiomers. The Company's !II‘i‘I.‘lI awment eerms are typically beeween 30 16 90 days. Provigions for certain
rehates, sales incentives, tade pramotions, coupens, priduct retwms, discoants (o customens and governmental clawback provisons are accounted for as
varishle consideration and reconded o8 a reduclion in sales. The liahility is recognized within Acerued Rebates, Retums, and Promations on the
consalidated balance sheet.

Produa discousts gramted are based on the terms of arrangements with direct, indirect and other market panicipants, & well & marker conditions,
including consideration ol compiinor pricing. Rebales sre sstimated based on contraciual lemns, Maorical pxperience, patiem mmcomes, tend analvais and
progected market conditlos in the various merkets served. A significant portian of the Rability related w rebates B from ibe sale of the Company's
pharmaceitical products within the US., primarily the Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid programs, which amounied o 57.7 hillion and $7.2 billion
as of Janwary 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively. The Company evalusies masket conditions for products or groups of produces primarily through
the analysis of whalesaler amd other third-pamy sell-through and market research data, as well as intemally genersted information.

Sales returns are estimated and reconled based on historical sales amd retums information. Products that exhibin unusaal sales or reum patterns due @
daling, compention or other marketing maiters are specifically investgated and analyzed a5 pam of the accoumnting lor sales reum accruals,

Sales retuns allowances represent a reserve Tor products that may be reurmed dae i expiration, destnaction in e field, ar in specific aresxs, product
recall. Thie sales returns reserve s based an hissordcal return tends by producn and by market s a peroemt o gross sales. In sccordance with the Company's
accounting policies, the Company generally Bsues eredin to customers for retumed goods. The Compamy®s sales retums reserves ane scoounted for in
nceardance with the US. GAAP gusdance for revenue recognition when right of retum exiss. Sales renims reserves are recorded o Tull sales value. Sales
remums {n the Consumer Health and Pharmaceutical soprments sre almost exclusively not resalable. Sales retums for ceradn franchises b the
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Moedical Devices segment are typically resalahle but are not material. The Company infrequently exchanges products from imveniory for retarned producis.
The sales retums: reserve for the inal Company las been approcimately 1.0% of annual net tade sales during each of the fiscal years 2021, 2020 and 2019,

Promotional programs, such as product listing allowances and cooperative advenising amangemenis, are reconded in the same pericd as related sales.
Continuing promotional progrms include coupans and volume-based sales incentive programs. The redemption cosi of consumer coupons is based on
histarical redempiion experience by product and valae, Volume-based incentive programs are based on the estimated sales volumes for the Incemtive period
and are reconled as products ane selil, These amangements are evaluated 1o determine the appropriate amounts g0 be defemed or neconbed & a nedoction of
revene, The Compuany alsa earms profit-share pryments through collaborative amangemnents for certain products, which ane imcluded in sales o customers,
For all years presented, profit-share payments wese less than 3.0% of the istal evenoes ansd are includesd in sales o costomers.

See Note 17 1o ihe Consolidated Financial Stitements for further disaggregaiion of revenue,

Shipplng and Handling
Shipping and handling costs incurred were $1.1 ballion, $1.0 biltian and §1.0 billien in fiscal years 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and are included in
selling, marketing and adminisirative expense, The amoumt of revenue recelved for shipping and banedling ks less than 05% of sales 1o cusiomers for all

periods presented.

lnwentories
Inventories pre stabed ot the lower of cost or net realtzable valoe determined by the firs-in, lrst-om metlod.

Intangibde Assets and Goodwill
The autharizatbve Heemauee on U5, GAAR requires that goodw il aml inangitle assers with indefinite lives be assessed annually for bmpairment. The
Company completed is annoal imgakment test for 2021 in the fiscal founh quaner. Famre impaimment ess will be performed annually in the fiscal founh
quadter, or saoned il warranied. Purchased in-process research and development i aocounted for as an indefinive lved inangibe asset uneil the underying
project Is completed, at which poim the inangible asset will be accounted foras a definie [ived intangible asseq, or sbamdoned, 3t which poine the
intangible asset will be written off or panially impaired.

Intangible assets that have finkee useful llves continue 1o be amonized over their useful lives, and ane reviewed for impaimment when wamranted by
ecanombc conditons, See MNote 5 for funher detabls on Intangible Asseis and Goodwill,

Financial Instruments

As requined by US, GAAPR all derivarive instruments are recorded an he balance sheet st fair value. Fair valioe (s e exic price that wisald be receivid 1o
=ell an asset or peid wo ransfer & Bability, Fair value i 2 morker-based measurement determined wsing assumptions that market participams would use in
pricing an asset of lability. The auiboriiative lnemtune establishes a thee-level hisrarchy oo prioriiee the inputs ased in measuning fair value, with Level 1
having the highest priority and Level 3 having the lowess. Chamges inibe falr valoe of derivatives are reconded each period in current esmings ar ather
comprehensive income, depending on whether the derivative Is designated as pan of a bedge transaction, and if so, the type of hedge ransacilon.

The Company documents all relationships between hedged lrems and dervatives. The overall risk management strategy includes reasons far
umdertaking hedge ransactions and entering Into derlvatives. The objectives of this strategy ares (1) minimize forelgn cumrency exposare’s impact on the
Company's financlal periormance; (2) protect the Company s cash Now from adverse movemenis in forelgn exchange rates; (3) ensure the appropiaiensss.
ol financlal instraments; ane (4) manage the enterprise risk associared with financial instintions, See Move 6 for additional information on Financial
Inscrumeenis.

Leases

The Company determines whether an srangement is a lesse st contract inception by establishing i itbe contract conveys the right bo cortrol ibe wse of
ilemified property, plant, or equipment for o period of tme b exchange Tor consbderation, Right of Use (ROUY Assets and Lease Lishilitkes for operaing
leases are incloded in Other assers, Acemed Habilites, and Oaber labilities on the consalidated halapce sheer The RO Assers represent the right wouse an
underlying asset for the lease verm aind lease Habilities represent an ebligation o make lease payments srising from the lease, Commitments under linance
leases are not skgnlficamt, and are included in Property, plant and equipment, Loans asd notes payable, amd Long-term debe on the consolidated balanee
sheet.

ROV Asspis and Lease Liabilities are recognized ar the lease commencemeni date based on the presesi value of all minimum lease payments over the
lease term. The Company uses its incremental borrowing raee based on the information avallable @ commencemest date in determining the present valoe of
lease paymens, when the Implich rae is not readily determinable. Lease serms may include optlons s extend or terminate the lease, These optlons ane
Included I the lease term when it s reasonably ceruain thar the Company will exercise thar oprone Operating lease expense s recognized on a smalghe-lne
hasis over the lease term. The Company has elected the Following policy elections om adapiion: use of poriolio approach

48
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on leases of assets under master service agreements, exclusion of shart term leases on the balance sheet, and not separating lease and non-lease
COMpOnEnts.

The Company primarily has operating lease for space, whicles, manufaciuring equipment and data processing equipment. The ROL asset peraining io
operating leases was $0.9 hillion and $1.0 billlon in 202 1 and 2020, respectively, The lease lability was $1.00billion and 51,1 billion in 202 1and 32020,
respectively, The oprrating lease costs wene $0,3 billion, $0.3 billior and $0.3 billion in 2021, 2030 and 5019, respectively. Cash paid for amounts included
in the measurement of lease labiliges wene 303 billion, $0.3 balion ad $0.3 billion In 2021, Z030 and 2009, respectively.

Froduct Liabili
Accnials for p.mgm liability claims are recorded, on an undiscounted basks, when it is probable that a liabilny has been incorred and the amount of the
liabilisy can be reasonably estimated based on existing information and acarially determined estimates where applicable. The accrals are adjusted
perlodically as additional infeemation becomes avallable. The Company acones an estimate of the legal defense coss needed 1o defiend each matcer when
those cosis are probable amd can be reasonably esiimated. To the extent adverse verdbos have been remdered agains the Company, the Company does not
recand an accrual untll a loss & determined o be probable and can be reasonably estimated.

The Company has sell Insarance through 8 whally-owned captive Insurance company. In addidon o aconials in the sell insurnce program, clabms that
exceed the Insurance coverage are acorued when losses are probable and amounts can be reasonably esdmated.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses are expensed as incurmed in socordance with ASC 730, Research and Development. Uplront and milestone paymems
made o third parbes in connection with research aid development collaborations are expensed as inoured up 1o the poim of regulawey appeoval. Paymenis
made o third parties subsequent 1o regulaiory approval ane capialized and amonized over the remaining wseful life of the relaved product. Amwoams
capltalized for such paymens are included in other inzngibles, net of accumudated amortization,

The Company enters into coflabomtive amangements, ryphrally with other phammaceutical or blotechmology companies, i develop and commercialize
drug canifidates or intelleciual propeny. These armangements typlcally involve two (or more) parties who are active panicipants in the collaboration and are
expose] o skgnificant risks and rewands dependent on the commercial success of the activitles. These collabnrations osually involve variows activities hy
one or more partles, including research and development, marketing and selling and disiribution. Ofien, these collaboratians require upfront, milestone and
rayalty or profit share payments, contlagent upon the scourrence of cemaln future evemts linked o the success of the asset in development. Amoums doe
from collabarative panmers elated w development actvites are generally reflected as a reduction of nesearch and development expense because the
performance of comiract development services ks not cenamal 1o the Company's operations, In general, the income statement presentation for these
collabarmtions is a5 follows:

Nature/Type of Collaberation Statemnent of Earnings Presentation
“Third-party sabe of product & profit share payments received Sales 10 cus omiers
ma‘%ﬁyﬁlmwummmuumwmm Cosa af proclucis sold

ippea

Rovalties received from collabarative panner Other ifcome {expense), net

Uplrone payments & milestones paid to collaborative panner (poe- Research and development expense

regulatory approval)

Research and development payments (o collaborative parmer Research amd deselopment expense
Reesearch and development payments received from collabortive parmer or Reductinn af Research and development expense
overneent entity

*  Milestones are capiallzed as inangibde assets and amortized o cost of products sobil over the useful Hie.

For oll years presented, there was no individual project that represented greater than 5% of the towal enmial consolidobed research and development expense,
Thi Company has a number of protics and compounids developed in collaboratiea with straregic panners including XARELTO, co-developed with
Bayer HealthCare AG and IMBRUVICA®, developed in collaboration anid co-markeed with Pharmacyclics LLC, an AbbVie company.
Separasely, the Company has a mumber of lcensing amangemenis for products and compounds incloding DARZALEX™, licersed from Genmab AcS.
Advertising
Costs assieclated with advenising are expensed in the year Incurred and are inclixded In selling, marketing and adminksoative expenses, Advertising
expenses wistldwide, which comprised televislon, radin, print media and Imemet adverrising, were 52,7 billion, 52,1 hilllon and $2.2 hilllon n fiscal years.
2021, 2000 and 2014, respectively.
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded based on amounts refundable or payahble for the current year and inclide the resubis of amy difference between U5 GAAP
accounting and ax reponing, recorded as deferred tax assets or labiliskes. The Company estimates deferred tax assets and labilities based on enacted tax
regulations and rates. Fuire changes in tax [aws and rates may affect reconded deferred tax assets and liabilides | the future.

The Company has unrecognized tax benefits for uncertain tax positlons. The Company follows U5, GAAP which prescribes a recogniilon threshold
and mveasuremeni atribute for the financlal ssavement recognition and measurement of a 1ax posithbon taken or expected 10 be aken in a @y rem,
Mamagement believes tha chimgles in these estimates would not lave a materlal effect on the Company's nesalis of operations, cash fows or financial
pasitian,

In 2017, the United States enacied into law new LS. tax legislathon, the LS. Tax Cuis and Jobs Aot (TCIA) This lasw included provisions for a
comprehensive overhanil of the corporate income Eax code, including a reduction of the stalutony comparate lax rate fram 35% (o 21%, effective an lasuary
1, 2008, The TCIA included & provision for a ax om all previously endisobubed eamings of LS, companbes located in forsgn junsdicions. Undismbned
eamings in the form of cash and cash equivalents were taxed ai a rate of 15.5% and all other carnings were taxed at a rate of 8,0%. This tax is payable over
B years and will nol acorue imerest These payments began in 2008 and will cominoe through 2025, The remaining balance an e emd of the 2021 was
approximately $6.9 billion, of which $6.1 billion Is classified as ponourrent and reflected a5 “Long-term taxes payable™ on the Company’s balance sheeL
The balance of this account |5 redabed fo recelvables fmm fax authoritbes nof expecied o be recelved In the next 12 mioiths,

The TCIA also includes provisions for a wax on global imangible low-taved income (GILTTL GILTT s described as the excess of o U5, shareholders
total net forelgn Income over @ deemed returm on anglble assets, a provided by the TCIA, In January 2018, the FASH lssued guidance that allows
coimpanies 10 eleol & an accounting palicy whether w recond e ax elecs of GILTT in il period e we lisbiliy is geserated (Le., “period cos™) or
jrowide Tor deferred tax assets and lialilises relaed w basis dilferemces than exisg and ane expecied (o effect die amoum of GILTT inglusion in (unee years
upon reversal (Lo, “deflemed meibod "), The Conpany has ehecied o account Tor GILTT usder ihe deferred metliol The defiemed tax amonis recoded are
Iseed] i the evaluation of temporary differences that are expecied © reverse as GILTT s ncurned in future perjods,

The Company has recorded deferred tax liabilities on all undisuibated eamings prior 10 December 31, 2017 from s intemational subsidiaries. The
Company has oot provided deferred taxes on the undisiributed samings subsequent o January 1, 2018 from cemain international subsidiaries where the
eamings are considered 10 be indeliniely reimvesied. The Company intends 10 contirmie (o reinvess these earnings in these imemational operations. 11 the
Company decides at a later dabe o repatriate these camings s ihe U5, the Company would be required to provide for the net tax effects on ibese amounis.
The Company estimates that the tax effect of this repatriation would be approximately $0.7 ballion wnder currently enscted 1 laws and regulations and =
currens carrency exchange mies. This ammint does not include the posstble benefic of LS, forelgn tax crediis, which may substantally offset this cost.

S Note B o the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information reganding income laxes.

Mot Earnings Per Share

Baslc eamings per share bs compued by dividing net carndngs avallable w comman shareholbers by the weighted average number of commaon shares
outstanding for the period, Diluted eamings per share reflects the potemtial dilution thet could eocur iF securitles were exercised or convented into common
stock using ihe treasury stock method,

Use of Estimates
The preparation of consol iated financial siatements in conformity with accouming prisciples generally accepted in the LS. requires management to make
estimates and assumpions tha affec the ameums reporeed. Estimates are used when accounting for sales discounts, rebates, allowances and (ncentives,
product labililes, income taxes, whhbolding axes, depreclation, amonization, employee benefits, contingenches and inanglble asset and lahiliny
valsations. Actual results may or may not differ from those estimates.

Thee Company fnllows the provislons of LS. GAAP when recording ligaton related contingencles. A liability & meoorded when a loss s probable and
can be reasonably estimated, The best estimate of a loss within o range Is aconied; however, if so estimate in the range ts better than any other, ihe
minimuan amount is accnaed.

The extent 1o which COVID-19 impacts the Company™s business. and fimancial nesulis will depend an numerous evolsing factors including, bat not
limited eo: the magnitde and duration of COVIR-19, the exeen 1o which it will impact worldwide macrosconomic comditions including interest raes,
ernployrment rates and bealth imarance coverage, the speed of the anticipated recovery, and governmental and business reactions 1o the pandemic, The
Company assessed certain accounting matters that generally require consideration of forecasied financial information in context with the inlormasiion
e by awailabde w the Cr pany andl the unknown futame impacts of COVIR-19 as of lanoary 2, 3022 and through the date of this epart. The
accounting matters assessed included, but were not limited o, the Company™s allowance for doubtiul sccounts and credit losses, imventory amd related
reserves, accrued rebates and associated reserves, anid the carrying valioe of the geodwill wsl other long-lived sises aloag with the Company's on-golng
vaccine development and disiribution elfonms. While there was nol & materad bmpact to the Company's consolidated linsncial ststements &5 of and for the
fescal vear ended January 2, 2022, the Companys. future sssessment of the magnitude and duration of COVID-19, as well 05 olber factors, could result in
muterial impacts o the Company's consolidated (inancial sttements in future reparting periods,
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Annual Closing Date

The Company follows thee concept of & fscal year, which ends on the Sunday nearest 1o the end of the mosth of December. Normally each fiscal year
consists of 52 weeks, but every [ve or six years the fiscal year conslsis of 53 weels, and therefore Includes additlonal shipping days, as was the case in
fiscal year 2000, and will be the case again in fiscal year H26

Retlassificarion
Cerwain prior period amounts huve been reclassified to conform 10 currem year presentation.
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L Cash, Cash Equivabents and Current Marketable Securities
At hee el of the fiscal year 2021 and 20240, cash, cash equivalents amd current marketable securities were eomprised of:

{hedars i Alillivams ) £l
Estimated Fair  Cagh & Cash  Current Markotable
Carrylng Amountlnrecognized Loss Value Equivalens Securites.

Cash 5 2,536 - 2436 2936 —
MNon-LLS, Sovercign Securities'™ 1,06 — 1,006 a0 a6
U.5, Reverse repurchase agreements 1,653 —_ 1,659 1 659 —
Comarate debt seourities™ 347 (1 3478 200 irm
Money market funds 1,501 — 1.901 1,301 —
Time deposite™ 00 = a0 200 ——
Subotal 5 11,881 {1 11,880 7586 4,195
LS. Gt Securities 5 149,485 (4] 19,481 6,785 12, %6
Cuber Soverelgn Seorities 1 — 1 1 —
Corporate deli securilies 245 —_ 245 15 I
Subistal avallable for sale'™ 5 18,731 {4) 19727 G801 12,526
““m - 5 14487 17,121

{Daliars b Millions ) 2020

Exiil Comh & Caah E:E&
r

oy Gned amahloRii e
Cash ] 2,863 — 2863 2,863 -
NoneLlS, Soversign Securities G —_ 650 - G
LLA. Beverse reparchase spreenents 1,937 — 1,937 1,937 -
Corporate debd securities'™ 2,674 —_ 2674 1,451 LI
Mooy marked funeds 2,102 — 2.1m 2,102 —
Time deposis’™ 77 — 877 a7 -
Subiotal 5 11,143 — 11,143 9,230 1913
oyl becuriies 5 13,777 1 13,778 4,731 2,047
Other Sovereign Securities 14 -_ 14 - 14
Corpirate debd securities 250 — 250 4 16
Substotal available for sale™ £ 4o 1 14,0642 4,755 9287
Total cash, cash equivalents and current marketable 5 11,985 11,200

UFHekd 1o maturity myvesdments are reparied af amortized cost and realized gains or besses are reported in carmings,
3 Available for sale debe securities are repaned ar fir valie with unrealized gains and losses reported nee of taxes bn ather comprehensive incame.
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Fair value of government securities and obligations and corporate debt securities were estimated using quoted broker prices and significam other

ohservahle inputs.

The comractial maturithes of the svailable for sale dela securites an lanoary 2, 2022 are as follows:

(Dxlars in Millinas) Cost Basks Fair Value

e within ane year s 19,709 19,705
Due after one year through live vears n 2
e after five years through ten yesrs — —
Total et securities 5 19,731 18,727

The Company Invests iis excess cash bn both deposis with major hanks throughouwi the world and caher high-quality money market Instnsments, The
Company has a policy of making investments anly with commerdial insitutions that have as least an investmem grade credie rating.

1 Invemtories

At the end of fiscal years 2021 and 2020, Inventories were comprised of:

[hellars b Millipa) mil paurdl]

Haw muterials and supplees 5 1,592 1,410

Goods In process 2,287 2,040
Finished goosds 6,504 5,854

Todal invenbories 1 10,387 9,144

4 Property, Plant and Equigment

At the end of fscal vears 2021 and 2020, propenty, plant and equipment a1 cost and sccumulated depreciation were:

[Thelars bis Millioars| w21 2020

Land amd land improvements 5 B4 B2
Puaibefings and buslefing equipment 12 B2 12,502
Machinery and equipment .74 29,104
Constracthon In progress 4,138 4,316
Tonal propenty, plam and equipment, gross 5 47,679 46,504
Less acoumulabed depreciation 28,717 8,038
Total propenty, plart and equipment, neg™ § 18,962 18,766

The Company capitalizes interest expense o8 part of the cost of construction of facilities and equipment. Interest expense capitalized in fiscal years 2021,

2020 and 20 1% was 549 million, 63 million and $70 million, respectively,

Depreciabon expense, including the amaordzation of capitalized imerest in fiscal years 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $2.7 billion, $2.6 billion and 525

hillion, respectively.

Upon retirement or other disposal of property, plast and equipment, the costs and related amounits of accumulated depreciation or amenization are
elimimated from the asset and accumulated depreclatlon accounis, respectively. The difference, if any, between the net asset value and ithe proceeds ane

recarded in earmings.
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5 Imtangible Assets and Goodwill
At thee el of fiscal years 2021 and 2020, the gross and net amourts of inungible asseis were:

{hedtars i Alillivms ) 2021 2040
Intangilile assets with definite lives:
Parents and trademarks — gross 5 IL5T2 A%.9490
Lets accumulated amomtization {20,088 {17.618)
Patents anel tradermarks — net 5 18,484 22,372
S
Customer relatlonships and other inmangibles — gross (3 23,010 22 98
Less accumiilated amortizsion (10.925) {10,912)
Custoameer relatlonships and other inangibles — pet'’’ 5 11086 11,986
Intangible assets with indefinite lves:
Trademarks 5 6,985 7,195
Purchased in-process research snd developmen'™ a3 11844
Todal Intangible assets with Indefinle lives 5 16,022 19,044
Total intangible assets — net 5 46,392 53,402

T e oty o et PR T—

n fiscal 2021, the Company a partial IR &D impalmsent change of $0.9 billien primanly o expected developremnt delays in the general surpery digital
robatics platfarm [Oravab aoquired with the Auris Health acgaisition (0 3009, The impairmen charge was calculaied based on revisions io the discounted cash flow
valwition maodel reflecting a defay al fisss in heman precedures of apgonimarely nwe years from the iniial acquisiion modsl sssempiion of the second hall of 2022, The
remaining reduciion was driven by assets ihat reached commerdialization amd are now dassified & having definioe Bves.

Gaoodwill as of Janwry 2, 2002 and Jamiary 3, 2021, as allocated by segment of hisiness, was a5 ollows:

(Tollary in Ml Cossunier Health Pharmaceatical Muidical Do Tedal

Goodwill ai December 29, 20159 ] 9,736 9,169 14,734 33,639
Goodwill, related b acquisitions - 1,222 3 1,460
Currency eranslatbon/other (o] fll 76 1294
Goodwill at Jansary 3, 2021 5 10,336 180G 15080 36303
Goodwill, relaied to acquisitions -— - - —
Goodwill, relied to divestimres {9 — — (1]
Currency translabon/other (517) (429) (192} (1. 138)
Goodwill at January 2, 2032 5 9,810 10,580 14856 35246

The welghied avernge amontization period for patents and trademarks is 12 years, The welghted average amartization period for customser relationships aml
oiher intangible assets is 21 years. The amortization expense of amonizable assets included in Cost of products sold was 54,7 billion, 54.7 billion and 54.5
billien before tax, for ihe fiscal wears ended January 2, 2022, Japuary 3, 2021 and December 29, 3009, respectively, Intangible asset writeboywns are
Included in Other (income) expense, net,

The esimsied amortzation  expense  [or  approved  products,  before  mx,  foe  the  flve  seocesding  years b approsimately:

(Thaars b Millisars|
2022 013 2024 2025 2026
S4,500 4600 4,400 3,600 20000

See Note 18 w the Consofidasd Financial S1atements lor addiional details rebaed o soquisithons and diveszinemes,

6. Falr Value Measuremenis
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Thie Company uses forwand foreign exchange contracts to manage its exposune (o the variahility of cash flows, primarily related to the foreign exchange
rate changes of future intercompany proghscis and third-pany purchases of materials denominated in a forelgn cumency. The Company uses cross oumency
interest rate swags 10 manage cumency risk primarily related 1o borrowings, Both types of derivatives are designated as cash Mow hedges.

Additicnally, the Company ses interest mbe swaps as an insgrnment io manage mieresd mie sk related o fixed mie borrowings. These dervatives ane
designatedd as fair value hedges, The Company wses cross cummency inberest mte swages and forwand foreign exchange coniracts designated as net imoestmens
hedgees. Additionally, the Company wses lorwanl Foeeign exchange contracts (o olfset it exposune 1o cemain foreign cunency assets and lisbilides. These
Farwand loreign exchange conracts are nod designated as hedges and therefore, changes in the fair values of these dedvatives ane recognized in samings,
thevetry offseiting the current camings effect of the relaed foreign cumency assets and liabilities,

The Company does not enter inio derivative financial irstruments for teading or speoulative paposes, or that contain credit sk relsted contingent fratunes,
The Compramy maimains credit support agreements (CSA) with certain devivative counerpanties establishing collateral threshalds based on respective onedit
ratings and netling agreements. As of knuary 2, 2032, the total amount of cash collateral paid by the Company unider the CSA amaunted 10 8570 million
e, related 1o set investient and cash low bedges. On an ongoing basis, the Compeny monidor coundec-party credil ratings. Thi Company consd ders
credit non-performance risk to be low, becaise the Company primarily enters into agreements with commercial institutions that have ot least an investmens
pratle credit rating. Reber oo tle table on sigailicant financial assers and Jiabilities measueed an fair value comained in this feomote foe receivables amd
payab les with these commercial instiiutions. As of Janueary 2, 2022, the Company had nodional ansounts ouistanding for lorward loreign exchange
CONEFACES, CPOSS CURmEncy interest rate swaps and interest mde swaps of 5458 billion, 5374 billion and $1000 billion, respectively. As of lanuary 3, 2021, the
Company had notional amounts catstanding for forward foneign exchange comracts and eross curmency inlerest rale swaps of $37.8 hillion and $30.6
Laillioen, respectively.

All dervarive instmiments are recorded on the balonce sheen an fnir value. Changes inodwe fair videe of derivatives are recorded each period in cumens
camlngs ar other comprehensive income, depending oa whetler the derivative is designated as pan of o hedge trassaction, amd if so, e tvpe of hedge
Lransacti.

The designation as a cash (low bedge is made a1 ihe enance date of the derivative contact. A inception, all detivatives are expecied w be highly
effective. Foreign exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges are accounted for under the forward method and all gainsosses assoclated with these
contracts will be recognized in the iIncome statement when the hedged item impaos eamings. Changes in the falr valee of these derlvatives are recorded in
accamulated other comprebensive income unll the underlying ransacibon affects eamings, and are then reclassified 1o eambngs in the same sccount as the
hedged tnnsacion.

Gialns and losses associated whth inserest rase swaps and changes in fadr value of hedpged defu anribaable o changes in inerest mies are reconded 10
Interest expense in the period in which they occur. Gains and losses an net investment bedge are accounted through the currency imnslation account within
accamulated other comprehensive income, The portion excluded from cifectivensss testing is reconded through Inierest (income) expense using the spot
method, On an ongolng basls, the Company assesses whether each devivatlve continoes 1o be highly effective in offsetting changes of bedged ltems. If and
when a derivative is no longer expecied 1o be highly effective, hedge accouniing s discontinsed.

The Company designated its Evro denominated notes kssued in May 2016 with due dates ranging, from 2022 to 2035 as a net imvestment hedge of the
Company's investmenis in certain of its intemational subsidliaries that use the Euro as their functional currency in onder to reduce the volatility caused by
changes in exchange rtes.

A ol Jamsary J, 2022, the halamce of deferred net boss on dedvatives incloded in accomulaied olber comprehensive income was $336 million afer-ax,
For additional information, see the Consodidated Statemints of Comprehensive Income and Note 13, The Company expects that substantially all of the
amoints related to frward foreign exchange contmats will be reclasified into camings over the next 12 months a5 a resalt of tansactions that are expecied
to occur over thal period, The maximum length of time over which the Company s hedging tramsaction expesure is 10 monihs, excluding imterest maie
congracts and ned investment hedges. The amount ultimately realized in camings may differ a8 loreign exchasge rates changye, Reallzed gains and losses ane
ultimately determined by actual exchange rabes al matarity of ihe derivative,
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The following table is a summary of the activity related 1o derivatives and hedges for the fiscal vears ended January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, net of tax:

lanuary 2, }22 January 3, 2021
Uit al Interesi Othier Cinsd aal Iilerest Oiler
Proslucs RE&D {Encome) {Incume) Praduce R&D {Income) Incamie )
(Dl i Blillinas ) Sales Sald Espemse  Expense Expemse Sabes Sold Expemse  Expense Npense

The cileces of fair value, s
Imnvedrment and cash flow hetdging:

Gadn {Loss) on lair valee
teeclgimp melatbonship:
Erstores! rile swaps coniradis;

Hivdged invmn L — — — L] — —_ — — — —

Cherivatives il
W:Ht-idnm - - —_ 10 — —_ - - - -

Caadn o et [vestment
Hﬂm’n
L ross urrrady inberesi rae
e ORI

m#mm

in

mroognizid mﬂ&-ﬁ«lh’r
T = = 174 = = = = 153 =

Amrant of L]
mll:ﬂ-lnl:.ﬂl ' —_— _ —_ 174 — — —_ — 153 e

Gradn {Loss) on cash low
heedgimg relatianchip:

Amoeni of g 5]
rorleatifiod oo A ks inoceme 17 1a 0 — 47 12 {329) {137 — (16)

A ol i s
e o) {94) (557} 17 = 146 44 208 {91) — 152)

s DUTTERY INCETEs] rate
AR Cemra

Apoent of

ieclansilied &E—-':ug-u.- inooese —_ _ —_ 40k — — e _— 370 .
ol

mtinﬂm e 5 - — — k) — —_ —_ — 748 e

Asof Japuary 2, 2022 and Jamuary 3, 2021, the following amounts were recorded on the consolidsted balance sheet related 1o cumalaive basis adjusiment
far fair value hedges

Cumulative Amount of Fair Value Hedging

Lire item in the Consolidated Balance Sheet in Adjustment Inchuded in the Carrying Amouant of
which the hedged itens is included Carrying Amount af the Hedged Liabiliy the Hedged Lishilicy

(Diallars in Milliom) Janaary 2, 2022 Jamuary 3, 2021 lamuary 2, 2022 Jamaary 3, 2021

Long-term Debi 5 9703 § —_ & (142 5 —

57
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The follawing table is the effec of derivatives not desigmated as hedging instrument For the fiscal years ended Janwary 2, 2022 and Janisary 3, 2001

Liseation of Gain Tervogmived in mﬁi‘
[Fllars in Millios) Ineine s e Income on Derkvative
Dertvatives Nt Desigmated an Hedging Instrsments lanuary 2. 2002 Linuary 2001
Fursign E husige Conoraits nher (income) expense 5 (k] 24

T Todlowing table is the elfea of et invesmment bedges Tor the fiscal years ended Janary 2, 2022 amd January 3, 2021

Crain[]nss) Lowadbnn of CGain ar (Lass) Bedlassilied (rom Crainl nss) Reclassilied Fram
Recogmioed Im Accummlated Dther Camprehensive Incame Accmmulated (:C1
Arcumulated CeC1 e Imiw | poome
(Dol in Millios) January 2, 2022 lanuary 3, 2021 January 2,2022  Mansuary 3, X121
Deht £ a\7 (473} Inienest {income] expense - -
Cress Currency indcrest rale
swaps £ 544 65 Interest [income) expense — —

The Compainy holds equity invesinents with readily determinable falr valwes am eqaity invesoments withour readily deserminable falr values. The
Company measures equity invesiments that do not have readily determinable fair valwes & cost minus impairmen, i any, plus or minus changes resulting
from chservable price changes in orderly ransactions for the |dentical or a similar investment of the samwe ssuer.

The lollowing table is a summary of the activity relaved 1o equily irvestments Tor e fiscal years emded RBanuary 2, 2022 and Januwary 3, 2021:

faruary 3, 2021 Jamuary 2, 2022
Canges in Falr Value
it el [ Met Sales/ o Current Ocher
(Lary in Millinas) Camying Value Ingoame ©! PunchuasesiOher™ Camying Value AR
Equity Inveaments with readily
determimbie value s 1,481 149 5 [F1E 2] 1,884
Equity Investments without reacdily
determinabic value 5 T34 o {632} 500 2]
Decembber 29, W14 January 3, 2021
Changes I Fair Value
Relleoted in Net Sales Non Currem Chher
(Phlars i Wlillier) Camying Yalue Imvgoamy: 1 PurchasesCOrher' ™ Carrying Value Assets
Eguity lavesiments with readily
determinable value L 1,148 527 194y 1,481 1481
Equilty lavestments withoul readily
determinable value 5 Ti2 (55) Al 738 738

T Roec omlead in Ciber licomeExpeise
¥ eacher |mchades impact of carency
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For the Tiscal years endied January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021 for equity imvestments wiihout readily determinable market valoes, 528 million and 576
millian, mspectively, of the changes in fair value refleced in net income wene the result of impairments. There wene offsetting impacts of 5422 million and
521 million, respectively, of changes in fair valoe neflecoed in net income due to changes in observable prices and gains on the disposal of imastmenis. The
I.mru;l in fiscal 2021 was driven hyilﬂ;' galm an disposal of the Grail invesimeni.

Fair value ks the exit price that would be recelved 1o sell am asset or paid to transier a lability. Fair value t= a market-based measurement determined ssing
assumpibons that market panicipanis would wse In pricing an asseq or Hability. In sccordance with ASC 820, a three-level hlerarchy to prositize the Inputs
used in measuring falr valse. The levels within the hlerarchy are described below with Level 1 having the highest priority and Level 3 having the lowest,

The fair volue of a derivative linanciol instrument (i.c., forword foreign exchonge conwrscts, ineres rae comraces) §s the aggregation by currency of all
Tuture cash flaws discourted b0 it peesent value at the prevailing market imenss rates and subsequently convened to the U5, Dollar at the current spot
forelgn exchange rae. The Company does not belleve that falr values of these dervative insrumemts materially differ from the amounes that coald be
realized wpon setilement or maiurity, or that the changes in fakr valoe will have a maienal effect om the Company s resulis of operations, cash lows or
financial posithon. The Company also holds equity invesiments which are classified as Level 1 and debi securities which are classified a5 Level 2. The
Company holds acquisition related comingent lisbilitbes based upon cemain regulacory and commerclal events, which are classified as Level 3, whase
values are determined using discounted cash flow methodologles or similar technigues for which the deermination of fabr value requires significast
Judgment or estimations.

The following three levels of inpuls are used 1o measure [sir value:

Level 1 Cunted prices in active markets for identical awsets and liabilities
Level 2 — Significant other ohservahle inpuis.

Level 3 = Significant unobservabile inputs.

The Company s significant fimncial assets and |iabilities measured av fair vaboe as of the fiscal year ended Jamery 2, 2022 and Jamary 3, 2021 wene as
Tallows:

202 2020
[Tl in Milliva | Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 ‘Total Toral ™
Derlvatives designated as hedging insorumenis:
Al
Forward forelgn exchange coniracs 5 — Sebld — 540 e L]
Interest rte conracs — 796 - 06 240
Towl 5 - 1,336 = 1136 1,089
Liabilithes:
Forward fareign exchange coniracts - 81 - A1 702
Interest rate contrscs 9 = L] = o7u 1,569
Total H = 1,850 - 1RG0 227
Derivatives not desipnaced as hedging Instrumenis:
Assets
Forward foreign exchange contracs H - 4 — 24 49
Liahilities:
Forward foreign exchange coniracs — b — E W
Available For Sale Other Investments:
Equlry [mvesiments™ 1,884 — — 1,884 1,481
Debt securities™ — 19,727 = 19,727 14,042
Diher Liabilides
Contingent Consideration'™ ] 333 333 633
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Girass 1o Met Derivative Reconciliation 021 2020

(Dl Rary b Alilhioma

Tuotal Gross Assets 5 1,360 1,134

Credin Suppoen Agreement (CSA) (1.285) {1,107}

Toeal Net Asset 75 kil

Tital Gross Liahilnies 1864 2301\

Ciredit Suppon Agresmen [C5A) (1LH55) (2£172)

Toeal Me Liabtlites 5 3 137

Summarised imformation alsout changes in Rabalivies for conringent consideraion i as fnllows:
021 2020 2019

[Tl by A sy
Beginning Balance 5 ] 1,715 7
Changes i estmnted (air valye ™ (52 {1,089) 151
Aldithons — 106 1,246
Payments (48] (99) 73
Ending Balance L1 533 B33 1,715

iy

i
ik
]
]

¥

2020 assers amd lishilities are all classifbed a5 Level 2 with the exception of equity invesiments of 51,481 million, which are classified as Leved 1 and
conlingen consideration of $633 million, classilied a8 Level 3.

Incliles cross curmency imerest rale swaps and |nterest male swaps.

Classified a8 non-currenl other assels.

Classified o cashi equivalents amid currenl marketable securities.

Includes 5520 million, S59%8 million and $1,631 million, classified & non-curent other labilibes as of January 2, 2022, lanuary 3, 2021 &nd
December 209, 2019, respectively. Includes $13 million, $39 million and 584 million classified as current liabilities os of January 2, 2022, Januory 3,
2021 amil December 29, 2019, respectively.

Cngodng fair value adjustment amounts are recarded primartly in Research and Development expense. The Company recorded a contingent
comsideralion reversal of 51,148 million in 2020 relatsd o the dming of certain developmental milestones associated with de Auris Health acquisition.
The reversal of the contingent comideration was recorded in Diber incame and expense.

See MNates 2 ard 7 for financial xsses and liabilites held ot carrying amount on the Consolidated Balance Sheer
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7. Barrowings
The compenents of long-term debt ane as (ollows:
Effective Rate Effective Rate

{Thelars in Mlillives) 2021 %o 2020 "
3.55% MNoves due 2021 -] == == M 50 367 %
245 Mobes due 2021 — — 50 248
1.65%: Motes due 2021 —_ - 999 1LES
0.250% Notes due 2002 (1B Eura 113007 18 Ewo 1.2281Y7

1,131 = 0.26 1,227 ™ 0.2
2.25% Notes due 2022 1.000 231 ha8 231
£, 73% Debentures due 2021 250 6,73 250 573
A375% Nows due 2023 HOZ 118 803 37
205%, Moves due 203 499 205 499 09
UGS 4
[muunmﬁzﬁwm Euro 12281} BT @ 0,68 919 o 0,68
5.50% Motes due 2024
(S00MM 13485 GBP 7™ 500MM GHP 13654 67l = 675 67Y = 675
2625% Notes due 2025 749 263 748 263
0.55%: Motes due 2025 983 0,57 4965 057
2.45% Motes due 2026 1,995 247 1,594 24T
205% Motes due H0ET 978 .96 w7 206
0L.95% MNotes due 2027 1ATE 0,96 1,494 0.0
L150% Notwes due 2028 (750MM Euro 1.1301) 750%M Eur
1.z2a1)™ By = L21 915 ™ L2
2.90% Mobes due 2028 1,495 2.91 1,495 291
BLE%: Notes due 2029 298 7.14 297 714
1.30% Notes due 20350 1723 1.30 1,743 L3O
4 95% Debentures due 2033 408 4.95 498 495
A375% Notes due 2003 54 4,24 #55 a4
JA50% Notes due 2005 (1,58 Euro L1301 F9(158 Eun 1L2281) LGAT @ L LEZT LEL
3.55% Notes due 2036 074 3.50 a5 3.59
5.96% Nobes due 20E7 993 5,99 992 599
3.625% Notes due 2007 1475 364 1,488 164
5.85% Debenures due 2008 6496 585 B9E 585
1 A000% Notes doe 2038 997 342 991 242
4.50% Debenmures doe 2040 S0 4,63 539 463
2.10% Motes due 2040 974 .14 486 214
4.05% Notes due 2041 297 4,0 297 4,549
4.50% Notes due 2043 496 4,52 496 @52
1.70%, Mores due 2046 1975 1.74 1574 374
1.75% Notes due 2047 571 3.76 591 476
1500% Notes due 2048 743 3.52 T2 52
L.250% MNotes due 2050 983 2.9 a4 .19
2A50% Notes due 2060 1,222 .49 1,228 249
(uher 7 — 7 -
Subeodal 3016 - 280 35 ik B4 AN 2ES % m
Less curmeni pomion 2131 1,799
Toaal lang-term deb 5 20,985 5 e

61
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T Weighted average effective rate.
@ Tenslation rse o Jamary 2, 2022
% Transdation rate st Sanuary 3, 2021,

" The excess of the falr value over the carrying value of detn was 532 blllion an the end of fiscal vear 2021 and $5.4 billlon ar the end of fiscal vear
2120,

Fair value of the long-term debt was estimabed using marked prices, which were corrabarated by quoted broker prices amid significam other obsesvable
inpues,

The Company has access 1o substantial souros of funds ai numerous banks wordwide, In Seprember 2021, the Company secured a new 364-day
Credin Facility. Total eredin available 1o the Company appeoximates $10 billion, which expires on Sepember B, 2022 Inerest charged on borrowings under
thee credit line agreement is hased on either the Tevm SOFR Reference Rate or cther applicable market rates as allowed ander the teomes of the agreemient,
plus applicable marging, Commiiment fees under the agreemenis are not material.

Throughout fiscal years 2021 and 2020, the Company continued to have access to lguidity through the commercial paper market, Shori-term
borrowings and the cumrent portion of long-term delt amoumed (o approximaiely $3.8 billion and 52,6 billios at the end of flscall years 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The current portion of the long term debt was $2.1 billion and $1.8 billion in 2021 and 2020, respectively, and the remainder is commercial
paper and local bormowing by international subsidiaries,

Thi cument debi balance &s of January 2, 2022 inclodes 1.6 billion of commercial paper which has a weighted average interest rate of 0.11% and a
weighied average matarity of approximaiely three months.

Agregate maturities of long-term debt ohligaiions commencing in 2022 ane:

{Mbsltars in Millism)
2023 233 k] 035 2036 Alter 2026
5213 1,551 1,518 1,732 1,995 23,180

B Income Taxes
The provision lor taxes on Income conslsis of:

[Thallars in Millican) 2021 2020 2019
Currently payable:

L5, 1axis & 1,545 1,046 1,541
Imematlonal axes 2,452 1,859 2,744
Teaal cumently payahle 1,977 2,924 4,665
Delerred:

LS, tunes 583 [Ty (814
Intermational axes {2,662) {1,065) {1.662)
Total defered {2.079) (1141} [2A476)
Provision for taxes on income % 1,808 1,783 2208
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A comparisan of income tax expense o the LS. sinmeory rate of 21% in fscal years 2021, 3020 and 2019, 1o the Company's effective ax re b o

{Wbellars i Milliss] 21 2020 0%
U5, 5 6,110 4,312 3543
Internaticnal 16,666 12,185 13,785
Eamings before wixes an [ncomie: 5 22,776 164597 17,324
Tax rbes:
L5, stalulory rale 21.0% 210 210
International operations 1 (164} (9.9) 59
LS, taxes on international income 4 6.7 .7 1.8
Tax benefits from lows on capital awen 13) ] nn
Tax benefits on share-hased compensation (1.0) (1.5 10.5)
TCIA amd related impacts {0.5) onr {309) ov
Alloaher {02) (o) 05

Rate B3 % 108 127
Tallows: L f————————— 1} f—————4

{41 For all pevicdy presevied ehe Company B subnadiacses ng, in Purrn Bico usder warious s mcensyrs, Inierasional fovems e[y the impacts of operatiom in parndiceons with
slallmnry Lan raes il Tevent tem the LS., pnmtuu.rlyhrh':r“w Swirrerland and Pusrin Rico, which is a Bavorstds mepac on de ofleoive sy re s compared with the LS. asneory mie, The
2421 b:dnchdrlk wshaidharies; the 3020 and 30159 smounts schade the impact of the new o begslation enscameni bn Swiizerland, both of which ae
Pl vl T

(27 Iechudes. ihe irmpoct of ik GALTT kax, H!Fwﬂp—%ﬂh-mﬁlmmhduhhﬂ et b taxabile wnder the ULS. dan oodie, The 2001 amounis nchude e
Mummmummnmm: 1ﬂgﬂﬂﬂrlﬁm b eruscmmenl in Swieerlind, both of which b henser dewcribed b,

(1) Hepreserss impact of alj o balas w pecorded as gt of dhe 3057 TCIA proviional iex charge, Forther Infomaiion provided below

The fiscal year 2021 tax rate decressed by 2.5% compared to the fiscal year 2000 tax rate, which was primarily driven by ihe following items. In fiscal vear
2121, the Campaiy reangnized the owership siruchire of certain wholly -owned international subsddiaries. As part of this reanganization, e Corigrany
Increased the tax basks of cenaln assets 1o fair value in sccondance with applicable local regulatdons. The net impact of this resiacouring was approximanely
S04 biilkion net benefitor 2.7% benefi 1o the Company™s annual effective tax rate, comprised af the following fems:

= approsimaiely $2.3 billion of loeca] deferred 1ax sscets w0 record the remeasurement of the e basis of these asses o fair value, this benefin has
been reflected as “Internstional Operations” an the Company's effective 1ax rse reconciliotion.

*  approximately $1.7 billion of ULS. delemed tax expense relating o the GILTT delermed tax Habiliyy resulting from the remeasurement of tbese
deferred oy assets. This expense has been reflected a5 =U.%. tax on international income™ on the Company*s eflective 1ax rate reconciliation.

Also, in the Fiscal fourth quanter of 2021, the Company recognized o boss on certain LS. affiliates related w ihe previously impaired hook value of certain
intangibles, which redhsced the 2E21 tax rave by approximately 1.3% which is reflected as 8 “Tix benefis from loss on capital assets™ on the elfective o
rate reconciliaton. Addidonally other fiscal 2021 Impaces 1o the rate were primarily driven by litgaton and acouisition related bems as follows:

+  the Company accroed additional legal expenses, of approximately 1.6 billion for talc at an effective tax mte of 23.5% and 50,8 ballion for
Rispendal setbements ai an effective tax mee of 16,4% (See Note 19 1o the Consolidated Financial S2atemenss for more details),

= the Company recanbed a partial IFR&D charge of $0.9 billien for the Ouava intangible asset (acouired with the Auris Healif acgudsition in 2009)
atan effective roe of 22.4% (See Notes 5 and 1 o the Consolikned Financlal Starements for more details)

The fiscal year 2020 tax rate decreased by 1.9% compared to the fiscal year 2009 ax rate. which was primarily driven by ihe follewing lems. In fiscal vear
2019, Swierland enacted the Federal Act on Tax Reform and AHY Financing (TRAF) which became effective on January 1, 2020, The Federal
transitlonal provisions of TRAF alow companies, under certain conditions, 10 adjust the tax basis in certain assets 1o fair valoe (Le., “sep-up™) o be
depreciated and amonized resulting in an incremental Swiss tax deducton aver the mansitlonal period.

TRAF alsn pravides for parameters which enable the Swiss cantons 10 estahlish localieed 1ax raves and regulations for companies. The pew cantonal &
parameters include favarahle tax benelits for petents and sdditional reearch and development
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tax deductbons. The cantonal ranskional provisions of TRAF allowed companles v elect efther 1) tax basls sieg-up similar to the Federal ramsition benefin
or X} aliemative statatory tax raie for a period nod io exceed 5 years, The Com Llpal'l‘_lf currenily has operations located in varkous Swiss camtons. During the
fiscal wear 2009, a5 described in further detall below, the Company reconded the impacis of the TRAF that were enacted im that period.

During the fiscal year 2020, the final canlan where the Conpany malnains sigailicant operations enacted TRAF legislation. Additionally, the Company
received malings from the Swiss Federal and cantonal tax authosities in the remaining jurisdictions whene it has significant operations. These milings
resuliedd i the Company revising its estimate on the tax basis acljustment fi.e, “stepeap™) foeits asets and as a resull, the Company reconded additional
deferred ax benelis in 2030, The Company recognized a net benefi In the Ascal year 2020 lor Swiss Tax Reform of approximately 30,4 billion or 2.6%
benedit 1o the Company s annual effective L e, comprised of the following iems

= approximaely $0.3 billion wax benclin relating 1o the remessurement of Swiss delerred s osses and liabilites bor the change n il Federal and
castonal tax rales, where eaaciment occurmed i ihe fiscad year 2020; this benelin has been refllected as *Intemational Operations™ on the
Company ‘s effective tax rae reconciiaton.

* 3 5450 million deferred tax assei related 1o the estimated value of a Federal 1ax basis step-up of the Companys Swiss subskllaries” assets as
described above; this benefir has been reflecied as “ Inemational Operations™ on the Company®s effeciive tax rate reconciliation.

+  approximately $0.3 billion of U.S. defemed tax expense relating 1o the GILT] deferred tax Labiliyy resulting from the remeasurement of the Swiss
deferred ax assets and liabllides in the fiscal year 2040, This benefit has boen reflected as “US. tax on intermathonal Income™ on the Company's
effective tax rate reconcll latbon,

The Company does ool expect o receive luiure mulings reganding the transiional provisions of TRAF.

Alsi, 0 W Fiscal year 2000, (e Company recogmized o capital less on certain LS. affiliates related o be previously imgaired book value of cemain
Intangibles, which redwsced the 2020 tax rate by approximately 1.2% which is reflecied as a *Tax benefits from loss on caplial assers™ on the effective tax
raee reconciliation. In addition, inthe fiscal year 2040, the Company hisd lower income in higher tax jurisdictions, primarily driven by:

= ihe impact of the acenial af litigation costs related bo tale for $4.0 billion which rechiced the LS, eamings befane taxes ot an effective tax raie of
135%;

= the acomal of additional legal costs, inchading an additional $1.0 billien associated with o revised agreemens in peinciple w setile opiaid Etigation
at an effective 1ax rate of 21.4%

The Commpaty also redced thi contingent consideration liahiliy relaied to ibe Airis Health acgquisition (iee Nete 18) asd reversed al some of s
unrecognized tax benefis due to the completion of several years of tax examinatiens in certain jurisdictions during the fiscal year 2020,

In fiscal year 2009, the Company reorganized the ownership stucture of ceriain wholly-owned intermational subsidiaries in the fiscal fourth guarter of
2009, which resulted in a reduction of certain withholding and Jocal s that it had previously recognized a part of the provisional Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
[TCIA) tax change in the fiscal year 2007 and finalized in the fiscal vear 2018, Following the completion of this restnucturing amd approval by the
applicable local auhorities, the Company reversed a deferred tax lability of $0.6 billioa amd a related deferred tax asset of $0.2 billion for LS. foreign tax
credits, for a net defemed wx benefil of 5004 billion decressing the anneal elfective ax rate by 2.2%. This besefit has been reflected as “TCIA and refsted
irupam- o the Company’s effective lax rte reconciliation, The following fems also impacied the fiscal year 2019 effective tax rate

This impact of the agreemaent in principle w setle opicid lidgsion for 54 billion (see Note 19 o e Consolidaped Financial Staements) which

rechiced the LS. eamings before taxes anan effective ax rae of 23.5% and decreased the Company's annual effective tax rae by approximanely

L1%.

= In December of liscal year 2019, the U.5, Treasury issoed final foreign tox credin regolations, which resubted in the Company revising the amouni
el Foreign 1ax credies thal were [nltally recorded in the Tiscal year 2017 as pan of the provisional TCIA tax charge. As a resuly, e Company
reconded an increased defermed 1ax asset related oo these foreign @x credios of approcimanely $0.3 billion or 1.7% o the annual effenive ax me,
This benefir has been reflected as “TCIA and relsied impacts™ on the Company's effective 1ax rate reconclliaton.

#  The Company reassessed (rs uncerain tax positions redated 1o the current 1RS audit and increased (s unrecognized rax benefin by %0.3 billion
lability which increased the anmual effective wax rate by approximately 1.5% {see section on Unrecognized Tax Benefiis for additional
Infmrmation). As these positions were related 1o ancerain tax reganding intemational ransfer pricing, this expemse has been classifled as
“International Operatlons” an the Company®s effectlve tax rate reconciliation,
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As described above for the Swiss tax legislation, in the fiscal year 2019, the Company recorded a net tax expense of $001 billion which Incressed the

effective tax rate for the fiscal year 2019 by approximately [0L6%. This et tax expense related to federal and cerain cantonal enaciments in ibe fiscal year
2009 consising of the fallowing provisions:

*  approcimately $0.6 hillion tax expense relating to the remeasurement of Swiss deferred tax assets and liabilnies for the change in the Federal and
camtonal tax rates, where emaciment ocourmed by December 25, 201%; this expense has been reflected as =Intemational Operadons™ on the
Company's effective tax rae reconcillation,

* o 509 bilkon deferred wax asset related w the estdmated valoe of a Federal tax basls step-up ol the Companys Swiss subshllaries’ assets; this
beenefit has been reflecied as “Imernational Chperations™ on the Company's effective tax rate reconciliation,

+  approximately 3250 million of ULS, deferred tax expense relating 1o the GILT] defermed tax liabilicy resulting, from the remeasurement of the Swiss
deferred tax assets and liabilites and the new defermed tax asset for the Federal siep-up. This benefin has been reflecied as “ULS. fax on
intemational income™ on the Company s effective tax rabe reconciliation.

Temporary dilferences omd carrylorwards atthe end of liscal years 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

2021 Deferved Tax 2020 Deferred Tax'™

(Dhollars in Millipns) At Liabifity Assel Liabiliny
Employee nelated obligations s L2434 414

Stock hased compensation 679 627
Depreciation of property, plant ansd equipment (B76) (B23)
Goodwill and inangibles (2,659) = (5,023)
RE&D caplialized for tax 1,654 1517

Feesarrves & liabilities 2,882 3400

Income reparted for Ly pursoses 2566 1,777

MNet realizable operating koss carrylopasand 1073 k]

Undistributed forckgn samings 1,015 [1,461) Bz (1,415)
Global intangible how-taxed Income (8,B53) {3,606)
Miscellaneous. intematiosal 100G (39) B&4 211)
Miscellanemms LS, 495 (2]
Tonal deferved income xes 5 12,624 [T 12477 (11,157)

15 preain prinr year amimungs have been peclassified o confom m currem year perseseazinn
Bamaount s inclisive of the $2.3 hillinn defemed tax asust established as part of the morganined pwnership structine of cemain whollyosmed infermational sibsidiaries, a
previnusty desoribed

The Company has wholly-owned intemational subsidiaries that have cumulative net losses, The Compainy believes that it (s more likely than not that these
subsidiiaries will generate fulure aabde income sufliciEnd w milize Qese defernsd tax sses, However, in cenain jorisdictions, vauation allowances have
e recorded against deberred ay assets for loss camrylonwards ihat are not more Lkely than ned to be realieed. Such valustion allowances are nod material.

Thee frdleweing eablie smmarizes the activity related 1o imrecognined tax benefits:

(Thedairs ian lillivsmns ) B0zl 2020 o1s

Beginning of year 5 3373 3853 3am
Increases related o cument year tax poshions 242 265 249
Increases relaved to prior peviod 1ax positions n GG 408
Decreases. related 1o prior period wx positions {128) {351} (15)
Senlemenis {167} (B9) )]
Lapse of statute of Hmbations. 0 (23} [16)
End of year 5 330 3373 3853
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The umrecognized cax bemefits of $3.3 billloa at January 2, 2022, If recognized, would affect the Compamy®s anmual effective tax rate. The Compamy
conducis business and Files tax retums In numerous coantries and cument by has tax audits in p with a number of tax avihorities. With to the
United Suates, the RS has compleved {15 audin for the tax years thaowgh 30012 and s currenly auﬁulng 1ax years 2003 through 2006, In the fiscal year 2020,
the Company made its final payments for approximately 30,7 billion o the LS, Treasary related 1o the final settlement of 2000-2012 tax audin lability,

Im caher major jurisdictions where the Company conducts business, the years that remain open o tax audit go back to the year 2008, The Company believes
it is passible that tax audies may be completed over the next twebye mamths by taxing authorities in some jursd ictions outside of the United States,
However, the Company ks nm able 1o provide a reasonzably reliable estimate of the dming of any other fure tax paymens relsing v uncerain tax
peritinnes.

The Company classifies liabilites for unrecognized 1ax benelits and relsted ingerest and penalibes as long-term Robilicties, except as previously noed on
ameints related 1o the current Unived States IRS audil. Inlerest experse and penaliies related 10 uirecognized 1ax benelis ane classified as income lax
expense. The Company recognized afver s inserest expense of $44 million, $32 million and $50 milllon 0 tiscal years 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectvely.
The 1otad amount of accrued interest was 3512 million and $468 million in fiscal years 2021 and 2020, respectively.

o, Employes Related Ohligations
At the end of fiscal 2021 amd fiscal 2020, employvee related abligations reconded an the Corsolidased Balance Sheets were:

[Dollarrs: by Al fsrrs | 2021 2020

Persion bemelits 5 4,188 3,761
Postretirement benefis 2069 2,229
Postemployment benefits 3z 3078
Deferred compessation 181 250
Toaal employes obiligabcos 9455 11,318
Less current bemelits payable 557 547
Employee related obligations — non-current i !'i'.'_ IIF'.H

Prepaid employee related oldigations ol $4,436 nuillon and 3656 million for 2021 ad 2020, respectively, are included in Other asets on the Consolidate)
Balance Shees.
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10, Pensions and Other Benefit PLans

Thee Compaiy spomsors varisus retrement id penston plans, Incloding defined benefiy, delined conmibution and seomination indemnity plans, which cover
most employess worldwide, The Company alse provides post-retirement benelis, primarily bealthcare, to all eligible U, retined emplovees and their
dependents.

Manmy inlemational emplovees ame covered by govermmeni-spansored programs and the cost o ithe Company s not significant.

In the LS, nos-union pension benefits for emplovees hired before Janvary 1, 2015 are primarily based on the employee’s compensation during the las five
years hefore retirement amd the number of years of service (the Final Average Fay formula). U5, pension bemeflts for employees hired after 2014, are
calculated usirg a differem formula based on employee compensation ever 1dal years of service (the Retirement Valse formula).

In Januvary 2021, the Company amnminced tha, elfective on January 1, 2026, all eligible U5, non-union employees,

regandlcss of hire date, whll sarm benefis under the Betirement Value foemula. This smenidment does not alfect the benelis

accruid under the Final Average Pay fomula (or service before Tanuary 1, 2026, The impact of tis change decresses the

Projected Benellt Obligation & of January 3, 2021 by approximarely $1.8 billion and is included in the “Amendmens” line in the Change in Benefic
Oiigation.

Intermatinnal subsbilianies have plans user which fuiels dre deposited with erstes, aimidies are puenchased dndes group conlrces, o reerve are froviied.
The Company does not fumd retiee healthcane benedits in atvance and has ibe right io modily ihese plans in the oo,
In 2021 and 2020 the Company wsed December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively, as the measurement date for all U.S. and international

retirement and other benefie plans.

Mt periodic benefit costs for the Company s defined beneffit retirement plans amd other benelit plans for 2021, 2020 and 2009 include the following
commpanen ks

Retiremeni Plans Other Benelit Plans

(ialans bin Ml iwns 2021 2020 2009 2021 2020 2015

Service cost 5 1421 1,380 1163 ET) 287 74
Irerest cost T 955 1,066 il 133 185
Expected retum on plan assets [2.645) [2461) [2.321) 7 (7 (6
Amorizatbon of prior service eos (L1} ] 2 i {31 {in) {31
Recognized acsarial bosses (galns) 1,257 431 579 151 142 1249
Curtadlments and setlemenis 1 23 73 — — —
Nt perboclic benefit cos 5 623 a0 593 503 524 551

Thee service cost component of net perfodic benefit cost Is presented in the same line items on the Consolidaed Smement of Eamings where otber
employes compensation costs are reported, including Cost of producis sold, Research and development expense, and Selling, marketing and adminisrative
expenies. All other contponenis of pet periodic benefin cost are presented as pan of Other (income) expense, net on the Consolidaced Statement af
Earnings.

Unrecognized gains and lotses for the U5, pevsion plans are amortized over the sverage remaining lore Service [or each plane For plans sith no active
employes, they are amortized over the average life expectancy. The amonization of gains and losies for the other U5, benefit plans is determined by wsing
a 10% corridar af the greater of the market value of assets o the scoumulated postretirement beneflit obligation. Toeal vnamontized gaim aad losses in
excess ol the comidor are amonieed over the average remadning futune service

Prior service costshenefits for the U5, pension plans are amortized over the average remaining, future service of plan participanis at the time of the plan
amendment. Prior service costbenefit for the other LS, benefi plans is amontized over the average remaining service to full eligibiliny age of plan
panicipasts at ithe time of the plan amendment,

&7
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Retirement Plans Other Benefit Plans
Worldwidle Benefit Plans 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 Pl k]
Met Periodic Benefit Cost
Service cost discount rabe 214 % 282 362 2.9 304 4,45
Innerest cost descount rate 234 % 343 4.13 pc 308 4.5
Faee of increase i compensation levels 401 % 4.00 3495 4.25 415 4.9
Expected bong-term rate of return on plan assets 771% 812 831
Benefit Obligation
[Hscoum e 249 % 214 291 268 2713 339
Rare of increase i compensation levels 401 % 4.00 4.01 4N 4.7 .29

The Company's discount raies are determined by considering current yield curves representing high quality, long-term fixed income instuimenis, The
resulting discouni rates are conskstent with the duration of plan Habilithes, The Company's methodology in determining service and Interest cost uses.

durathon specific spot rtes along thai yield curve io the plans’ Labiliy cash Aows,

The expected rtes of retum on plan asse assumptions represent the Company's assessment of bong-term retums on diversified invesiment pontfolios
globally. The assessment ks determined using projections from extemal financlal sources, long-term historical averages, actisa] redums by assel class and the

varlous asset class allocatlons by marker.

The following table displays the assamed healthcare cost trend rates, for all individwals:

Healthcare Plans

Healthcane cost tend rate assumed for next year
Haee to which the cost trend rate s assumed 1o diecline (uliimane treemd)

Year the rate reaches the ullimate rend e

568 %
449 %
2040
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The liotlowing table seis fonh information relaied o the benefii obligatbon and e far value of plan assets o fiscal year-end 2021 aml 2020 for the
Company's defined benefin rtirement plans and other post-netirement plans;

Retirement Plans (rther Benefit Plans

[Mhelars in Millioss | 2021 2020 2021 00
Change in Benelis Obligation
Frojected benefit obligation — beginning of year 5 43,300 it 188 RG] 53,076
Service cosl 1,421 1,380 09 27
literest oo T 55 1] 133
Plan panicipant conributions &7 61 - -
Amncmisn s’ 3 {1, 7H0) -_— —
Actuarial [gains) losses™ (2.132) 5716 {184) (75}
Divestitures & acquisitions 2 {(B) - -
Curntailments, seatlements & reseruciuring L} (24) = —
Benelits pasd From plan {1,157) [1,111) (348) {396)
Effect of exchange rawes (6a3) 1,03 (4) 3
Projected benefit obligation — eml of year - 41,582 43,300 4,878 5,008
Change in Plan Assets
Plan asees af fair valoe beginning ol vear % 195 32301 90 115
Aciual retwm on plan assets 445 5,524 17 14
Company contributions. ) i 3 a57
Plan participant contributions a7 6l = -
Serlements (k4] {13) — —
Divestitunes & acquisiions L] (84) = =
Beaelis paid fom plan et {1,157) TRTTN {348) {396)
Effect of exchange rtes (574} 747 — —
Plan assets at fair valoe — end of vear R Y 102 L
Funded stans — el of vear s 48 {5,105) (4,776) (4,9:30)
;m“n:mmhtd in the Company ‘s Balance Sheet consist
MNom-cument assets 5 4,436 656 — —
Curment liahilities {1154 {125) [434) (418
Mom-ciment Habilities (1.971) {5, 56) {4,3385) {4,530)
Total recogaized inthe consolidated balance sheet — endof vear 3 3 (5,003) 4,776) (4,9H)

Comprehensive
e
MNet actuarial fnss ] 553 10,860 1,113 1,463
Prior service cost (credit) (1610 {1,797) {13 (4}
Unrecognized net ransition ohligation ot —_ —_ —_
Todal before 1ax effects 3 8k 1Mt 1,108 1419
Accumulated Benefit Obligations — end of year ¥ 9,049 40,356

" Jamary 2021, meﬂmwunv{imwmed tha, effective on Ramaary 1, 2026, all eligtble ULS. non-union m?lujmes. regardiess of hine date, will eam

Emills u%ﬁm Retirement Value formula, This amendment does not affect the benefits acoroed wnder the Final Average Pay formula for service befone
uary 1,

e aovsarial galn for redeement plamss in 2021 was primaily related oo increases. in discoun rages; the actuaral losses for revioensent plans [n 2620 were

primasily related to decreases in discount rates.
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Hrtiremeni Plams Diler Benefit Plans
[ el i Millio | 2zl 2020 2021 2020
Amounts Recognized in Net Perindic Benefit Cost and Other
Comprehensive Income
Net perbodic benefil cos 5 623 90 503 54
Mt actuarial (gain) boss {3,927 2616 {199) [R1)
Amonizatbon of net actuarial loss (1257) B9y {151} {1:42)
Prior service cost (credit) 5 [1,780) — —
Amortizathon of prior service (cost) credit 181 (2 31 |
Effect of exchange rates {1361 293 — 1
Total income) recognized in other comprehensive income,
h:-fnrklf:‘l{ ! {5,134} 236 (219) {141
Total recogaized in net perodic benefit cost amd other
comprehensive inoome 5 (4.511) 1,02k 184 333

The Company plans to continue i fund is U5, Cualified Plans to comply with the Peesion Protection Ao of 2006, Intemational Plans are funded in
accordance with local regulations. Additional discretionary coniributions are made when deemed appropriate to meet the long-term obligazions of the plans,
Fuor cerialn plms. fumding; is moi o common |II.!:I|.{I,‘| s funding ru'nv]l.ln 1 economic '||c|||.'rl.Cn,l1m|er|y_. il '.:llﬂll'hdll.}' has several pﬂlhlull s thai
are nod fumde,

In 2021, the Company contributed $102 millkon and 5867 milllon o s U.S. and inmemational pension plans, respeciively.

The following table displays the funded stamos of the Company's U5, Cualified & Non-Crualifted peasion plans and interational funded and unfunded
pension plans a1 December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively:

L5 Plams Incermatinmal Plans

Quiadilied Plans Non-Clualified Plans Funded Plans Umlumaled Mans
MBelkirs in Millias| 02y 2020 0zl 2020 2021 2020 Pl Hozn
Plan Assets 5 17944 25,554 — — 13,986 12,641 — —
Projected Benefit Obligation 250441 25466 2,703 2,748 13,428 14,541 410 545
Accumulated Benefin Obligation 23985 24,158 2,479 2,485 12,212 13,210 373 4453
Over (Unider) Funded Stams
Projected Benelil Obligation 5 a0 BB (WG] (2.748) 550 11,900) ) 1545)
Accimailated Beneflt Obigation 3,459 1.396 (2.479) [2.495) 1774 (565) (373) {493)

Plans with accumulated beneflt obligations in excess of plan assets have an accumuilated benefit obligathon, projected benefin obligation and plan assets
ol 3.9 billion, 5.2 billion and $0.3 billion, respeciively, a1 the end of 3021, and 8.8 billlon, $9.8 billion and $4.4 billion, respectively, anthe ead of 20020,

The fodlowing table displays ibe projecied fumre besefic payments from tbe Company s redrement and oher benefic plans:

(Mhallars in Millioa) 202 Fora) 4 i rs] Jare 20272031
Projected future benefii paymenis

Retirement plans -3 1317 1,386 L2 1456 1572 9.xm
ubwer benefii plins 5 447 454 472 485 434 2,378

The following table displays ithe projected future minimum conribuiions 1o the unfunded retrement plans. These amounts do not include any discreslonary
consribwmions thi the Company may eheot 1o make [ the futire,

T FAT T i i 2 x4 i) Py 202720010
Projected future coniributions 5 114 19 126 133 139 o4

Each pension plan s overseen by a local committes or board that s responsible for the overal] adminiaation and invessmem af the pension plans, In
determining imvestment policies, srabegies and goals, cach committee or board considers faciors
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including, local pension miles and regulations; local tax regulations; availability of investmemt vehicles (separabe accounis, comminghed accounts, insurance
funds, ete. }; fumded status of the plans; mtio of actives o retirees; domion of labilites: and other relevam faoors incloding: diversification, Hguidity of
local markets and liguidity of base curmency, A majarity of the Company's pension funds are open (o new entrants and are expected 1o be co-going plans.
Fermiited imvestments are primarily Tiquid ambor lsted, with lithe melianoe on illiquid and non-traditional invesmenis sich as hedge funds.

The Companys retirement plan asset allocation at the end of 20021 asd 2020 and arget allocatlans for 2022 are as follyws:

Pl Asss Allocaion
Hix1 2030 )
Worldwide Retirement Flans
Equity securities 65 66 % Gl %%
Dbt securitics 35 e 33
Total plan assets 104 % 100 % 100 %

Determination of Fair Valoe of Plan Asseis
The Plan has an established and well-documented process for determining fair values, Fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where available. If
listed prices or quotes are not available, fair value is based upon models that primarily use, as inputs, markei-hased or independently sourced market
parameters, Including yield curves, interest rates, volatllites, equity or debt prices, foreign exchange aies and oredid curves,

While the Plan believes its valuation methods amre appmopriace and consistent with other market panticipants. thee use of different methodologies or
assumpaions 1o determine ihe fair valoe of cenain financial inscrements could result Ina different estimaie of Fair value 310 the reparting, dase,

Valuaten Hierarchy
The authariative Heerature establishes a three-level hiemchy o prioritize the inputs used in measuaring fale value, The levels within the hierarchy are

described in the able below with Lesel 1 havieg the highest priosity and Level 3 having the lowess,
The Met Asset Value (MAY) Is based on the value of the underying assets owned by the fund, minuws s Habilites, and then divided by the mmber of shares
outskanding.

A financial instrament”s categorization within the valaation hicrarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significans w the fair valoe
MeasuEeEment,

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for the investments measuned a0 fair value,

= Shorr-ferm imestment funds — Cash and quoted shom-term instrumems are valued at the closing price or the amount held on deposit by the
custedian bank. Other Invesmments are through imvestment vehiches valued wsing the NAY provided by the administranor of the fund The NAV s a
fusted price In a market that & not active and classified as Level 2.

*  Government and ogency securibles — A lmbved mumber of these investmeents ane valied at the clesing price reported on the major market on
which the individual securities are traded. Where quoted prices are avatlable in an active market, the invesiments are classified within Level 1 of
the valuation hierarchy, If quoted market prices are not avallable for the specilic security, then fair values are estimabed by using pricing models,
quoted prices of seomities with similar chamoeristics or discounted cash flows, When quoted market prices for a security ane not available in an
active market. they are classified as Level 2,

* Dbt instruments — A limited number of these invesiments are valued 3t the closing price reported on the major market on which the individual
securities are traded, Where quoted prices ane avallable in an active marked, the investmends are dassified as Level 1, If quosed market prices ane
it avallable for the specific security, then fair values are estimabed by using pricing models, quobed prices of securities with similar
characteristics or discownied cash flows and are dlassified as Level 2, Level 3 debe instmiments ane prioed based on unobservabde inputs,

*  Equity securities — Equity securities are valued at the closing price reported an the major market om which the individual securites are irmded.
Subsianilally all equiry securitles are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy,

*  Commingled funds — These invesiment venicles are valued using the NAY provided by the fund adminisrator. Assets in the Level I category
have a quoted market price.

k|
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*  Cuher assets — Oaber assets ane represented primarily by limied parmerships. These invesomami wehicles are valued wsing the NWAY provided by
the fund adminisirator, Other assets that are exchange listed and actively traded are classified as Level 1, while imactively troded assets are

clssified as Level 2.

Thee follenwing table sets forth the Retirement Plans’ invesiments measured at faie value ss of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

wated Prices Signilicaimt
im Adtive Oahir Significam
Markets lor hmervable L rvalide Tivesimmenis Measrned
Identical Asseis Inpais Inguis™! ai Mel Azsei Value
[Lawel 1) [Level 23 {Lrvel 3) Total Azsets
[Inalars i Ml 2021 0 02 2020 E021 a0 2021 D0 2021 2020
Shom-tenm Investmem
funds 5 10z 127 1,033 763 — — - - 1,135 Han
Gawernment and agenc
securities 4 - —_ 7,016 5023 - - — - 7.016 5021
Dbt instruments — —_ 3,505 3931 - -_ —_ - 350G 3,931
Equiry securities 14,107 14,375 2 ¥ — — — — 14,104 14,377
Commingled funds — - 5,406 4,650 10 160 708 8,736 14,304 13,086
ke ossers — — k] 11 15 21 1,807 ] 1,856 Has
Tivestmenis an fair
value £ 14,205 14,502 17,086 14,430 120 181 10,515 8,082 41,530 38,195

Tl acuiviny for die Level 3 assets bs st significan for all years prosessed.

The Commpany's Other Benefit Plans are unfusded excepd for U.S. commimgled hinds {Livel 2) af S$102 million and 590 milllon s December 31, X021 and
Drecember 31, 2020, respectively.

Thie fair waloe of Jobnson 8 Johnson Cormmon Steck directly held in plan asets was $385 millien (0,.9% of iedal plan ascets) a1 December 31, 2021
arwd $846 million (2.5% of total plan asseis) at December 31, 20240,

11, Savings Plan

The Company has valuniary $01(k) savings plans designed to enbance the existing retirement programs covering eligible employees, The Company
matches a percentage of each emplovee’s contribations consistent with the provisions of the plan for which beshe is eligible, Total Company matching
contribustions o the plans wene $256 million, 5243 million and 5235 million in fiscal years 2021, 2020 aml 20019, respectively,

2
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12. Capital and Treasury Steck
Changes in treasury stock were:

| Ameszeis in Willisms Excrpt Tremary SMock Shanes b Thoussnd|
Balance at December 30, 2018

Emplover compensatien and stock option plans
Repurchage of common sock

DBalance at December 29, NS

Employes compensation and stock aption plans
Repurchase of common stock

Balance a1 lanuary 3, 2021

Employee compensation and stock aption plans
Repurchase of common sock
Balamce st Jamuery 2, 2022
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Treasary S4ock
Shares Amoam
457519 8 34,362
(20,05%) (2,691)
49,870 6,746
487,136 AT
[21,765) (3, 148)
21,760 3.221
487,331 Af490
(17, 3549) (2,B47)
20,9406 3ASG
490,878 & 39,0949

Apgregaie shares of common stock ssued were approximately 3, 119,843,000 shares at the end of fiscal years 2021, 2020 and 2005

Cash dividends paid were $40.19 per share in fiscal vear 2021, compared with dividends of $3.98 per share in liscal vear 2020, snd $3.75 per share in fiscal

year 210

O January 4, 2022, 1ihe Boand of Direciors declared o regular cash divideid of 51.06 per shate, payable on March 8, 2022 1o shareholders of jecond as

of February 22, 2022,

On December 17, 2018, the Company announced that is Board of Direciors approved a share repurchase program, authorizing the Company o
purchase up to $5.0 hilllon of the Company's shares of comman ssock. This share repurchase program was completed as of Seprember 29, 2019,

11 Accumulated Chiher Comprebensive Incoonse (Loss)
Companents of ather comprebensive income (hss) consist of the following:

Gain! .ﬂtﬂl“;L.ld

l:ulr"::r Giasin/(Losa) O Emjsloyer Benefit D:ﬂl-?:i::ﬂ- C-rnpt:}:mlw
(Thellams in Mo L Lati Securities Plans Heelges Incanse {Liss)
December 30, 2018 5 (8,36) — i6,158) (195) (15.222)
Mt 2005 changes 164 — (T33) {100} (G69)
December 29, 2019 {#.705) — {6,591 (295) (15,891}
Mt 2020 changes (233) 1 {66) w7 Gt
January 3, 2021 (B93) | (6,957) 652 (15.242)
Mt 2021 changes {1,079} (4) 4,255 (B8] 1,184
January 2, 2022 5 (0017 i 12.702) 1336) (83,0581

Amaounis in acoumulated other comprehensive income are presenied net of the related tax impact. Foreign comency translatian is not adjusted for income
taxes where It relaies o peemanest imvesiments in intemational suhsidiaries, For additional details on comprehensive income see the Consalidaied

Statemenis af Comprehensive Income,

[retails on reclassifications out of Accumulated Other Comprefensive Income;

Gain{Loss) On Securities - reclassifications released 1o Other (income) expense, net,
Employee Benefit Plans - reclassifications ane included im niet perindic benefit cost. See Note 10 for additonal deaiks.
GaingLass) On Derivatives & Hedges - reclassifications 1o eamings are recorded in the same accownit a5 the hedged innsaction, See Note 6 for

achfifinnal details.
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14, Imtermational Currency Translation

For tramslation ol its subsidiaries operating in non-LLS. Dallar currencies, the Company has determined that the local cumencies of s iniemational
subsidiaries are the hunctional cumrencies except those in highly inflationasy economibes, which ane defined as those which have had compound comulative
rates of inflation of 1002 or mare during the past three years, or where a substantial ponion of its cash Mows are not inthe local currency, For the majarity
af the Company's subsidiaries the local currency is the functional cumency.

In comsalikaing international subsidiaries, balance sheet curmrency elliects are recordied as 2 companent of accumulaied olber comprehenséve income,
The other current and mon-Curmens assets line within the Stsement of Cash Bows inchodes the impact of forelgn cummency ranslation, This equity accoum
Includes the results of ranslaling cerain halance sheet assets and liabdlites at cument exchange rates and some accounts ai historical rates, except for those
located in highly inflationary economies, (Amgenting amd Vepezoela) The tanslation of balasce sheet acoounts for highly inflationary ecanomies ane
reflected in the operating resulis,

A rollforwand of the changes durimg fiscal years 2021, 2030 and 2009 Tor foreign curmpcy ranstation adjustments is included in Nove 13,

Met cumency transaction gains and losses included in Other (income) expense were losses of 5236 million, $209 milllan and 3267 million In fiscal
vears 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

15. Earnings Per Share
The Tollowing is a reconcifiation of basic net earmings per share o dilused net eamings per share for the acal years ended Tanvary 2, 2022, Janwary 3, 2021
ard December 25, 20049

(L Millinns Excegn Per Share Amounish 2021 2020 2019

Basic net camings per share 5 7.53 559 572
Average shares outstanding — baskc 263X 26338 26451
Fotential shares exercisable under stock option plans. 1380 183 1363
Less: shares reparchased under ereasury stock methad (06 1) {f0,4) {97.8)
Convertible deby shares — = oy
Aaljusied average shares outstanding — eliloted 2HTAD 26707 2R3
Diluted net carnings per shame 5 751 5.51 563

The dluted net earmings per share calculation for fiscal year 2021 inclisded all shares related to stock options, as the exercise price of these oplions was less
tham the average market valee of the Company's stock. As of January 2, 2022, the Company did not have convenible deba.

The diluied et carmings per share calculation bor fscal year 2000 excluded 18 million shares related to stock options, a8 the exercise price of these options
was greater than the average market valoe of the Company's stock, As of January 3, 2021, the Company did not have convertible deba.

The daluied med parmangs per share calculation bor fiscal year 2009 excluded an insignilicanmt number of shares related 1o stock options, ad the exencise price
al these pptions was greater than the aversge marked value of the Compamy's stock, The dilued net earmings per share caloulation for fiscal yvear 2019
included the dilmive elfen of convertible debi thin was offset by the related reduction in interess expense of 51 million after-ax.

16. Commion Stock, Steck Option Plans and Steck Compensation Agreements

At Jaimry 2, 2022, e Comparny had 2 stsck-based compensation plans. The shares ouistanding are for contracts under the Conipany's 2005 Long-Term
Incentive Plan and the 2012 Long-Term Incentive Flan. The 2005 Long-Term Incentive PMlan expired April 26, 2002, All options and resoriceed shares
granted subsequent 1o that daie were under ihve 2012 Long-Term Inceniive Plan. Under the 2012 Long-Term Incentive Plan, the Company may kssue up o
650 million shares of commaon stock, plus any shares canceled, explred, forfebted, or not lssued from the 2005 Long-Term Incemtive Plan subsequent to
Apeil 26, 2012, Shares avallable for future granes under the 2012 Long-Term Incentive Plan were 240 million at the end of fiscal year 2021,

The compensatbon cost thar has been charged agalnst income for these plans was 51,135 milllon, 51,006 milllon and 3977 million for fiscal years 2021,
2020 and 2015, respectively, The woial income tax benefli recognized n the Income statement for share-based compensation costs was §218 milllon, $210
milllan and $227 million for fscal years 2021, 2030 and 2019, respectively. The Company also recognized additomal income tax benefits of $223 million,
5248 million and 52049 millkon for fiscal years 2021, 2020 amd 2019, respectively, for which options were exercised or resiricied shares were vested, The
total unrecognized compensation cost was 3862 milllon, $804 million and 823 milllon for fscal years 2021, 2020 and 2019,
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respectively. The weighted average period for this cost w0 be recognized was 1,78 vears, 1.76 years and 1.71 years for fiscal years 3021, 2020, and 2019,
respectively, Share-hased compensation costs capitalized as pan of invenmory sere insignificant in all pericds,

The Company settles employes benefit equity issuanoes with treasury shares, Treasury shanes are replenished through market purchases throughout the
year for the number of shares used 1o setile emnployee henefi equity issuances.

Stock Options
Stock opalons expire 10 years from ihe dste of grant and vest over service perbods that range from 6 months 10 4 years, All options are granted at the
average ol the high and haw prices. of the Comgany ‘s Common Swock on the New York Stech Exchange on the dawe ol grant,

The fair valoe of cach option award was estimaied an the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model that wses the assumplions poted
In the following table. For X021, 2020 and 2009 grants, expecied volatility represents a blended rage of D-year weekly historical overall volatility rate, and
il Seweek average implied volatilicy rbe based on at-the-money iradedd Johnson & Johnsen options with a life of 2 years. For all grants, hissorical data is
wsed b0 determine the expected life of the option, The risk-free rate was based on the LS. Treasury vield curve in effect @t the tme of grant.

The average fair valoe of optlons graned was 52086, 516,42 and 517,80, |n fiscal years 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectvely. The falr value was estimated
based on ihe welghied average sssumplions ol

2021 2020 2019
Btisk-Free race 0.E3 % 147 % 256 9%
Expected voladlicy 18,59 % 1533 % 1627 %
Expecied lile (in years) 70 70 70
Expected dividend yvield 250% 260 % 2H0 %

A summary of option actlvity under the Plan &5 of Jamiary 2, 2022, lansary 3, 2021 and December 29, 2019, ani changes during e years ending on thise
thates i presented beloe:

Apdregate
Inbrimissi
Weighted Yalue
{Ahares b Thousansds) ﬂ.ll.uﬂd'hi Slwires lnrs&rzﬂul’m (Dellars fn MilHoos)
Shares al December 30, 2018 1mm652 8 M 5 1214
Owptions granted 19,745 131.54
Oprions exercised (14,785) BZ43
Owprians cancebed/ forfeived (2.975) 125.11
Shares at December 25, 2019 111,637 105.63 4478
Chpticins granded 20,7213 151.41
Owprians exercised [16,275) B6.05
Opticins conceled forfeiied (1.835) 137.62
Shares al Jarsuary 3, 2021 114,250 1622 4,703
Owprins graned 18525 [ N
Crpeians exercised (13, 248) 07 .48
(hptiicins canceled forfeied 1;2. Il.'ﬁ_! 143.75
Shares at Jamuary 2, 2022 117361 § 12536 § 5,564

Thie 1orad knerinsic value of opalons exercised was 3919 million, $1.021 million and 5807 milllen in flscal years 2021, 2020 and 201%, respectively.

&
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The following table summanizes stock options ousstanding and exercisable of Janwary 2, 2022:

[hares im Thousnds Crustaniding Exerdisable
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Exerrise Price Range Dptions .H.v!l‘g;!ull“' Exercise Price Ulplioms Exercise Price
S65,08-590, 44 16,007 1.6 581.92 16007 £81.92
S100.06G-5100.87 21,647 316 £101.07 2 647 s101.07
£115.67-812951 24,543 506 5159 230972 S12243
5131.94-5151.41 36, 0k 7.5 514223 100 514072
5151 42-5164.62 17,560 a1 £164.62 16 S164.62
117,361 5.8 $125.36 G742 S104.42

1% Average cemraciual life remaining in years.

Sick options sutstanding at Jamuary 3, 2021 and December 20, J00% were 114,250 and an average life of 6.0 vears and 111,637 and an average life of
6.0 years, respectively. Siock options exercisable o Laruary 3, 2021 and December 29, 20145 were 61,289 a1 an average price of $96.97 amd 60,761 at an
average price of S8A.88, respectively.

Restricted Share Units and Performance Share Units

The Company granis resiricied share unlts which vest over service pertods that range from 6 months 1o 3 years, The Company alse granis performance
share units, w]ﬂm paid in shares of Johneon 8 fohnson l_mrn::‘ Stack ahl.'r1l1a:l.'|1|l-ni a three-year p:r:"f:lruahtr |1l|in|]. j‘;\ﬂmm%lr“mr peclarmance
share units vest, and i ameunt that does vest, s ted o the completion of service periods that ramge from 6 months 10 3 years and the achievement, over 2
three-year period, of three equallyv-weighted goals that direcily align with or help drive long-term iotal shareholder returm: operational sales, adjusied
operatlonal amings per share, and relstive 1ol shareholder requm. Beginning in fiscal 2020, performance shares were granted with two equally-weighted
poals that direcily align with or help drive long-term wxal shareholder retarm: adjusted operational eamings per share and relative waal sharcholder retam,
The numbser of shares actually carmed 2 e e af the three- yesar pt'rlnrl will ary, Based |1r||1.I on aciual armance, lrom 0% o 3000 of the Larget
mumber of performance share units graned,

A summary of the restricied share units and perfosmsnce shane units sctiviey wnber the Flams as of Janaary 2, 2022 s presented below:

Orutstanding Restricted Outstanding
[harrs in Thoands Share Units Perlormance Share Units
Shares al January 3, 2021 14,5954 2235
Cranted 4581 741
Iismed (&101) (G10)
Canceled forfeiied! sdjusied (756) [55)
Shares at January 2, 2022 14,122 2312

The average fair value of the restricied share unles granied was $152.62, 13958 and $121.31 in fiscall years 2021, 2020 and 2019, respeciively, using the
falr market valwe at the date of grant. The (8ir valae of restricoed share uniis was discounted for dividends, which are not pakd on the resericeed share unis.
during the vesting pertod. The falr vislue of restricied share unies lssoed was $611 millkon, $650 million and 3586 million in 2021, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

The welgheed average fair value of the performance shiare uniis granied was $179.35, $160.54 and 512867 |0 flscal years 2021, 2090 and 2019,
caloulated using the welghted average falr market valoe for each of the compooent goals at the date of grant.

The falr values for the sales and camings per share goals of cach performance share unit were esiimated on the date of grant wsing the Falr market valhoe
of the shares at the tme of the avward discounted for dividends, which are not pald on the performance share undts during the vestiag pertod, The falr value
for the relative tetal shareholder retum goal of cach performance share unit was estimated on the date of grant using the Monte Carlo valuation model. The
fair valoe of performance share units issued was $83 million, $91 millien and $119 million in fiscal years 2021, 2000 and 2019, especively,
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Sales ta Custamers Yo Change
iTholar in Millions) 2l 220 201L% v 'O "l vs. 10
Consumer Healih
aTC
us. ] 2,504 2460 2010 Sak % 224
International 234 2,364 244 4 [2.97
Worldwide 5X27 4,824 4444 a4 BS
Skiin Health/Teanty
us 2400 2,350 2,302 21 (LT}
Iniernaticinal 2141 2,100 2.1 1.9 (4.6)
Worldwide 4,541 4,450 4,593 20 {3.1)
Oral Care
us. B37 GE3 B2l (67} a9
Inbernationsl 1,008 H5a G 51 57
Worldwide 1,645 1,641 1,528 0.2 T4
Balby Care
LA 3m EF 362 0.5 ar
International 1,188 L1441 1,313 4.1 (13.13
Warldhwide 1,566 1,517 LG5 iz (9.4)
Waomen's Health
LS. 13 13 12 (1.6) A2
Internaticonal a5 BHA 74 18 (H.H)
Worldwide a7 A GhG L& (8.5
‘Wound Care/Other
s 45 A0 441 A | Ba
Incernational 243 40 230 LT 4.1
Worldwide 78 T30 ET1 16 72
TOTAL CONSUMER HEALTH
uA 6516 6,362 5839 24 a0
International #119 7,651 8,058 56 {4.6)
Worldwide 14,635 14,053 13,5098 4.1 Ll
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PFHARMACEUTICAL

Immunelogy
w5 10,843 10,175 LT 66 55
International 5,507 4,580 4309 210 132
Worldwide 16,750 15,055 13950 I3 78
HEMICADE®
us 2,019 2,508 3,079 (19.5) (18.5)
L5, Exports 216 MG 294 (21.9) 100
International 915 B3 1,007 4B (11.4)
Worldwide 3,100 3,747 4380 (14.9) (14.4)
SIMPON] { SIMPON] ARIA®
.5, 1,127 1,155 1,159 {2.4) {013
International L1448 1,088 1,029 a5 58
Worldwide 2,276 2,243 FAL) 14 26
SIELARA®
L5 591 5,240 4,40 133 206
Internationsl 3,196 2467 2ms 296 224
Worldwide 9,134 7,707 6361 185 201
TREMFYA®
.5 1,500 526 TE4 2.3 23
International b4 421 2aH 482 [P L]
Worldwide 2,127 1,347 (R 579 Ex e
OTHER [MMUNOLOGY
LS. Fa | — — b —
Internatiansl 3 1n 10 (730 G4
Worlcwide 24 1 1 i G4

Infectious [Heeases
LS. 2,249 1,735 1,587 2.7 B
Inbernaticonsl 3612 1,639 LHLS 96,1 13
Worldwide 5,861 3574 3413 640 47
CONVIT- 15 MACTINE
LS. (] — e - -
I ernational 1,751 — — - -
Worldwide 2,385 — — - -
EDURANT® ¢ rilgivirioe
s, 41 ES 50 (7.6) (1.2}
Incernational 953 wn ’iz 16 133
Worldwide oo ] A&l il 119

y . T, .y

ERLElaTA " f PREECOBIN® ( RELCHATA
us 1,508 1,587 1.422 {4.9) 1L6
Internaticnal 575 557 (0] [3.5) {13.4]
Warldwide 2,083 2,184 2,110 {4.6) 35
OTHER INFECTIOHS DISEASES
Us. 71 i%] 136 (36,0 (17.6)
Internationsl 313 23 5 30 26
Worldwide 3 427 441 (6.5) B2

360/443



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

MNeuroscienoe

L5 1.7 3,091 2919 H3 59
International 2664 3457 2400 6,0 14
Warldwide 7011 6,548 G.3ZE 71 15
CONCERTA® tmetbednbenidae

US 172 153 23 {5.8) (21.4)
Internatiomal 495 435 463 128 (513
Worldwide Ga7 G232 636 7.3 (10.6)
U5 2,550 2314 2107 10.2 L Fi ]
International 1,472 1,334 1224 10.0 a4
Woarlchwide 4,022 3,653 2330 10.1 a7
BISPERDAL CONSTA®

L5 287 20 a4 249) (5.9)
Intermational J05 36 74 (11.8) [7.5)
Worldhwide a2 642 GER 7.7} (.1
CTHER NEUROSCIENCE

LS. 38 2 266 13.3 124
International 1391 13 1,348 43 {113
Worldwide 1729 1,632 1614 6.0 Ll

Oncalagy

.5 HGH 5,002 4,259 17.0 185
International 8.590 1,275 6393 18.1 138
Warldhwide 14,548 12,367 10,652 17.6 157
DAREALEX®

L5 EN 2290 1,567 420 ar4
International 2 1,558 1430 45.8 65
Wrldwide 6023 4,150 FAL 43.8 398
ERLEADA®

us. RI3 583 frat 393 46,1
International ATH 176 35 .. e
Warldwide 1291 TG0 32 0.0 e
IMERUVIEA®

L5 1,747 1,821 1,555 (4.0} 17.1
International 2,623 2,307 1856 13.6 243
Worldwide 4,360 4,138 R 5.8 210
ENTICA" ighirmetane acetae

us 1ns ara B (BH.1) (540
Internaticnal 2,178 2,007 1,965 a9 54
Worldwide 87 247 275 7.0 [1LE)
OTHER ORCOLOGY

LIE-% 10 B3 T 3L 186
Internaticmal A58 T3 1,087 (37.9) (32.1)
Woarldwide el a21 1,158 (30.8) (29.1)
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Pulmomary Hypertensisn
L5

Internatlonal
Worldwide

International
Worldwide

Cardivvasoular / Metabolism ¢ Other
s,
International
Warldwide
XARFITO"
{HES
Invernatioial
Worldwide
INVORANA®  INVORAMET™
us
Interiationa
Worldwide
FPROCRIT* / EFREX"
us.
International
Worldwide
UTHER
LS.
International

Worldwide

TOTAL PHARMACEUTICAL
us
International
Warldwitde

2,365
3,450
1,147
1,818
1,056

181
1,237

163

2312
A5

3192
1,268
4,460
24314

141

254

243
256
a7

L

27854
24,106

2,133
1,015
3,148

1,008
B3l
1,639

138
1,093

169
47
416

58 #uE 2k 3kE

8 &
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1684
2623
766
1,327
714
/g
205

Firs
476

285

974
1,353

230874
18,324
42198

e
26
157

6.6
.o

105
E1 A
131

(3.7)
(5.9)
(5.0)

2.0
(7.4)
(8.5)

&0
40
(45.4)
@3
{18.7)
6.8
(13.3)
@10

(12.3)
(17.3)

b
216
143
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66
20,0
n.y
215
134
115

(17.6)

(2.2)
(12.8)

(6.0)
(6.1
(6.0]

14
14

52
163
Bz

(45.1)
(3.8
(30.2)

{15.1)
(11.3)
(12.4)

78
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MEDICAL NEVICES
Interventional Solutions
U5 1836 1,452 1443 6.4 [T
International 2,135 1,554 1.554 0 6
Wiorldwide 3871 1046 2907 an.4 16
Orthapaedics
us. 5126 477 5319 73 {102y
Interiiatical 3,462 2,584 3,530 16.0 {15.2)
Worldwide 8,568 7,763 B 10,6 (122
LIPS
U5 883 793 a6 114 (8.2
Internationsl G 447 570 16 {15.3)
Worldwite 1,485 1,280 1434 16.0 (1.0
EMNEES
Us, 7H7 743 g 54 (16.4)
International 55 427 501 6.1 (27.8)
Wwarlchwice 1315 1,170 1,480 i3.3 (210
TRALMA
Uus 1819 1,648 1,652 10,4 (0,23
Incernarional 1,06 b ] 1068 104 19.6)
Winrldwide 2805 2614 2,720 10.4 (3.9
us 1,637 1585 1915 28 (16.7)
Interitianal 1,256 1,00k 1,266 13.8 (140}
Worldwide 2893 269 3,201 7.2 (15.7)
Surgery
L5, 3,867 3,249 3,828 149.0 (15.1)
International 5,545 4,583 5673 19,3 {122
Wirldwite 9,812 8,232 8,501 19.2 (13.4)
ADVANCED
U5 1,761 1535 1,637 149 (6.21
Internatianal 2,861 2,304 2458 2.1 (6.2)
Wiarldwide 452 3,539 4,095 204 if.2)
GENERAL
s 2,105 1,714 2192 n7 (218
International 3,005 2,679 3215 5.2 {16.7)
Werldwide 5,150 4,392 5,406 18,1 (1B.H)
Vision
us. 1,857 1557 1.794 19.3 (132
Inbernational 2,831 2,362 2430 19.8 (16.5)
Warldwide 450 1919 4624 19,6 {15.2)
CONTACT LENSES [ OTHER
Lis. 1,394 1,213 1,304 15.2 (7.0)
Internaticns 2043 1,741 2088 14.7 {147}
Worldwita 344 2,501 3352 149 (1.m

L]
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SURGICAL
LL.5. 458 a4 490 115 (25.7)
Intermatioisl 784 561 742 kL (21n
Worldwide 1248 945 LL32 a3 {24.9)
TOTAL MEDMCAL DEVICES
U5, 12,686 01,036 12,384 149 {109)
Incernational 14,374 11,923 13,579 206 zn
Warldwide 27 D60 22,558 25,963 174 [11.B)
WORLDWIDE
L5, 47 156 43,133 42,097 93 25
International 46,614 39,451 39,962 18.2 (1.3)
Worldwide 5 wm,rTs 02,584 82,058 136 % 06
*Certain pror year amounis have been reclassi{ied so comform io curment year presentation
**Perceniage greater tas 100% or not meanksg il
lncome {Los) Belore Tax Identifiable Assets
il in Willims) FrTd 20207 E 21 200
Consumer Health 1 1204 [1064) 2061 5 25,081 27,355
Fharmacewbcal 18,181 15,462 BHIG 4,376 66,158
Medical Devices 4373 3.044 7,286 53372 49,578
Total 13,848 17442 18,163 142,829 143,091
Less: Expense not allocated 1o segments 11 1072 945 a5
General corporare ' 39,1849 31,803
‘Wirldhwidee total 5 Eﬂi 16,497 1731 § Im “%
Adifitions s Property, iation amd
Plamt & Equipment martization
[halliirs it N s ] 202 200 2009 2021 pliri ) 019
Consumer Health 5 bl 248 2 5 750 a5 TES
Pharmaceutical 1.198 B&3 950 & i 06 1910
Medical Devices 1,533 15980 1912 Libe 4140 2004
S ents lotal 1462 1091 3,150 774 B.931 BGET
General corpomee 190 156 L 36 0 320
Worldhwiiile ioial 5 3347 3498 % 7.340 7.231 7,009
Sales 1o Customers Long-Lived Assers ™
[Thallars in Millioe) 021 2020 29 01 202
Unbted States 5 47,156 43,133 4209 3 48,586 43,851
Eurmpse 504 i8O8 13, 466 431357 40,53
Western Hemisphere excluding U.S. 5,750 5335 5041 2,708 2734
Asia-Pacific, Africa 17,275 15.1%6 15,555 5035 5484
Segments total 3775 B2.584 B2,059 99,586 107,532
General corparate Lon4 1025
aber non bong-lived asets B1.410 66,133
Wiarldwide 1oal 5 53,775 2584 B0 8% 182,018 174,854
See Mote 1 for a description of the segments in which the Company operates.
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Expon sales are not signilicant. In fiscal yesr 2021, the Company uiilioed three whalesalers distributing products for all three segments that represenied
approximately 14.0%, 11.0% and 11.0% of the weal consolidated revenues, Tn (iscal year 2020, the Company had three whobesalers distributing prodhscis
far all thiee seg it rep bedd apeproxi iy 16.0%, 12.0% and 1220% of the total coidolidated revenuess. In fscal year 2019, the Company had
three whilesalers disiributing products lor all three segments that represented approximarely 15.0%, 12.0%, and 11.0% of the ool comselidated revenues,
W Amaunes not allocated 1o segments inclode Inierest (income ) expense and gereral corporate (Income) expense,

T General corporate includes cash, cash equivalents and marketable securitles,

W Consumer Health in ludes;

*  Litigation expense of $1.6 billion, primanily tale related reserves
* A restrocturing refated charge of #0010 billion
Fharmaceutical includes:
= Litigation expense of 3006 billion. primarily related o Risperdal
*  [Divestiture gains of S0UG billion
*  Gains on secusities of 0.5 billion
* A restructuring relaied charge of 50,1 billion
Medical Devices inchudes:
* A restruciuring related charge of $0.3 billioa
*  An in-process research and development expeise of $0.9 billin
* A Medical Device Regulation charge of 3002 billion
*  Litigation expense of 50.1 billion

W Consumer Healih includles:

*  Litigation expense of 53,9 billion, primarily tale related reserves ad cemain sealemems,
Pharmacewtical inclades:

*  Litigadon expense of 308 billion, primanly relaied woibe agreement (o principle o sende oplold Hedgarion
*  Anunrealized gaim on secunties of 3.5 billion
= A restruciuring related charge of $001 billion
Medical Devices includes:
* A comtingent consideration reversal of $1.1 blllon relmed wobe dming of ceraln divelopmenial milestones assoclated with the Auris Health
ascejulsithon,

*  Litigation expense of 30.3 billion
* A restruciuring related charge of $0.3 billion
*  Anin-process research and development expense of $0.2 billioa
* A Medical Device Regulathon change of 3001 billion

' Copsumer Healih includes:
* A gain of 30,3 billicn related 1o the Company's previously held equity invesiment in DR, CLLABD
*  Litigation expense of 50.4 billion
# A restuouring relaied charge of $0.1 billlon

Fharmaceutical locludes:

* Litigation expense of 343 billion of which 54.0 billion i relsted o the agreement in peinciple o setile oplodd Lidgation
*  An in-process research amd develapment expense of $0.9 billion related (o the Alios psse
* A research and development cxperse of 3003 billion for an upfront payment related 1o argenx
*  Anunrealized gain on secorities of 5006 hillion
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¢ Actelion acquisition and integration relaged costs of $0.2 billion
* A restruciuring charge of 50,1 billion
Medical Devices includes;

* A gain of 2.0 billicn from the divestioure of the ASP business

* A restrocring related chargge of 30,4 Ballion

= Litigation expense of $0.4 billion

*  Auris Health acquisiclon and integration relaied costs of $0.1 hillion

" Long-lived assess include propeny, plam and equipment, met for fiscal years 2021, and 2020 of $18,952 and $18, 766, respectively, and intonglble assets
and goodwill, met for fiscal years 2021 and 20200f 381638 and S89,795, respeaively,

18, Acqubsitions and Divestitures
Dhuring fiseal year 2021, the Compamy did not make any material sequisitions,

Draring, fiscal year 2020, certain businesses were acquired for 57.3 billion in cash and $0.4 billion of liabiliies assumed. These acquisitions wene
accounted for using the acquisiion method and, accordingly. results of operations have been inclisded in the financlal saemenis from their respective dates
ol aeguisition.

Thie exorss af purchise price over the estimated fair value of tangible assets acquiresd ameunted (o 57,5 billion and has been assigned o identifiabhe
intangible assets, with any residual recanded s goodhwill.

The fiscal year H020 acquisitions primarily included: ol rights 1o the investigational |t kimath, which has multiple dermatadogical
indications, along with certain employess from XBiotech Enc. [ X Biotech), Momenta Piunmcmml: Tnc. {Muonsenea), & comparny that discovers amd
develops novel iberapies for immune-medoied diseases and the omstanding shans in Verb Sungical lnc., & company with signilicant robatics and dats
seience capabilities.

Draring the fiscal firs quaner of 2020, the Company completed the scquisition of all righas 1o the investigaiional compound bermekimab, which has
multiple demmatalogical indications, along with certain employess from XBiotech Inc., for a parchase price of $0.8 Billion, The fair value of thi: acquisition
was allocaded primarily to non-amartizable (mangible assets, primarily IPR&D, for $08 billion applying a probability of success faceor that ranged From
20% b0 6% 1o reflect inherent development, regulatory and commercial risk far the different indications. The discour rate applied was approximately
16%. XBiotech may be eligible to receive additional payments upon the receipt of certain commerncializion aumborizations, The transsciion was sccounted
fiar as a business cambination and included In the Pharmaceatical segment, On Jamuary 28, 2022, subsequent 1o the fiscal year 2021, additional information
reganding efficacy became avallable which led the Company o the decision o ierminaie the development of bermekimab for Ampic Dermatlils (AN The
Company reconded an intangible aset impairment change of approximately S0.6 billion related to an in-process research and development aswe,
bermekimab (In)-T7474462), an investigational drug for the treatment of AD and Hidredenitis Supparativa (HS), The impaimment charge Is related o the
AD inlication and Is a nonrecognized subsequent event and will be refleceed in the first quaner 2022 financial staiemenis. The Company acquired all righis
1o bermekimab from XBiotech, Ine. in Tliscol year 2020

Additionally, in the fiscal first quaner of 2020, ihe Company completed the scqaisition of all outstamding shanss in Verb Surgical Inc., a company with
significant robotics and deta science capabilities, inchuding those sheres, previously beld by Verity, The tramsection wae accounted for a5 a8 business,
combination and included inhe Medical Devices segment, The Tair value of the acquisition was allocaied primarily o non-amornizable inangible assets,
primarily 1PR&D, for S0.4 billion, goodwill for $0.2 billion, oiber assers of $0.2 billion and liabil#tses asumed of $0.3 billion. The fair valie of the
Company's previously beld equity investimest in Verb Surgical lisc. was $0.48 billion.

O Ociober 1, 2020, the Company completed the scquisition of Momenga for a parchase price of approximacely $6.1 billion, net of cash acquired. The
Fair value of the acquisition was allocated primartly 1o son-amontizable imongible assets (IPR&D) of $6.0 billion, goodwill of $1.2 hillion, oiber assets of
S0.5 hillinn and Nahilitles of $1.6 hillion. The assets acquired are ineended 0 adidress substantial immet medical need in matemal-fetal disorders, neuno-
inflammaroey disorders, theumaalogy, dermatolagy and stoimmuse bemaiology. Depeniding on the asset, probability of wiccess faros ranging from 2096
to T7% wene usedd in the fair value caleulation o reflect inherent development and regulatory risk of the IPRED, The discount rte applisd was
approximately 13%, The goodwill Is primarily atribugable to synengies expected o arise from the business acuisition and is pot eapected 1o be decdoctible
for rax purposes, The mansaction was accounted for as a business combination and included In the Phanmaceuti cal segment,

Draring fiscal year 2019 eerain businesues were acquired (or 5.8 billion in cash and $1.4 billion af labilithes ssumed. These acquisitions were
accoumted far using the scquisition method amd, accondingly, results of operations have been included in the financial stoements fram their respective dates
of poguisition.

Thie excess al purchise price over the estimated Lair value of nagible sssets acquired amsunted 1o 568 billion and has been assigned 1o identifiable
inangble assers, with any residual reconded po goodwill.

Thie fiscal year 20149 acquisitioss primarily included DR. CELABC, o Japanese company focused on the marketing, development and disiribation of &
broad range of dermocosmetic, cosmetlc and skincane products and Aurls Health, bie. o
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privately held developer af mbatic technologhes, initially focused in lung cancer, with an LS. FDA-cleared platiorm curmently used in bronchoscopic
diagnastic and therapeutic procedures.

On lamuary 17, 2019, the Compamy acquired DR, CELABG, a Rapanese company focased on ihe marketing, development and distribution of 2 broad
range of dermocosmetic, cosmetic and skincare producis for o iotal purchase price of approximately ¥230 billion, which equates 1o approximately $2.1
hillion, using the exchange rate of 190G Japanese Yen to each ULS, Dallar on January 16, 2019, Additionally, in the fiscal frst quarter of 2009, the
Company recognized a pre-tax goin reconbed in Ciher (income) expense, net, of approximately $0.3 billion melsted (o the Company’s priviously held equity
nvestment in DH. C1LARO,

The Company treatesd this transaction as o business combination and incladed it in the Consumer Health segment, During the fiscal firs gquaner of
020, the Company finalized the purchase price allocation. The fimal fair valoe of the acquisition was allocated primarily 1o amortizable ifaogible asses
far 81.5 bilkion, goodwill for $1.2 billion amd liabilines of S04 billion, The amonizable intangihle assets were comprised of brand trademarks and customer
relationships with a weighted average life of 15.3 years. The goodwill is primarily stribotable to synengies expected 10 arise from the business acquisition
arud is not expected 16 be dedoctible for Lax puroses.

On April 1, 2019 the Company completed the acquisition of Auris Healih, Inc, for spproximaeely 3.4 billion, et of cash acquired. Additional
contingent payments of up 1o 5235 billion, in the aggregate, may be payable upon reaching certain predetermined milestones. Auris Healih was a privately
lweld devel oper of robotlc wechnologles, initdally fiecused B lung cancer, with a U.5. FDA-d eared placfonm cumently ssed bn bronchoscopic diagnostic and
therapeutic procedines. The Company trested this iransaction as o business combinaion and included 1 in the Medical Devices segment. The (adr value of
the acquisition was allocated prmarily o amartizable and nea-amonizable intangshkle assets, primarily IPRE&D for 33,0 billion, geodwill for 52,0 billion,
marketable securities of $0.2 billon and liabilites assumed of $1.8 billion, which includes the fair value of the contingent payments mentioned above. The
goadwill is primarily stiributable to synenghes expecied to arise from the business acquisition and s mot expecied o be deductible for tax parposes. During
thie fiscal second quaner af 2020, the Comparny linalized the purchase price allocation, During (iscal 2020, the Company recotded Other income of
approximately 51.1 billion for the reversal of all of the contingent consideration related to the timing of certain developmental and commercial milestones,
which are not expected 1o be met hased on the Company s curmend timelines. During the fiscal thimd quarter of 2020, the Compasy recorded a panial
IPRE&D impairment charge of S001 bilkion relased 1o dming and progression of e digie) segery platbornss, Dn b fiscal thind goearier of 2021, the
Company reconded a partial IPR& D charge of 30,9 billion primarily related 1o expected development delays in the general surgery diginal robotics plat farm
[Oieava). A probability of sucoess factor ranglng From 18% o 66% acnoss Otava sub-platforms, was used in the fair value caloulation to reflect inberem
regulatory and commercial risk of ihe contingent payments and IPRE&D. The discount rave applied was approod mately 9.5%.

In atcordance with U5 GAAP sandards related o business combinations, and goodwill and sther intangible asets, supplemental pro forma
information for Fscal years 2021, 2020 and 2009 is not provided, as the impact of the aforementioned acquisitions did not have a maserial effect anibe
Company's resulis of operations, cash flows or fimancial positen.

Divestitures

Dharing, Fiscal year 2021, In separate transactions, the Company divested tao bramds outssde the ULS. within the Phamaceutical segment, The Company
recognized a pre-tax gain recorded in Chher (income) expense, net, of approximately 50,6 killlon,

Draring fiscal year 2020, the Company sold 11.8 milllon shares of dorska LTD ([dorsia), or lts 83% ownership inthe company at that time. The
transaction resuleed in gross proceeds of approximately CHF 337 million (5357 million) based on a sales price of CHF 28.55/share and resulied inan
Immaterial net loss, At the end of fiscal 2020, the Company had righis vo approximaiely 38,7 million shares through 2 convenibde loan with a principal
ameimnt of CHF 445 million (ise June 202 7). During fiscal year 2021, the Company converted CHEF 110 millioa (3120 million) of this Inan imio
approximarely 8.6 million shares of Idorsia which were reflecied ar falr value as of January 2, 2022, During the fiscal third gquarer of 2021, the Company’s
undrawn credin faciliey with Idorsla was terminaced.

Draring fscal year 2019, ihe Company divested lis ASP busipess 1o Fortive Corporation Tor an agiregate value ol approsimately $2.8 billion,
consisting of 52.7 billion of cash proceeds and $0.1 billion of retained net receivables, The Company recognized a pre-tax gain reoorded in Other { income)
expense, nel, of approximately 52.0 billion.

19. Legal Procesdings

Jobueon B Jobnson o centain of s subsidiares are involved in various Lawsois and claims reganting product liability; imedleciual propssty; commescial;
indemnification and ot maners; govermmenial investigations; and otbser legal proceadings that srise fram tme 1o tme in e ordinary course of their
Inisiness. Due o the ongoing impects of the COVID-19 pandemic, certain idals have been rescheduled or delayed. The Company comtinues o manitoe is
legal proceedings as the siation evalves and in person ials esume.
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The Company records accruals for loss contingencies assoclated with these legal masters when it is probable that a Hability will be incurred, and the amoust
of the loss can be reasonably estimated. As of January 2, 2022, the Company has deiermined that the liabilities associated with cemain litigation matiers ane
probabile wnd can be reasanshly estmaged. The Company has accrsed for these matters and will continue 1o monitor each relsied legal isos and adjus
accruals as might be warmnted based on pew information and further developments in accordance with A5C 450-20-25, For these and oiher litigation and
reguliory maness discussed below for which a loss is probable or reasonabily passible, e ny is tmable o estimate the ﬁwuhlr lis or range of hss
beyonad the amounts accnsed. Amounts accrued for legal comingencles ofien resuli from a complex series of judgments about future events and
unceriainties that rely heavily on estimates. and assumptions inchading timing of relabed payments. The abilily to make such estimates and judgments can be
affeceed by warious factons incloding, among other (hings, whether damages sought in the proceedings are unsubstamiaied or indeterminse; sciemific and
legal discovery has not commenced o is not complete; proceedings are in early siages; matters present begal uncentainties; ihere are significant facis in
dispute; procedural or jurisiictional issies; the uncenainty and unpredictability of the number of polential claims; ability o aclieve comprehensive multi-
pany settlements; complexity of relabed crass-clalms and counterclalms; and'or there are numerous paribes involved. To the extent adverse awards,
Judgments. or verdicts have been rendered agaimi the Company, the Comparmy does ot recond ai accraal umil a less is determined to be probable and can
I reasonally estimsted

In the Company’s opinlon, based on lis examination of these maiters, lis experience io date and discussions with counsel, the ulidmate outcome of legal
procegdings, net of Hahllithes aoemed bn the Company's halance sheet, is not expected 1o have a material adverse effec on the Company's financia
positon. However, the resolutbon of, or increase in accruals for, one or maore of these matiers in any reporting perlod may have a material adverse effecton
the Company*s nesules of operations and cash fows far thar period,

ERODUCT LIABILITY

Jahnson & Joknsan and cerain of it4 subsicliaries are involved in mimerous prodisct Tiability claine and lawsaits involving multiphe products, Claimants in
these cases seek substantial compensatory i, where available, punitive damages. While the Company believes it has substantial deferses, it is not feasible
to predict the ulimale puicome of liigation. From time 1o Gme, even if # has subseantial defenses, the Company considers isolated setlements based on o
variety of circumstances. The Company has established accruals bor product ability claims and lawsuits in compliance with ASC 450-20 based an
currenily available information, which in some cases may be limigad The Company aceres an esaimate of the kegal defense coses needed 10 defend each
matter when those costs are probable snd can be reasonably estimasted. For cemain of these matvers, the Company bas aceneed sdditional amounts such &
estimuted costs pssociated with setbemenss, damages aod other losses, Product labiliey sconals can represent projecied product Habiliey for thoasands of
claims arouad the world, each in differen lingation environments and with different fact paterns. Changes to the accruals may be required in the future as
nidilitional information becomes mailatile.

The most significam of these cases inchude: the DePuy ASR™ X1 Acetabular System and DePuy ASR™ Hip Resurfacing Sysiem; the PINNACLE®

Acetabular Cup System; pelvic meshes; RISPERDAL"Y; XARELTO"; bady pawders containing tale, primarily JOHNSOMN'S® Baby Powider;

INVORKANAY and E’l‘i-IILGN PHYSIOMESH® Flexible Composite Mesh As of January 2, 2022, in the United States there were approsimately 250
laintiffs wich direct claims in ing lawsuits regarding injuries allegedly due 1o the DePuy ASR™ XL Acctabular Sysiem and DePuy a'l.SR"" Hip

facimg System: 5,300 with respect 1o the PINNACLE® Acetabular Cup Systent: 10,100 with respect to pelvic meshes; BB with

RISPERDAL®; 5,500 with respect in XARELTO™; d0AD0 with respect to hody pw'rlm- mmmnp, tale; 1K) with respect o INVOEKANA .mdd 700 with

respedt o ETHICON PHYSIOMESH® Flexible Composite Mesh, The beer o 1] it is eapected 1o Muctuale o m‘lalrl]nmlu are settled or

dismissed and additbonal lowsuls ane filed,

I August 2010, DePuy Orthopadics, Ine, (DePuy) ansouited a worldwide volustary recall of lis ASR™ XL Acetabular System and DePuy ASR™ Hip
Hesurlating System (ASR Hip) sed in hip replacement sirgery, Claims Tor personal injury have been made against DePuy and Johnson & Jehrson, Cases
filed in federal comree in the United States have been orgamized as o malti-diserict litigation in the United States Distriet Coun for the Northern Disirict of
rhio. Litigation bas alse been filed in countries omside of the United States, primarily in the Unisd Kingdom, Canada, Avstralia, Ireland, Gemmany, India
ard Taly, In November 2013, DePuy reached an agresment with @ Court-appointed commitiee of lowyers representing ASR Hip plaintiffs o estaldish a
program o setile claims with eligible ASR Hip patients in the United States who had surgery 1o replace their ASR Hips, known as revision surgery, a6 of
August 2013, DePuy reached additional agreements in February 2005 and March 3007, which further exeended the setbement program io include ASR Hip
patients who had revision surgeries after August 2003 and prior o Febroary 15, 2007, This settlement progrom has resolved more than 10,000 ¢laims,
thereby beliging 1o resolulion significant ASE Hip ldgation sctivity B the Unied Seates. However, Liwsults in the United States remain, and the setibemient
[rrisgram dies no adidress Hrgation outside of the United States. In Australia, 8 class sction settlement was reached that resolved the clabms of the majosity
ol ASR Hip patients in that country. In Canada, the Company has reached agreements eo settle the class actions (iled in i couniry. The Company
continues 1o recelve inlommation with respect 10 potential additional
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costs associated with this recall on a worldwide basis, The Company has established accruals for the costs associated with the United States settlement
program and ASR Hip-related product labilicy 1nigation,

Claims for personal injury have lso been maide agaiiest DePay Onbopaedics, Inc, amd Jobinsen & Jahnson (collecively, Delbay) mlaing o the
PINMNACLE"™ Aceabular Cup System used in hip replacement surgery. Product llability Lawsudis cominee wo be filed, and the Company continues 1o receive
Infarmation with respect bo potential costs and the anticlpated number of cases. Cases (iled in federal couns in the United States have been organized as a
multi-districe ltlgation i the Uniied States Disrrict Count for the Nonhern Distréct of Texas, Lidgation also has been filed In some state couns and in
couniries outskle of the United States. Several adverse verdices have been rendered against DePuy, oae of which was reversed on appeal and remanded for
retrial. During the first quaner of 2009, DePuy esiablished a United Siates setilement program io resolve these cases. As pant of the settlement program,
adverse verdicts have been senled. The Company has established an aconi] for preduct lability litgation associmed with the FINNSACLE® Aceabular
Cup Systean and the relaed settlement program.,

Claims for personal injury have been made against Ethicon, Ine. (Etbican) and Johnson & Fohnson asising out of Ethicon®s pelvic mesh devices used 1o
treal stress wrinary Inconenence and pelvic organ prolapse. The Company continues o recelve information with respect v potestial cosis and addilonal
cases. Cases Tled in federal courts in ibe United States hod been organized &6 & multd-disirict [idgation (MDL) in the Unived Stabes Distrial Court for ihe
Southem Districn of Wes Virginda. n March 2021, the MDL Coun entered an order closing the MDL. The MDL Cownt has remanded cases for trial o the
jurtsdicilons where the case was originally filed and addidonal pelvic mesh lowsales have been filed, and remaln, ouiside of te MOL, The Comgany has
seliledd or otlwerwise resoldved e majority of the Uirited] Stave cases ail tbe estimaten] costs associaned with these setilenents and die remaining coses are
reflected inthe Company®s accraals. o addidon, class actions and individuad personal injury cases or cleims seekling damages for alleged injury resuliing
fram Ethicon's pelvic mesb devices have been comimenced in various oounizies oatside of the Uninad States, including claine amd cases in the Uniied
Kingdum, the Netwerlands amd class actions in 1stsel, Australia and Canoda, In November 2009, the Federal Court of Australia ssued a judgment reganding
Its findings wish respect o lahiliy in relation 1o the three Lead Applicants and generally in relation 1o the deslgn, manufaciure, pre and post-market
masssments and pesting, amnd supply andd promotion of the devices in Australia wied g treat stress urinary incontinence and pelvic argan prodapse. In March
2020, the Caun issued & decision and entered damages awards (o the three Lead Applicants. The Company appealed the decision o the intermediaie
appellate coun, ibe Full Coun, The appeal was heard in Frhuurﬁ]ﬂh and, in March 2021, ihe Full Coun enlered o jodgment dismissing the appeal. An
application for special leave wobe High Coun of Awstralia was In Apedl 2021, and the High Court beard ol angument on the application in
Movember 2021, Special leave was refused, While this brings an end to the appellate process, there will now be an individual case assessmem process for
the remaining group member claims. The parties currently are in discussions with the Count w determine the form and mechanism of that imdividual case
assessment process. The nex hearing ks scheduled for late Febauary 2022, The class actions In Canada were aiscontinoed in 2020 as a result of a settlemeni
of a gmup of cases and an agreement io resolve the [sraeli class action was reached In May 2021, The parties in the laseli class action ane carmenily
megotiating the wording and sone of the verms thereol and once linalized, the setlement will be subject to court approval, The paries ane due w update the
coust on the status of the flinalization of the setlement negotiations by the end of Febmary 2022, The Company has established sccruals with respea o
product liability Litigation sssociated with Ethicon’s pelvic mesh products.

Follinwing a June 2016 worklwide market withdrawal of ETHICON PHYSIOMESH® Flexible Composite Mesh (Physionesh), clains for personal injury
have been made agalnss Ethicon, Inc, (Ethicon) and lohnson & Johnson alleging personal injury arlsing out of the use of ihis hemla mesh device, Cases
filed in Tederal counts in the United Siates have been oiganized as a maulti-diserict liigation (ML in ithe Uniied Seabes Districe Coun for the Nonhen
Dvismrict of Georgia. A maulti-county Ligation (MCL) also has been lomed in New Jersey state coun and assigived 1o Anlantic County for cases pending n
Mow Jersey, In addition 1o the matters in the MDA and MCL, there are additional lawsaits pending in the United States District Coun for the Southem
Dhistrict of Ohio, which are part of the MDL for polypropylene mesh devices manufaciared by CH. Band, Inc., ane multi-plameiff lowswit pending in
Crklahama state court and lawsulis pending outside the Unbted States, In May 2021, Ethicon and lead counsel for the plaindfis enered inbo a wm sheet o
resodve approximaiely 3,600 Physiomesh cases (covering approximately 4,300 plaintifis) pending in the MDL and MCL ai that time, A master settlement
agreement (MSA) was entered inso in Seplember 2021 and includes 3,729 cases in the MDL and MCL. All deadlines and trial setings in these proceedings
are currenily stayed pending the completion of the setabement agreemend. The deadline lor issuance of Individual Allocation amaunts by the Special Master
s March 2022, The costs ssociated with this propesed seitlement are reflected in the Company s aconuale. Post-Setilement cases in the Physiomesh MIDL
anid MCL are subject e docket comrol orders requining early expert repors and discovery requirements. As of February 2022, ihere are approsimately 90
active cases subject 1o these orders which are being reviewed and evaluaced.

Claimes have also been Filed agaim Edhicon aod Joleson & Mluson alleging personal injuries arising om the PROCEED" Mesh aml PROCEED® Veniral
Patch hemia mesh products. In March 2019, the New Jersey Supreme Court entered an onder consoliclating these cases prnd;':s in Mew Jersey as an MCL
in Atlantic County Superior Court, Additional cases have been Elﬁdin varioms federal anad spde couns Lnl#m Umited States, in jurisdiciions oumside the
United Swtes, Discovery is underway in the MCL procesdings.

87
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Eshicon amed Johnson 8 Jahnson alua have been subject o claims for persanal injusies arising from the PROLENE™ Polypropylens Hemia Sysiem. In
lanuaary 200, the MNew lersey Supreme Coun created an MCL in Atlantic Comney Superior Cown in handle such cases, Cases iInvolving this produrct have
alsa been fiked in oiher fedeml and state couns in the Lnited Srates,

The Company has established accruals with respect 10 product liabiliy litigation assocised with ETHICON PHY SI0MESH" Flexible Composie Mesh,
PROCEED® Mesh and PROCEED® Vieneral Paich, and PROLENE™ Palypropylene Hemia System progiuces,

Claims for personal injury have been made against Janssem Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Johnson & Johnson arsing out of the use of RISPERDALS, and
related compounds, indicibed s the treatment of schizophrenia, scute maiic or mixed episodes asocisted with bipolar | disorder and iritabilily ssociatel
with autism. Lawsults primarily have been filed in state couns in Pennsylvania, California, and Misspuri. Oiber actions are pending in various courts in the
Unsted Saaes and Canada. Product lkability lawsuits comtinue o be filed, and the Company continues 1o receive Information with respect to potential cosis
and the anticipated number of cases, The Company has successiully defended 2 number of these cases but there hive been vendiens agadnst the Company,
inchuding a verdict in Cicober 2009 of S80 billion of punitive damages related o one plaintifl, which ibe trial judge mduced 1o S5.E millicn in January
2020, In September 2021, the Company entered ino a senlement in principle with the counse] representing plaknelifs in this maner and in suhsiantally all
af the oustanding cases in the United Sues. The costs assockated with this and othes settlements are reflected in the Company's accnials.

Clalms fior personal injury ansing e of the use of XSARELTO®, an oral antlcoagubant, have been mede against Jasssen Pharmacemicals, Inc, (J1);
Juhnson & Jobnson; and 1P1's collaboration paruer for XARELTO®, Bayer Healibcare AG, aml oenabin of iis allilistes. Cuses filed in lfederal couns in the
United Suaves have been argantoed &5 & multi-disider igaion in e United Seates Disrict Court forthe Eastern Disirion of Louisiana, In sdition, cases
have been filed in state courts acmoss the United Staies, Many of these cases were consolidated [nbo a state mass ton liigation in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
and in a coondmated prooeeding in Los Angeles, Califormia, Class action lawsuits also have been filed in Canada, In March 2019, 1P1 and Johnson &
Johnson announced an agreement in principle o settle the XARELTO® cases in the United States; the settlensent agreement was executed in May 2009, the
settlement became final in December 2009, and the setlenient was funded in Jamsiry 2020, This resalved the majority of cases pending in the Unised
States. The Company has established acomals for iis costs associated with the Uniced Siates setdement program and XARELTO" related product liabiling
litigation.

A significant rumber of personal injury claims alleging that talc causes cancer wene made against Johnson & Johnson Consumer Inc, and Johnson &
Johnson arlsing owt of the use of body powders contalning walc, prmarily JOHNSON'S® Baby Powder. The number of these personal infury Lawsuls, filed
i srate and federal courts inibe United Seates a8 well a5 ourside of ihe Unived Staves, continued oo inorease (hroagh fiscal year 2001,

In talc cases that previowsly have gone o irlal, the Company has obtalned a number of defense verdicts, bai thene also have been vendics agalnst the
Company, many of which have been reversed on appeal. In June 2020, the Missouri Court of Appeals reversed in pam and affirmed in para July 2018
vendict of 54,7 hillion 0 Tngharm v, folinsen & fehrson, of of., No, ED 207476 (Mo. App.), reducing the overall awand s 52,1 billion, An application for
transfer of the case 1o the Missousi Supreme Court was subscquently denied and in June 2021, a petition for cenborarn, seeking a review of the Ingham
dectshon by the Unbed Saies Supreme Court, was denbed. In June 2021, the Company paid the award, which, including interest, iowaled approximacely
52.5 hillion. The facts and circumstances, ingluding the terms of the awand, wene unigue to the rgham decision and aot representative of other claims
browght agsinst the Company, The Company continues o believe that it has sorong Tegal grennds so contest the ather tale vendics that it has appealid.
Notwithstanding the Company's confidence in the safety of its talc products, in cerigin cimumsiances the Company has setiled cases,

In October 2021, Johnwon & Rohrson Comumer lac, (Obd 13C1) implemented a corporate restructuring (the 2021 Comporate Restructuring). As a result of
that restructuring, Old MC ceased 1o exis and three now entities were created: {a) LTL Management LLC, a North Canolina limbted lability company
[LTL or Debaor); (b) Royalty Add LLC, & North Caroling limdved liability company and a direct subsidiary of LTL (BRAM); and () the Debior’s direct
parent, Johraon & Jabinson Comumer Inc., a Mew Jersey comgany (Mew JICT). The Debiar receivisd] cortain of Old 1C1s assers and became sodeliy
respomsible for the talc-related [Rabilities of O0d JIC1, inclading all labilites related inany way io injury or damage, ar alleged injury or damage, sustained
wr kncurred in the parchase or wse of, o0 exposune o, e, including salc contalned (o amy product, or o the risk of, or esponsibilicg for, any such damage or
Injury, excepr for any llabilnses for which the exclusive remedy is provided under a workeers’ compensation stanate of act (the Talc-Relaed Liabilives).

In Ohcioher 2021, notwithstanding the Company ‘s confidence in the safery of its wle products, ibe Debaor filed 2 voluntary petitlon with the Unised States
Bankmpicy Court for the Western District of Nomh Camlina, Charlotte Division, secking relief under chapier 11 of the Bankrpecy Code (the LTL
Bankruplcy Case). As a result of the LTL Bankmpicy Case, the Court entersd a temporary restraining order staying all litigation against LTL and O8d 131
O November 15, 2021, the Nonh
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Carolina Bankraptcy Ceun confimmed the scope of the stay, isuing a Preliminary Injunciion (P1) prohibiting and enjolning ithe commencement and
prosecution of talc-related claims against LTL, Old JCL New LICL, Johmson & Johnson, other of their corporate affiliates, identified neiailers, insurance
companbes, and cemain other parties, The LTL Bankmupicy Case was transfemed 1o ihe Uited States Bankruptcy Cowrt for the Disircn of New Jersey bn
November 2021, and that coun subsequent Dmdn:rrw Pl through the end of February 2022 Claimants have filed a motion o dismiss the LTL
Bankrpicy Case, The court commenced o heasing on Febmary 14, 2022 regarding the motion w dismiss and on whether the P should be exiended. While
the Pl effectively stays all of the Companys talc-related personal injury Lidgation, LTL hes agreed to 1L the automatic stay on a small number of appeals
where appeal baneds have been filed.

The Comprany has agreed 1o provide fonding to LTL for the payment of amounts the Bankrupicy Cournt defermines ane owed by LTL throagh the
establishment of 2 52 billion wrust in furtheranoe of this pampase. The Company hos established a reserve [oe approximaiely £2 billion in conpectioa with
the aforementioned trust. Suhsequent i the fscal tind quarser of 2021, the Company de-consolidated LTL, which is a related pany, as a result of ihe
baniruptey filing. The impsct of the de-comsoladation s not material 1o the Company. The parties have not yet been able to reasch a resalution of all marers
related v tabc, and while cenain amounts wnder various scenasios have recently been refermed s in wesebmany as part of the LTL bankrapicy proceedings,
the Company i unable o estimate the possibie boss or range of loss bevond the amount accroed.

In February 2009, the Company”s tale supplier, Imerys Tabe America, Inc, and two of it affiliates, Imenys Tale Vermaont, Ine, and Imenys Tale Canada, Ine.
[collectively, Imerys) Tiled & volumary petition ueder chapter 11 of ibe United Seates Code {the Bankniptcy Code) in e United Staes Banknipacy Coan
for the District ol Delaware (Imerys Bankmipacy), The Imerys Banknipicy relates io Imerys’s patential liability for personal injury from exposuee i @lom
povwiber zald by Imerys {Tale Claims). In ls hr:lhmr.acy, Imrrm;h a-lln-g::h has clyims againsa Il{::(:fﬂ'llpdlty for indemnaification and fghis to joint imurance
proceeds. In May 2020, Imerys, I parent Imerys 5,4, the Ton Clalmants Commines (TCC) and the Future Claimants® Representative (FCR)
{collectively, the Plan Proponents) filed their Pan of Reomganization (the Plan) and the Dischsre Statement related thereto, The Flan Proponents. have
since filed pumerous amendments o the Plan and Disclosure Statement, A bearing on the Plan Proponents Disclosure Sutement was beld in Jonuary 2021,
and the Court entered an arder approving the Disclosure Staiement, allowing Imerys o proceed with seliciting votes on the Flan. In March 2021, the
Company vated 1o reject the Plan and opred o of the consensual relepses inthe Plan. In Apeil 2021, the Plan Proposents announced the Plan had received
the requisite number of accepting votes w confimm the Flan, The Company challemged cemaln improprieties with respect o porntions of ihe vore and sought
tor liscalify those votes., In Octoter 2021, the Banknaptey Court issaed a raling deeming thousands of vores as withdrwn as improgerly vided, In Oclober
2021, Imerys cancelled the confimmation hearing on the Plan. Imerys, ibe TCC, the FCR, and cenaln of Imerys’s Insurers (the Mediaton Panes) have since
agreed 10 engage in mediation.

In July 2021, Tmerys commenced an adversary procesding againss the Company in the | Bamkrupecy (the Imenys adversa eeding ) The lme
admgaq' proceeding soughl, among, other mmEL cmugﬂgihnmwﬁ with respect lmmmlmh?nbtlyum aﬂugﬁlymh}' drgtmm_\r Irg'.s

Imerys. The TCEC and FCR simultaneaushy filed & motion for iemporary restraining order and preliminary infunction seeking to enjoln the Company from

imdergning a corparate restractoring that would sepamee the Company's tabe Habilities from s other asset, The Bankrapeey Coun denied the motion, The
Company thereafter filed a motlon 1o dismiss the adversary proceeding. The Bankrupecy Coart has no yet dechded the motion to dismiss, In October 2021,
the Company filed a Notice of Banknuptcy Filing aml Stay of Proceedings clarifying that the sutomasic stay arising upon the filing of the LTL. Banknptcy

Case should apply 1o the Imerys adversary proceeding.

In Juive 2020, Cyprus Mises Coeporation and its parent (ogether, Cypras)h, which hod oweed cenain Imerys wlbc mines, filed an odversory procesding
against the Company and Imerys in the Imerys Bankruptcy secking a declaration of indemnity rights wnder conain contraciual agreements (ihe Cyprs
adversary proceeding). The Compary denies such indemnification & owed, and filed a motion to dismiss the stdhversary complaint. In Febraary 20010,
Cyprus filed a woduntary pection for relief ander chapier 11 of the Bankmapecy Code and filed s Disclosare Swatement and Plan, The Plan comemplases a
settlement with Imerys amd talc claimants where Cypras would make a monstary contribugion to a trast esablished under the Imenys Flan in exchange for
an injunclion agains Tale Claims asserted against iL Cypnas hes nod yel sougha approval of is Disclosure Sistement and Mlan. Cyprus, along with the TCC
and FCR appainted inthe Cyprus chapter 11 case, have agreed 1o panicipate in the mediation with the Mediation Parties. In Ociober 2021, the Company
filed a Netice of Bankmipecy Filing and Stay of Proceedings clarifying thal the aulomatic stay arising upon the Aling of the LTL Bankniptcy Case shoild
apply 1o the Cyprus adversary proceeding.

In February 2021, several of the Company ertsur-m Imrulwd In coverajie liigathon in New Jersey State Coun (the Coverage Action) filed 4 modion in the
Imerys Bankruptcy Court proceeding seeki de that the ic stay does not apply 1o the Coverage Action and, in the altemative, seeking
relief from ithe amtomatic sty 1o allow them 1o cominge to linigane thedr elaims in the Coverage Action. In March 2021, the Company filed a limited
respapse and reservation of rights with respect to the motion, The Court entered an agreed onder modifying the stay o allow the liigation in the Coverage
Mction bo continue. [n October 2021, LTL liled o Notice of Bankrupicy Filing and Stay of Proceedings clarifying that the automatic stay arising upon the
filing of the LTL Bankrupecy Case should apply to the Coverage Acikon,
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In February 2008, a securitles class action kawsull was filed agalnss Johnson & Jobnson and ceraln named officers in the United Staces Disericr Coun for
the District of Mew lersey, alleging that lobinson & Johnson violased the federal securities laws by falling wo disclose alleged ashesios contamination in
by perwelers containing tale, primarily JOHNSOMN'S® Baby Powder, and that purchasers of Johnson 8 Joheson's shares suffered losses as a resule
Fialnuffhmzhlnidmuags. In Apnil 2005, the Company moved to dismiss the complaint and briefing on the motion was complete & of August 2019, In
December 2009, the Count demied, in part, the motion (o dismiss, In March 2020, the meu{;umlllt complaint. In April 2021, briefing on
Plaintiffs' motion for class certficadion was completed. In July 2021, the Cnmpm_v filed a noabce of supplemental ambority in npp-:lshim 1 Plaimiff s
mation for class cevtification, aml Plaintile Tiled a nesponse, 1n December 2021, the Company liled & matian to supplement the clais centification recond,
ard in January 2022, Plamnil responded. Discavery is ongoling.

Im June 3019, & shaseholder filed o complaim indtiating a summary proceeding in New Jesey siate ooun (o o books and reconds imspection. 0 August
2005, Jabnson & Johnsan responded 1o the books and moords complaint and fiked a cross motion o dismiss, In September 2009, Plaintff replied and the
Court heard oml argument, In February 2022, the Coun granted Johrson 8 Jobhnson's oross mation 1o dismiss, In Ooiober 2009, December 2009, and
January 2020, Tour shareholders Bled four separae dervatlve Lawsulis against Johnson & fohmson s the nominal defendan and (s current directoss. and
certain officers a5 defendants in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey, alleging a broach of fiduciary duties related 1o the allegsd
nsbestos contamination i body powders comtaining tale, primarily JOHNSON'S® Baby Powder, and tha Jehnson & Jolnson has sulfered damsges os a
result of those alleged breaches, In Febrsary 2020, the four cases were consolidated imo a single action under the caption In ne Johnson & Jofnson Talc
Sinckholder Derbvrtve Litigarion, In July 2020, a repoat was delivered 1o the Company's Board of Direciors by independent counsel retained by the Board
o investigate the allegations in the derivatlve lawsults and in a series of shareholder leciers that the Board recelved ralsing similar issues and demanding
that suif be Brought againsg cestain Directors, Four of tbe sharebokbers who sent demands are plaintiffs in the Inre Johnson & Jobason Tole Stockholder
Derivattve Litigation. The independent counsel recommesnded that the Compiany reject the sharehalder demands asd 1ake the mﬂm are NeCEEsary ar
appropriate o secume dismissal of the derivative lawsoits, The Board unanimously adopeed the recommendations of the in t coursel’s report. In
Cretabeer 20240, the sharehilders Tled a consolidated complain, and in January 2021, Jolnson & Johnson moved o dismiss the consalidued mplalnr_ In
March 2021, Plaintiffs filed a motkon for discovery. The Coun temporarily serminated Johmson & Johnson’s motion 1o dismiss pending a decision on
Flaintll s motion for discovery, [n November J021, an the Couwns meqoest, the parties submined supplemental bricling an Plaingill s mation for discovery,

In Jamuary 2019, twa ERISA clas action lawsuits were filed by participants in the Johrson & Johnson Savings Plan againg Jehnson & Johnson, is
Pension and Bepefis Comminee, and ceraln named officers in the United States Disirict Coart for the Disrict of Mew Jersey, alleging that the defendants
bireached their Aduciary duties by offering Johnson & Johnson stock as a Johnson 8 Johnson Savings Plan investment option when il was improdent (o do
50 because of fallures w disclose alleged ashesios contamination in body powders comlaining tale, primarily JOHNSON'S" Baby Powder, Plainzifls are
seeking damages and injunctive relief. In September 2019, Defendants filed a motion w diemiss, In April 2020, the Cown granted Defendanis® motion but
granted leave w amend, bn June 2090, Plaintiffs filed an amembed complaing, and in July 2000, Defendants moved 1o dismiss the amended complaing, As al
Chotobeer 2020, briefing on Defendanis’ motion was complete. In Febmuary 2021, the Coun gramed Defendamis® mation, and granted Plaimiffs leave o
amend. In April 2021, Plaintifls informed the Court thet they did not ingend io file an amended complaint, and the Coun dismissed the case with prejudice.
In May 2021, Plainiffs filed a notice of sppeal with the Third Circwit. In July 2021, Mainfis (iled their opeaing beief in the Thind Circult and in Seplember
2021, Delendants filed their nse brief, and in Ccioher 2021, Plaintifts filed their reply bried, In January 2022, the Thind Circait brard oral angument.

A lawsuit was brought agaiest the Campa |n1l1r Sugml: Coun of Califomia for the County of San Diego alleging violations of Califomia’s Consumer
Legal Remedies Act (CLRA) relating io by Poswider. In that lawsuit, the plaintiffs allege that Jo & Johnson violsted the CLRA by
failing to provide reguired Proposition ESwam] In ]I.li' 20119, the Company filed a notice of removal to the United States District Court for the
Southem Distrier of California and plainuiifs fil meniled camplaint shonly thereafter. In October 2019, the Company moved 1o dismiss tbe
second amended complaint for fallure to state a tlilm wpan which reliel may be granted. In response o those motions, plaingifts filed a third amended
complaink. In December 2009, the Company movied to dismiss the thind amended complain lor falure (o stabe a claim upon which relief may be graried, In
Apeil 2020, the Court granted ihe motion o désmiss bul granted beave o amend. 1m May 2020, plaintiffs filed a Founh Amended Complain but imdscated
that they would be filing o maetion for leave e file o Gifth amended complaint, Plaimilfs filed 3 Fifth Amended Complaint in August 2020, The Campany
meved to dismiss the Filth Amended Complaint for fallure 1o sage o claim wpan which reliel may be granted. In January 2021, the Court issoed an Order
and opinion nling n the Company's favor and granting the motion o dismiss with prejudice. In Febnrry 2021, Plaintiffs filed a Notloe of Appeal with the
Wimh Circuit, Plainiiifs filed theis opening bricl in July 2021, The company filed its respansive brief in Qciober 2021, In Ociober 2021, Nodice of
Supggestion of Bankrupecy was filed with the Ninth Circule, A banknapecy stay was imposed in December 2021, and the Coun held the reply deadline in
aboyance,

In addition, the Company has received inquiries, subpoenis, and requests i produce documents regarding tale manters, incloding from Senator Mureay, a
imeriber of the Senate Commiitee o Healh, Education, Labor and Peisions, the Depariment of Jastice, the Subcommitiee oa Econmic and Consimer
Policy of the House Commines on Oversight and Reform, the Senate
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Committes om the Judiciary, the House Committer on Owversight amd Reform, and individual Members of Congress. The Company has produced documenis
and responded o Inguiries, and will conbnue o conperate with gaovemment Inguiries,

Claims for personal injury have been made against o oumber of Johnson & Johnson companies, Inchiding Jamssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc, and Jobnson 8
Iahnson, arising out of the e of INVOKANA®, a prescription medicagion Indicabed 10 improve glyveemic contral in adults with Type 2 diabetes, In
December 2016, lawsits filed in federl courts in the Unieed Sttes were coganized as a multi-district Heigation inihe Unioed Sates Districs Coun lor the
Dristrict od Mew Berwey, Cases have also been filed in state courts, Class action lawsaits have been filed in Canada, Product lability lassaiis conginue o be
filed, and the Company continues to receive infonmation with respect 1o potential costs and the anticipated number of cases, The Company has settled or
oherwise resolveed many of the cases andd claims in the United Seates and the coste associated with these seifements are reflected in ihe Company™s
aceruals,

Claims for personal injury have been made against o number of Johnson & Johnson companbes, nchuding Jamssen Pharmaceuticals, nc, and Jobnson &
Johnson, arising out of the we of ELMIRON®, a prescripiion medication indicated for the reliel of bladder pain or discomfon associated with imterstitial
cystitis, Thiese lowsaits, which allege that ELMIRON® comtrilutes o the developmen of permumnent retina injury and vision hes, have been liled i both
st and Tederal couns acroes the Unibed Stages. In December 2020, lawsailts fibed in lederal courts in the Unibed Stabes, including potative class actbon
cases seeking medical monitonng, were arganized as a molt-disirict lidgation in the United States District Court for the District of New lersey, Cases also
fave been filed in varioos state courts. Inaddition, three class action Liwsuits have been Tiled in Cansde. Product iabilicy lowsoies coatinae 1o be filed, and
the Compary catinees. 1o receive information with respect o potential costs amd the anticipated number of caes, The Company his established acenuals
far delense costs associated with ELMIRON® related product Babillity litigation.

INFELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Cemaln subsidiaries of Iohnson & Inhnson ane subject, from thime 1o time, i legal procesdings and claimes related o patent, rrademark and oaher Inelbecaal
property matters artsing oul of thelr businesses. Many of these matters imvolve challenges o the coverage and/or validity of the patenis on various products
anid alkegatlans that cemain of the Company's products infringe the patents of third panies. Although these subsidiaries believe that they have subsiantkal
deleises 1o twse challenges and allegations with respec oo all significant patems, deene can be no assurance as o the oulcome of ihese maiers. A loss
any of these cases could atdversely affect the ability of these subsidiaries i sell their produces, result in loss of sales due o loss of market exclusivity,
require the payment of past damages and fuiure royalties, and may result in @ non-cash impairment change for any associabed imangible assed. Significant
matters ane described below,

Mudical Devices

In December 2006, Dr. Ford Albrinen sued Acclarent, Inc. (Acclarent] in Unibed S4ates Distriot Coun for the Nonhem Disirict of Texas alleging that
Acclarent's RELIEVA® Spin and RELIEVEA SpinPlus® products idringe LS. Patent Moo 9,011,412, Dr. Albriton abso alleges beeach of contrace, (raud
anl that he is the true owner of Acclorent’s U5, Patent Mo, 8414473, Trial began in October 2021, and shortly therealter, the panties resched an agreement
tir setile the case, Plaimifi"s motion 1o dismiss with prejudice was filed in October 20210, The cae was dismizsed with prejudioe in Movember 2021,

In Auguest 2018, Intuitive Surgical, nc. and Tnmitive Surgical ations, I, (colbectively, Intuitive) filed a patent infringement suil against Aurds Health,
e, [ Auwris) bn Unived S1ates District Coun for the Distriol of De I the suit, Imuitive alleges willlul imfringement ol LS. Palent Nos, 6,245,200
(200, GASLTOL {701y 6,522,906 ("906); 68000056 (056 8,142,447 (447 ) BG20,473 ("473); 8,800,601 ("6 ); and 9452, 276 (*2T6) based on Auris®
Monmarch™ Plathorm. Auris Tiked IPR Petitions with the U5, Patent and Trademark Qifice (USPFTO) reganling the "200, "056, 601 "T01, 447, "276 and
906 patenis. Initve subsequendy dropped the ' 200, "473 and 701 patents from the sult. In December 2019, the USPTO instinned review of the "601
patent ancl denbed review af the *056 patent, 1n February and March X020, the USPTO institused review of the *300, 447, *701 and "906 patents and denbed
reviesw of the 276 patent. In December 2020, the USPTO declared all of the challenged claims in the "601 patent w be ivalid, Innaitive has appealed that
decksbon, In March 2021, the USFTC mibil ihat ibe challenged claims of dhe 247 and "5 patenis ane oot invalid, Avrls s appealed thid decislon, Awis
filend i vequeesst for reexamination of the 276 patent in Novemnlser 2021, and i Jonsry 2022, the USPTO grasted the reesamination request, Trial is
scleduled w begin in Jaimary 2023

In August 2019, RSB Spine LLC (RSB Spine) fled a patent infringement sult against Defay Synthes, Ioc, in the United Siates Districy Count for the
District of Delaware, In OGoober 2019, RSE Spine amended the complaing o change the named defendants o DePuy Synthes Sales, Dhe. and DePuy
Syntlses Products, Enc. In the sult, RSB Spine alleges williul infringement of United S1aes Patent Nas. 6,904,234 and 9,713,537 by oae or more of the
I'ullwrln;hgumm: LERO-PVA™ Spacer, ZEROP Spacer, ZERU-PF NATURAL™ Plate, SYSFIX™ LR Spacer and SYNFIX" Evolution Sysiem, RSE
Spine see

]
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monetary damages and injunciive reliel. In November 2019, the sult was consolidated for pre-trial purposes with other patemt infringement sults brooght by
RSB Spine in the Unlied States Districi Couri for the Disirict of Deldaware agairst Life Spine, Inc., Medacta USA, Inc., and Precision Spine, [nc. A siay
that bl been entened pending Inier Partes Review o the US. Patem & mark CHifice has been Hted, and irial is scheduled o begin in December X220

In March 2020, Osteopladtics, LLC fled a patent infringement sai against DePuy Svnthes, Ine. DePuy Symhes Products, ., Medical Device Bmsines
Services, Inc., and Synthes, Inc, {collectively, DePuy Symthes) in the Unived States Districyn Count for tee Distrio of Delaware, Inoihe swit, Osoeoplastics
alleges willful infringement of U5, Patert Nos. 8,781,557; 9,929,920; 9,330,206, 9,626,756, 9,672,617, 9.672,302; and 9,275,191 bised an the PROPLAN
CMIF* Virmal Sugbcal Planning Services and the TruMatch™ CMF Personalize Solutions. [n April 2020, Osteoplastics filed an amended camplaint o
substiute U5, Patent No. 9.292.920 for LS, Patent No. 9,929,920, Osteoplastics seeks monetary danages and injunctive relief, In June 2020, DePuy
Synthes filed & motion o dismiss the complaint. In October 2020, the Coun dismissed Medical Device Basiness Services, Inc. [rom the case bif altherwise
denied the motion. In June 2021, Osteoplastics admited that the PROPLAN CMF® Vinual Sugical Flanning Services do not infringe any asseried patents.
Trial was scheduled for October 2022, In October 2021, the case was settled and dismissed,

I Ocisber 2020, R Iniser LLC {Ras nj filed a patent infringement suil against DePuy Synthes Products, Inc., DePuy Synibes Sales,
Inc. and Medical Device Business Services, Inc. (oollecively, DePuy ) in the Undied Staves Disiriot Count for the Disirkon of Massachusens. Rasmassen
alleges that DePuy willfully infringes U,S. Patent Nos. 9,492, 180 and 10,517,583 [583) by making and selling the Atune® Ralanoed Sizer, In April 321,
Rasmussen sought permission to amend s infringement contentions to allege than DePuy also willlully infringes the "583 pment by making and selling the
Adtune® Bakincing Rlocks, Rasmussen seoks treble damages For willful infringement. Trial s scheduled for Pebnary 2002,

Ebarmaceutical
Litlgation Against Filers of Abbresviored New Drug Applications | ANDAs)

The fedlowing summarizes lawsuits the Company's subsidiaries have broaght aainst generic companies that have filed ANDAS with the U.S. FDA or
unchertaken similar regulatony provesses outside of the United Stajes, seeking (o market generic foams of producs sokl by varioos subsidiaries of Johnson &
Johnson priar s expiration of the applicable paents covering those prodects, These ANDA sypically inchuce allegations of non-infringement aml
invalidity of the applicable patents, In the ever the Company 's subsidiaries are not successful in an action, or the sulomatic statstory stay of the ANDAs
expires before the United Seates District Court rulings are obtained, the generic comparies invodved would have the ability, upon approval of the ULS. FDA,
to introduce genenic versiom of their producits 1o tle marked, resalting in te potential for sobstaitial piarket share snd revenoe losses lor the applicable
prodicts, and which may result in o non-cash impabment charge In any ssocined imangible ssse. In sddition, frem dme o dme, the Company s
subsidinries may senbe these types of actinns and such seizlements can invalve the introduction of generic versbons of the products al issoe to the markel
priar bo the expiration of the relevam patenis. The Inter Partes Review | IPR) process with the BSPTO, erested under the 2011 America Invents Act, Is also
beimg used at times by generic companies in conjunction with ANDAS and lawsaits, 1o challenge the applicable patents.

EYTIGA®

Beginnimy in Janwary 20189, Janssen Inc. and Jassen Oncology, [ne. (eollectively, Jamssen) initiated Statements of Claim under Section 6 of the Patented
Medicines (Notioe of Compliance) Regulations in Canada against Apotex Inc, (Apobex), Pharmascicnce Inc, (Pharmascience) and Dy, Reddy's Labertories
Ladl. and . Reddy's Loborsories, Inc. (collectively, DRL) in respoase 1o those parties” (iling of Abbreviated MNew Drug Submissions { ANDS) seeking
approval m market generic versions of ZYTHGA® before the expliration of the Canadian Patent No, 2,661,422 (*422). The mial In these actions conclhuded in
MNovember 2020, and the Court ssued a decision holding the "422 pabend invalld in January 2021, In Febmary 2021, Janssén appealed the decisbon,

XARELTOY

Im March 2021, Pansien Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (JPI) and Bayer Pharma AG and Bayer AG (callectively, Bayer) filed a patent infringement lawsait in thwe
Uniied Ssabes Districy Coun for the District of Delaware againsi Lupin Limided and Lupln Pharmaceuticals, Inc, which filed an ANDA secking approval o
markeet a generic version of XARELTO" before expiration of LS. Parent Moo 10,828,310 (310

Im May H021, JP'and Bayer filed & paset infrimgement Tawsai in the United Siates Districn Court for the District of Delaware against D, Reddy's
Laboratories, Inc. and De. Reddy's Laboratories, Lid. which filed an ANDA seeking approval i marked a geseric verston of XARELTO® before explration
al the *310 patent.
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I July 2021, JP1 amd Beaver filed a patent infringement liwsuit in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware against Taro Pharmaceutical
Inchastries Lid. and Taro Pharmacewicals US_AL, Inc. (collecdvely, Taro) which filed an ANDA seeking approval to market 2 generic version of
KNARELTO® before expiration of e *310 paten.

In July 2021, JP1 and Bayer filed a patent infringement lowsuli in the United Swies Disirlct Court for the Districe of Delaware agalnst Teva Fharmaceuticals
USA, Inc. amsd Teva Pharmeceutical Indusiries Lid. which filed an ANDA seehing approval e markel & generic version of XARELTO" before expiration of
the "3 10 patent, In August 2021, the oot entered a Joint stipulation dismissing Teva Pharmaceutical Indlustries Lid,

In Odctober 2021, the coun consolldated the Delaware lawsuits for all parposes, Including trial. Trial for the consolidated Delaware lawsubis ks scheduled o
beggin in May 2023,

Im Juily 2021, JP! and Bayer filed a patent infringement lawsuli in the Unbied Seaies Disirict Cour for the Nenhem Disiro of West Vinginla agains hMylan
Pharmaceuticals Inc, and Mylan Inc, which filed an ANDA seeking approval te market a generic version of XARELTO" before expiration of the 310
patent. In August 2021, JPI and Bayer filed a motion before the United States Judicial Paned on Mubiidisano Liigacion (the MDL paned) to transfer this
lawsudt 1o the United Staes District Coan for the District of Delaware for coordinated and consolidated prewrial proceedings. In December 2021, the MDL
panel granted the mation. No trial date has been st n thils ewsail

In each of these Liwsuits, 1" and Bayer are seeking an order enjoining defendants from markeiing their generic version of XARELTO® belome the
expration of the *310 patent.

INVOKANAYINVOKAMET INVOKAMET XR™

In Ohcwober 2018, Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc, Janssen Research & Development, LLC. Cllag GmbH Imemational and lanssen Phammacoutica NV
[collectively, Janssen) and Mitsuhishi Tanabe Pharma Corporation (MTPC) iniiated a patent infringement Lawsuit in the Unived Siates District Court for
the District of Mew lersey against Dr. Reddy's Laboratories, [ne. amd Dr. Redidy™s Laboratories Ld (DRL), who [led an ANDA seeking approval 1o market
a generic version of INVOKAMET" befare expimtion of MTFC s United Seaies Patent Mo, 7,043 788 (" 7881 relating oo INVOKAMET™. In January 2021,
Janssen and MTPC filed a patent infringement Liwsuit in the United States District Court for the District of Mew Jersey against Macleods Pharmaceuticals,
L. and Macleods Pharma USA, Inc. (Macleods), which filed an ANDA seeking approval 10 market a genenic version of [INVOKAMET XR® befone
expiration af MTPC s United States Patent Nos, 7,943,502 ("502) ambior B,512.202 ("02) relating 1o INVOKAMET XR".

Incach of these ULS, lawsuies, Jansen and MTPC are secking an onder enjoining the defendant from marketing their generic versions of INVOEAMET®
and'or, INVOKAMET XB" before the expiration of the relevant patents.

T Octoleer 2020, Jamssen Inc., Manssen Pharmuceitica NV aml MTPC initioted o Sestement of Claim under Section 6 of e Paiented Medicines (Notice of
Compliance) Regulations against Sandoe, Canatla Inc. {Samdoz) in Camacla in response 1o Sandoz’s ling of @ ANDS seeking approval o market a generic
viersion of INVOEANA® before the explration of the Cansdian Patent Nos. 2,799,304, 2,534,024 and 2,671,357, Janssen Inc., Janssen Pharmaceutica NV
ard M are secking an anber enjoining Sandoe from marketing is generic version of INVORANA® before the expiration of the relevant patents, The
triad is scheduled bo begin in Augua 2002,

PSUMIT®

I May 3020, Janssen Inc, (larssen) and Actelion Pharmaceuticals Lad { Actelion) initisted o Stavement of Claim under Section 6 of the Patented Medicines
[Motice of Compliance) Regulations against Sandoz Canada Inc, (Sandoe) in Canada in response i Sandoe”s filing of an ANDS secking approval 1o market
i gt version ol OPSUMIT® 10 mg, before the explration of Canstian Paenl No. 2,657 70 (770} Trial is cagoing.

I May 2020, Tanssen and Aceelion initiated a Stement of Claim ander Section 6 of the Fatented Medicines (Notice of Compliance) Regulations agains
Apotex o, {Apotex) in Conada in nsponse to Apotex™s filing of an ANDS secking approval to market a generic sersion af OPSUMIT® 10 mg, befane the
expiration af the *770 patert, Trial is schedubed 10 beggin in February 2022

In July 2020, lanssen and Acielion initlsted o Seaement of Clalm under Section 6 of the Patented Midicines (Motice of Compliance) Regulations against
JAMP Plarma Corporation (JAMP) in Canada in response o JAMP's filing of an ANDS seeking approval i market a generic version of OPSUMIT® 10
myg bisfore the pxpiration af dee 770 patest and Cansdian Patent Mo, 2,621,273 (2731 Trial is scheduled 1o begin in Aprl 2022,
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I each of these Cansdian actions, Janssen and Actelion are secking an order enjoining the defendants from marketing their generic versions of OPSUMIT®
before the expiration of the relevant paents.

INVEGA SUSTENNA®

In Janwary 2018, Jarssen Phamaceutica WY and Janssen Phammaceuticals, Ine. (collectivily, Jnssen) initiated a patent infringement Lowsuit in the Uinited
States Diserict Coun for the Districn of New lersey agains Teva Phammsceutioals USA, Dnc. {Tewva), which [Hed an ANDA seeking approval 1o market a
generic version of INVEGA SUSTENNA® betore the expiration of United States Patent Mo, 9,839,906  "906), Trial concluded in Ocober 2020, In October
2021, the coun isssed a decision in Janssen’s favor, Teva bas appealed the decision,

In August 2019, Jarssen [nitlated a patent Infringement lnwsuln in the Unbied States Disirict Court for the District of Mew Jersey against Mylan
Labaratocies Timited (Mylan), which filed an ANDA seeking approval o market a generic version of INVEGA SUSTENNA™ befare the expiration of ihe
"o paient. Parszand b an agreement h]l ihe -rw'llm ]u‘lﬁmlrﬂ im Favewr of lamssen was eniened bn Deceméber 2021, lu'ly!a'l has filed an alppqul

In December 2009, Jamssen initiated a patent infringement lawsuis in the United States District Courts for the Disificis of New Jersey and Delaware agains
Pharmascience Inc., Mallinckrodt PLC and Specgy LLC (colleciively, Plharmascimce), which Gled an ANDA seeking spproval to market 3 generic version
of INVEGA SUSTENNA® before the expiration of the "S90G patent,

Im Movermber 2021, Janssen initiated a paent infringement lawsuit in the United Seates District Cour for the District of Delawane against Tolmar, Inc.,
Tulmar Therapeutics, Inc., Tolmar Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Tolmar Holding, Ine. (collectively, Tolmar), which filed an ANDA seeking approval to mearket
a generic version of INVEGA SUSTENNA® before the expintion of the *906 patent,

i each of these U5, lawsults, fanssen bs seeking an order enjoining the defendant from marketing a generic version of INVEGA SUSTENNA® befone the
expiration of the relevant patents,

In February 2008, Janssen Inc, and Janssen Pharmaceatica NV {colleciively, Jams=en Canada) initiated a Statement of Claim ander Sectlon & of the
Patented Medicines (MNotice of Compliance) Regulations against Teva Canada Limited (Teva Caniula) in response 1o Teva's filing of an ANDS secking
appeoval b marked a generic version of INVEGA SUSTENMA" befare ihe expiration of Canadian Patent MNos, 2,300,620 (*629) and 3,655,335 (' 335).
Janssen subsequently discontimesd the portion of the lawsult relating to the "629 patent, In May 2020, the Canadian Federal Court bssued a Public Judgment
aml Reasons deckaring shat Teva Canada®s generic version of INVEGA SUSTENNA®, il approved, would infringe cemain claims of the "335 patert and
that the clnims of the "X35 patent are not mvalid Tor obvioasness. Teva Canada appealed,

In Movember 2000, Janssen Canada inltiated 2 Staiemeni of Claim under Section 6 of the Paienied Medicines {Notice of Compliancel Regolations against
Pharmascience Inc. in response (o Pharmascience Ine's filing of an ANDS sseking spproval i marked & genedc version of INVEGA SUSTENNA®Y belore
the expiration of the 335 patenl. A summary trial on the isee of infringement ok place in Nevember 2020, In lanuary 2022, ihe Cout issed a decision
in favor of Janssen on the ssue of infringement. A trial on the issue of validity is scheduled o begin in July 20232,

I Janwary 2021, Jmssen Cosla initioted o Stsement of Claim uiler Section 6 ol the Patemted Medicines, (Notice of Complience) Regulations against
Apatex Ine, (Apotex) In response o Apaiex's liling of an ANDS secking appooval 1o maket a generic version al INVEGA SUSTENNA® belore il
expiration of the *335 patent. A summary irial on the Issue of infringement ook place in December 20210, In January 2022, the Court Issued a decision in
favor of Janssen on the issue of infingement. Apotex has not comested validity.

In each of these Canadian lawsulis, lanssen Canada Is seeking an order enjoining the defendant from marketing a generic version of INVEGA
SUSTENNA®" hefore the expimtion of the relevant patents,

INVEGA TRINZAT

In September 2020, Janssen Phamaceuticals, Inc., Jamssen Phammaceutica NY, and Janssen Research & Development, LLC (collectively, Janssen) initiated
i patent infringement lowsuit in the United Seates Dismict Court for the District of New lersey agsinst Mylan Laboratories Limived, Mylan Pharmoceuticals
Inic., and Mylan Institmional LLC (collectively, Mylan), Mylan filed an ANDA seeking approval to market generic versions of INVEGA TRINZA® (546
mgl belore expiration of United States Pacent Mo, 10,143,650 {'693) relating 10 INVEGA TRINZA" (546 mg). lanssen is seeking an nder enfeining Mylan
from marketing & generic version of INVEGA TRINAA® before the explmtion of the ‘693 patent. Trial Is sc ed 1o begin in October 2022
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Im Augusi 2021, Jarssen initated o patent infringement lawssit in abe United States District Court for the District of New Jersey against Mylan, Mylan filsd
an ANDA seeking approval vo market generic versions of INVEGA TRINZA® (819 mg) before explration of the ‘593 patent. Janssen ks seeking an onder
enjoining Mylan from marketing a generic version of INVEGA TRINZA® (819 myg) before the expimtion of the "653 patent,

In Oxcioher 2021, Janssen Inltkzted a paent infringement lawsain in e Unbed Staes Disicn Coun for the Districo of New Jersey against Mylan, Mylan
filed an ANDA seeking approval o market generic versions of INVEGA THINAA" (273 mg and 410 mg) before expiration of the '6493 patent. Janssen is
seeking an order enjeining Mylan from marketing a geseric verslon of INVEGA TRINZA® (273 mg and 410 mg) before the explration of the "693 patent.

I January 2022, the count consolidared the three cases into the case filed in Seprember 2020,
IMBRUVICA®

In March 201%, Pharmacyclics LLC {Pharmacyclics) and Fanssen Biotech, Inc. (JBI) filed a patent Infringement Lawsudt in the Uniced States Disiriol Coart
for the District of Delaware agalnst Alvogen Pine Brook LLEC and Maton Pharma Lid, (collectively, Alvogen), which filed an ANDA seeking approval o
market generic versions of IMBRUVICA® wbless, assening (nfringement of United States Patent Nos. 7,514,484 8,003,309, 8. 476,284; BA97,277;
BT, T11: 8,753 403, 8,754,000 8,754,001 8,052,015, 957,070 B,181,257; 9,206, 753; 655,057 0,725,455, 10,000,507, 10,106,548; and 10,125,140,
I Jume 3019, Pharmacyclics and JBI amended their complaing agalnst Alvogen to further allege infringement of Unied Seates Patem Mo, 10,213,366,
Pharmacyclics and JBI are seeking an order enjolning the defendants fom marketing generic versions of IMBRUVICA® before the expirabon of the
redevant patents,

Trial against Alvogen ook place in Octaber 2030 In Augast 2021, the Distrion Coun issued a decision in favor of Pharmacyclies and Janssen finding the
assened claims against Alvogen o be infringed and not invalid. Alvegen has appealed that decislon,

In Seprember 2021, Pharmacyclics and Janssen Inc. {JTanssen Canaba) initiated Statements of Claim under Section & of the Patented Medicines (Natice of
Compliance} Regulations against Matco Pharma (Canada) Inc, (MNatca) in response to Nabeo®s filing of two ANDSs secking approval 1o market generic
versions of IMBRUVICA® capsules before the expiration of Canadian Patem Nos. 20663 116; 2.520,721; 2,600,913, 3,007, 77; 3,007,706, 2,675,906, and
3,022,356, The trial is scheduled 1o begin in July 2023, Pharmacyclics and Janssen are seeking o order enjoining Magco from markeling is generic
versions of IMBRUVICA" before the expisation of te relevand patenis.

UPTRAV]®

In Apeil 2020, Actelion Pharmaceuticals Liod { Aceelion) amd Nippon Shinvaku Ca., Lud (Nippon Shinyaku) inielated a patent infringement Lawsuit in the
Unitedl States Diserict Count for the Diserict of Mew Jersey agaime Zydis Pharmacesticals (USA), Ine, and Zydus Worldwide MO (collectively, Pyrus),
wha filed am ANDA seeking appeoval to market & generic version of LIIFTIRAVI® before expiration of Bippan Shinyaku's Linied Staes Patent Nos.
7,305,302 ("302); relating in UPTRAVT®. Actelion is the exclusive licensee of the "302 patent, In Jansary 2022, Actelion, Nippon Shinyaka and Zydus
enilered into o confidential setrlement agreement and the lawsuil was dismissed.

GOVERNMENT FROCEEDINGS

L‘lh' I:"'l'r :m'l]mlﬂ. in the pharmaceutical, consumer healih and medical devices isdustries, Johnson & Johnson and certain af its subsidiaries ane subject

L ve regulation by national, state and local government agencies inibe United States and cther coumries in which they operate. Such regulation has
|th||1he basis of govemment investigaiions snd Lidgations. The nses sigailicant liigation bouwghi by, and imvestigations conduced by, govermen
ngencies are listed below. 1 is posailibe it eriminol charges amd substantial lioes and'or cavil penalties of damages coubil resalt froin govemient
investigntions or litigaion,

Axerape Wholesale Price { AWE) Litigation

Johnson & Jobnsom and several of s phamacewical subsidiaries (the 18 AWT Defendanes), along with numerous ather pharmacewtical companies, wene
named as defendants in o sedes of lawsuits i stave and federal courns imvalving allegstions that the pricing and marketing of cenain phenmaceutical
products amouisted vo raudulen and otlerwise actionable comluo becaase, amom otier drings, the conpanies allegedly reporned an inflased Average

‘Whalesabe Price (AWP) for the drugs at issue. Payors alleged that they used those AWFs in caloulating provider reimbursement levels. The plainoifs in
these cases included three classes of private persons or entities that pald for amy poenbon of the purchase of the drogs at ssue based on
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AWP, and state ggovernment entities that made Medicaid payments for the drogs 3 issue based on AWE Many of these cases, both federal actions and state
actions remaved o federal coant, wene consolidaied for pre-erial purposes in o mubti-istrict liigation in the United States District Coart for tbe Disirict of
Massachuseeis, where all claims against the }el AWP Defendants were ulimately dismissed, The 1) AWP Defendants also provailed ina case brought by
the Commaonwealih of Peansylvania. Other AW cases have been resalved through court onder or sedlement. The case brought by lllinais was setiled after
trial, In New Jemsey, a putative class action based upon AWP allegations Is pending against Centocor, Inc, and Ortho Biotech Inc. (both now lanssen
Bioeech, Inc,), Johnson & Joheson and ALZA Corporatbon, Al other cases bave been resahved,

Oopdoid Litizaon

Beginning in 2004 and contimuing w ihe present, Johnson & Johnsom and Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (JP1), along with other pharmaceutical companles,
hawve been named in approximately 2400 Lawsuits related o the marketing of opioids, including DURAGESIC®, NUCYNTA® and NUCYNTA® ER. The
suils also raise allegations related 10 previously owned active pharmaceutical ingredient supplier subsidiaries, Tasmanian Alkaloids Py, Lid. and Nosmeo,
Inc. subsidiaries were divested in 2016). The majority of the cases have been fled by staie and local governments. Similar lawsulis have also been
I‘ﬂ:d%rivm plaingiifs and organizations, including bus not limited to e following: individual plaingiffs oo bebalf of children saffering from Neasastal
Abstipence Syndrome; hospliaks; and healih insurers/ payoss. To date, complaines against pharmaceutical mamufacnerers, Including Johnson & Johrson and
JPI, have been filed by the state Atomeys Genceral in Arkansas, Florida, hiaho, Winois, Kenocky, Lovisiana, Mississippl, Missourd, Mevada, New
Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, (hio, Okkhoma, South Dakota, Texss, Washingion and West Virginia. Complaints againa the
mamufachsrers also have been filed in state or federal count by city, county and local govermment agencies in the follewing states: Alabama, Arizona,
Arkansas, Califomia, Colorade, Connecticu, Delawane, Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Tisha, Wlinos, Indiana, Towa, Korsas, Keatocky, Lowisiana, Maine,
Maryland, Massachuseris, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippl, Missourl, Moniana, Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshine, New Jersey, New Mexloo, New
Youk, Norh Camolina, North Dakota, Ohlo, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Rhode [sland, South Carolina, South Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah,
Vermont, Yirgnia, Washingron, West Virginia, Wisconsin, and Wyomiag. The Government of Puerto Rico filed suit in Superior Coun of San Juan. There
are over 380 cases pending in vanious state courts. There ame chose to 3,000 federal cases coondinased in a federal Multi-Dastrict Litigation {(MDL) pending
in the LS, District Count for the Norherm Disicict of Ohio, In addtion, the Frovinoe of British Calumbin fled seitagainsg Jobisaon & Johnson asd is
Canadian affiliate lanssen Inc., and many other industry members, in Canada, and is seeking to have that action certified as an opt in class actbon on behali
al oiher provinclaliteriiorial aad the Tederal in Canada, Additional proposed class actions have been filed in Canada agalns Johnson &
Johnson and Janssen Inc., and many oher | ry members, by and on behall of people who wsed aploids (lor personal injuries), municipalities and Firse
MNatbons bands. In Oceober 2019, an antimast complaing was filed by privare plaintffs in federal court in Tennessee and is pending transfer 1o the MDD,
These actions allege & varieey of claims related 1o opiosd marketing practices, inchuding false advertising, unfair competition, public nuisance, consumer
fraud violations, decepaive aos amd practices, false clalms amd unjust enrichment. The suls generally seek penaltles amdior Injuncive and monetary relief
arml, in somme of ibe suils, the plaindfs are seeking joint and several labiliy among the defendants. An adverse judgment inany of these Lwsuiis could
result in the imposition of lage mosetary penabiies and significant damages ingloling, punitive domages, cost af alaatement, substantial lees, equitable
remedies and other sanctions,

In 2019, the trial in the matter filed by the Oklahoma Attomey General resubied in a judgment against Johnson & Johnsan and JP1 in the amount of

5465 million, Johnsan & Sohmson and 1P1 appealed the judgment, and in November 2021, the Oklahoma Supreme Coun reversed the trial coun’s judgment,
In Ohctober 20189 bohnson & Johnsos and 1171 announced a settlement of the first case set for trial in the MDL with two countles in Ohlo, In Apeil 2021,
three California courties and the City of Ouakland commenced a trial in California state cou agains Johnson & Jobieon and JPL and other affiliages, as
well as threw other pharmacewtical manufacoress. The trial concluded in Ociober 2021, and in December 20210, the Court erered a Tinal irial judgment in
favor of Defendants on all claims. In Febmary 2022, Pladntiffs’ motkon bo set aside and vacate the judgment was denbed

I August 2019, Johasan & Johnson received a grand jury subpoena from the Unioed Staees Anarmey®s Offioe for the Eastern Disrict of Mew Yook for
documenis related to the Company's anti-diversion policies and procedures and distribation of ks opisid medications, in what the Company understands w
b pant of @ broader Investigation ino mamufacturers” and disisbuors’ monlioring programs and reponing under the Conrolled Substanoes Act. In
Sepiember 2019, Johnson & Johnson received subpoenas from the Mew York Ste Deparment of Financial Services (NYDFS) as part of an indusary-wide
incquiry into the effec of opioid prescriptions on New York health imsurance premiomes. In September 2020, the Company leamed that NYDFS fled a
statemen of charges relabed 1o ihis investigadon.

In Jume 2021, the Company and JP announced a settlement agreement with the Staie of New York and its panticipating subdivisions, including Nassau
County and Suffolk County, resolving their opioid-related claims against the Company on berms consisten with the Company s previously announced

agreement in principle 1o contribuge up to 55 billion o all-in setilement of opioid-relaed claims by staies, cities, counties, and inbal governmenss. The
mllmt:Jr plwlduﬂ:w Yok and iz parilcipating subdivisions with up i S261 million to address oplobd-related issses, relmbures atiomey fees and

costs, ami removes
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Company and Janssen from a multl-defendant wrial of opiold-relaed clalims thar commenced in Suffolk County in Jume 2021, In exchange, the Company
and JM receive mleases from the claims asseried by Mew Yaork and the participating pariies, including NYDFS.

In Ohciober 2021, the Company and JP1 announced a sentlement agreement wiih the S1ae of Texas and bis panicipating subdivisions, including Dallas
County, Bexar Cownty, and Tarrant Courny, resolving their opioid-related claims againg the Company on lerms consistent with the Company's proviously
arnenenced agreensent g contribute up to 85 billion s all-in setlement of opicid-related claims by states, cities, counties, aned tribal governments, The
settlement provides Texas amd its participating subidivisions with up 1o 5297 million 1o address opiold-related fssues and reimborse aitomey fees and costs,
anil remaves the Company and Tamssen from moed-delendam bel beether trials of opioid-relansd claims scheduled m commence in Texass site couns in
early 2022, In exchange, the Cosepany and JPL will receive releases [rom the claims aserted by Texas and the participating subidivisions,

Johnaon & Jobnson, JPE and other pharmaceutical companies have also received subpoenas or requests for information related 1o opicich marketing
practices from the follvwing siate Alromeys General: Alaska, Indiana, Monana, New Hampshire, Souith Camlina, Tennessee, Texas and ‘Washingion. In
Seplember 2017, Johmon & Johnson and 1P were contacted by the Texas and Colorsda Attomey General™s Offices an behall of approximately 38 siases
regarding o multi-state Attomey General investigation. [n October 2019, the Company snnounced a proposed sgreement bn principle that would include the
Company paying $4 hillion as sealememt of these matters. In October 2020, the Company agreed o contribute up to an additional 51 billion to an all-in
settlement amourt thal would resalbve opioid Liwsuits filed and fusure claims by states, cities, counties amd ribal governments, for a total of 35 billion

witch has been accrued, subject to varows conditbons and an agreement being finalized. This agreemeni in principle is mot an admission of lability or
wimg-doing. In July 2021, the Company announced that the terms of the agreement o seitle the slate and subdivision clabms have been finalized and op s
one-third of the all-in setilement is expecied 1o be paid within the nest 12 moaths, depending upon the level of participation by the staes and their
subifivisions, The torms provide a pericd of time for states 10 elect 1o panicipate in the agreement and, therealier, a period for the subdivisions of the
paricipating swtes wopl-in. As of lamary 2022, 45 staes, five territorkes, and e Distriot of Columbia had 0 participate in the seitbement, The
subdivision opt-in period expired In January 2022, The Company redalns the dight 1o opt-out of the agreement until late February 20022 if, in lis sole
discretion, there i insulficien panticipation. Based on expected panticipation, the Company hes commiited in advance i proceed with the weitlement in five
ol the panicipating states {Kew York, Texas, Florida, Nevada, and Mew Mexico) and with oribal govemmens, whose cases were schoduled for edal in 2021,
022, nr W23

From June 2017 through December 2019, the Company™s Bourd of Direciors received & series of shareholder demand letvers slleging breaches of fiduciary
dutles relabesd w ihe marketing of opiokds, The Boarnd retaloed Independent coansel o investigaie the allegations inihe demands, and in April 2020,
Independent counse] delivered a report to the Board recommending that the Company reject the sharehobder demands and rake the steps that are necessary
or apprapriate 1o secure dismissal of relaied dervative titdgation. The Board unanimously adoped the recommendations of the independem counsel's

repor,

In Movember 2019, ane of the shareholders who sent a demand filed & derivaiive complaint against Johnson & lohnson s the nomina defendam and
certain current and former directers and officens as defendants in the Superior Court of New Jersey, The complaint alleges breaches of Aduciary duties
relaied oo the marketing of opioids. and that ehrson & Johnson has suffered damages as a resuli of those alleged boeaches, In May 2020, the sharcholder
filed an amended complakne challenging the Boand®s rejection of his demamd. In August 2020, lohnson & lohnson moved o dismiss the amended
complaint. In February 2021, the Coun held ol agument on Johrsan & fobnson®s modon. I Febouary 2022, the Coun granted Jolnson & Johnsan's
metion b dismiss the amemnded complaink In August 2020, another shareholder who sent o demand filed a sepasate derivative complaint in the me court
making similar allegations, In Octeber 2020, the Coun granied defendants” mequest 1 reassign the second-filed case o the division where the first-filed
case is pending.

In December 2009, two addithonal shareholders who sent demands filed rwo separate derivative complalins making simblar allegaons against Johsson S
Jahison s the nominal delendaing aod coraln cument and former direcions and afflcens as defomlants bithe Unied States Districe Gor the Distict of New
Jersey. In April 2020, the vwin federa] cases wene consolidated im a single acton capiboned tn re Johnson & Sofnson Opdeld Sickholder Derivarive
Lingarian, in July 2020, the sharchalders filed a consolidaced complaint. In Sepiember 2020, Johnson & Johason moved w0 dismiss the copsolidsted
complaing, and in December 2020, the shareholders opposed Johison & Jobhnsons motion Jolmsen & Johimson (iled s reply in Febnuery 2021, In July
2020, an addiional sharehobder wiho sent a demand filed a derivative complaing in the samie Tederal court making sbimilar allegaions againse te same
defencants named in the comalidated action. In January 2021, purswami to an onder in the consalidaied action, the thind case was comalidated into the
consalidaved scton, In February 2021, the Count granted ibe shareholders motion 1o volunarly dismiss the consolidsted action whhour prejudice, and the
shareholders’ counsel then filed a notice of association in the frst-Miled dedvative action pending in the Superior Cournt of New lemscy,

947
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In August 2012, DePuy Onhopaedics, Inc., DePuy, Inc. (now known as DePPuy Synthes, Inc.), and Jehnson & Fohnson Services, Inc. (collectively DePuy)
received an informal request from the United Seates Anomeys Office for the District of Massachuseits and the Civil Division of the Unitesl Staces

enil of Justice (the United Seates) lor the production of matesials relating 1o the Defuy ASR™ XL Hip device. In July 2014, il United States
natified the United Saates Districn Count for the District of Massachasetis that it had declined to intervenc in a qui tom case filed pursuant to the False
Claims Act agaimst the companies concerning the hip devices. In February 2016, the Distrdct Coun granted the companies’ motion 1o dismiss with
prejudice, unsealed the gl tmm complaing, and denbed the gui ram relaiors’ request for leave o file a funher amenided complain. The gui ram relaiors
appeeaded the case to the United Stapes Court of Appeads for the Firs Circuit. In July 2017, the Fird Circuit alfirmed the District Court™s dismissal in pan,
reversed in pan, and affinmed ibe declsion o deny the relators” request to file a third amended complaint. In March 2021, DePuy filed fis motien to strike
and dismiss the relators second amended complaing; the District Court denbed DePuy's motion (o strike and dismiss in July 2021, DePuy filed 3 mation for
reconsideration of the District Court™s July 2021 ruling. In November 2021, the District Court gramted DePuy's mation lor reconsidenation and dismissed
the case with prejudice. The Diswrict Coun’s onder was unsealed in December 2021, The Relators filed several post-dismissal motions, including a Jamuary
022 ommitus mation for mecoasideration, Following the District Coun’s order dismissing the case with prejudice, DePuy filed o December 2021 motion
seekimg the recovery of allomeys’ fees.

In October 2012, Johnson & bohnson was contacted by the California Anomey General’s office regarding a mulii-state Atomey General lnvestgation of
the marketing of surgical mesh products for hernia and urogynecological purposes by Joheson & Fohnson'’s subsidiary, Eihicon, Inc, (Ethicon). In May
X006, Califarmnin snd Washingion (iled civil complainis against Jahnson B lohnson, Ethicon and Ethicon US, LLC alleging violations of their consumer
progection statutes, Similar complainds were filed againsd the companies by the following staes: Kenmucky, Mississippd, West Vimginia and Oregon, In April
2019, Johnson & Johnson and Ethicon seitled the Washington case. The Califormia case staned trial in July 3019 and concluded in September 2019, In
Chotobeer 2019, Johnson & Johnson and Ethlcon seeled the mulil-state [nvestigation with 41 other states and the Disiro of Columbia In January 2020, the
Court in Califomia Issued a statement of decision, finding in fovor of the Siate of California, and awarded civil penabiies in the amount of 5344 millien, In
Apeil 2020, the Court in California denied the Company's motion for o pew idal. In August 2020, the Court entered judgnsent with respect 1o the penalties.

534 million, bui denied the Attomey General's request for injunctive relief. The Company is appealing the penalty judgment. In April 2020, the
Com EE fitl:ld the West Virginia case, In Ooiober 2020, the Company seitled with the Attomey General of Oregon. Trial in the Kesocky matter is

or May 2023,

In Jume 2014, the Mississippd Attomey General filed a complaint in Chancery Court of The First Judicial Disirict of Hinds County, Mississippl against
Johnson & Jobnson and Johnson & Johnson Corsumer Companies, Inc, (pow known as Johnson & Johnson Consumer Inc.) (collectively, JICI) The
camplaint alleges that 1ICH vialated the Mississippi Consumer Protection At by failing to disclose alleged healih risks associated with female comsumers'
use of tale contalned in MOHNSON'S® Taby Powder and JOHMNSON'S® Shower io Shower (a product divesoed in 200.2) and seeks infunctive and monciary
relief. Johnson & Jahnson and DCT moved for summary judgment on the grouncs that the State’s clidm was bamed by preempeion, swhich ibe mial court
densed. The Mississippd Supreme Count granted Johnson 8 Johnsan and JEs request o file an intedocatary appeal of the denial of the motion o
summary julgment in lote S5 Briefing and oral angument were completsd. Thereadter, the Count rejected the imedocsiory appeal in April 2021 and
remanibedd the matter (o the trial coun. Thereafeer, the State moved for g trial seting, UC] ohjected o any mrial setting doe g the L1 Banknapacy and tha
ary decision on whether the stay applied should be deferred 1o ihe LTL Bankruptey coun. The Stale opposed any stay and argued that the rial court shoubd
decide it conceming the stay, The motion for trial setting and JICT's objections were heard in Novemnber 20210 and in January 2022, the Court granted
plaintill s mation far trial seing and directed the parties to consult with the Count sdmindstrator to secure a tral date. Thal process is underway. In Augus
2021, 11C1 fileed & Petition for Writ of Certiorari in the United States Supreme Court s to the Missisippi Supreme Couns miling of April 2021, the State
responded o the Petition foe Writ ol Certiorar in November 2021, the LCT filed o reply in Kovember 2000, wud the United Stases Supreme Cowen desiad
the Petition for Wit of Certiorar in December 2021,

I Jamimary 2020, the "'»H:l:rl Nisw Mexico filed a consumer protection case alleging that the Conspany deceplively marketed and sald its wlaim powder
prochists by making misrepre ions about the sifety of the prodiscts and the presence of carcinogens, inchiling ashesios. The Staee of New Mexion filled
an Amended Complaint in March 20200 The Company moved to dismiss ceiain of the claims inotbe Amended Cnmpi.'lll'lt_ which was granted, The
Company then filed o motion bor partial judgment on the pleadings in December 2030, which wos denied, The Company masde it firg document
produstion in Febnaary 2021 amd discovery is amently scheduled w close on April 25, 2022

Fory<twa states and the District of Columbia have commenced a joint investigaibon into the Company s marketing of its taloam powder producs, At this
time, the multi-stabe group has nal asserted any claims against the Company. Five states have [ssued Civil Investigative Demands seeking documents andd
mher infarmation. The Caompany has produced docoments 10 Arzona,
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MNorth Carolina, Texas, and Washington and entered into confidentiality agreemenis. The Company has not received any follow up requests from those
states,

I March 2016, Janscen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (JPL) received a Civil Investgative Demand Erom the United Stanes Anomey s Office for the Southem
Dismrict of Mew York related 1w JP1's coneracoal relationships with phammacy benefin managers over the period from Ranuary 1, 2006 1o the presem with
regand to certain of JP1s pharmaceutical products. The demand was tssoed |n conmection with an investigation under the False Claims Act. The Comipany
has provided documents in esponse (o the demand.

I hily 2016, Johoman 8 Tobmson and Janssen Products 1P were serasd with a quei fom eomplaint paimsiant 1o the False Claims Act filed in the Unised States
istrict Court For the District of New Jersey albeging the off-labe] promation of rea HIV products, PREZISTA® and INTELENCE®, and anti-kickhack
vinlations in connection with the pmmation of these products, The complaing was filed under seal in December 300 2 The federal and state govermments.
have declined 10 intervene, and ehe Lwsuit is being prsecuted by the relaor. The Coun denied summary judgment on all elaims in December 2021,
Dumibert motlons were granted in pan and denled in pant in lanuary 2022, and the case s procesding o inal.

In March 2017, Janssen Biotech, Inc, (A1) received a Civil Invessigative Demand from the United Staies Department of Justice reganding a False Claims
Aot Investigabon conceming managenent ane asdvisory services provided 1o rheumatology aml gaestoenteralogy practices that purchased REMICADE® or
SIMPONL ARIA", In August 2009, the Unitesd States. Department of Justioe naotifred JB1 that it wis closing the investigation, Subsequently, the United
States District Court for the District of Massachisetts unsealed a qui fam False Claims Act complaint, which was served on the Company, The Depatment
of Justior had declined 1o intervene in the gui i Lawsult in August 2009 The Company filed a niotion 1o dismiss, which was graned in pan and dended in
part. Discovery is underway.

I April and Sepiember 20017, Johnson & Johnson recenved subpoenas from ihe United States Anomey for the Diserion of Massachusetis seeking documents
hmd!y redating 1o phamcmueal copayment suppen programs for DARZALEX®, OLYSI10%, REMICADE®, SIMPONI®, STELARA® and ZYTIGA®.
The subp also seek doc redating 1o Average Manulacturer Price and Best Price reparting to the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services
relaied] fo those pruglscts, as well as rebate payments o siate Medicaid agencies, The Company has provided documents in nesponse o ibe subpovenas.

I June 30017, Jobnson & Johnsan received o subpoena from the Unleed Staes Anormey's Office for the Disiren of Massachusens seeking information
reganding practices peraining to the sterilization of DePuy Synthes, Inc.(DefPuy) spinal implanis & theee hospitals in Boston as well as interactions of
emplayes of Company sabsidianies with plasicians anihese bospitals. Johnson & Jahnson and DePay have produced documents in response o the
subpoens and are fully cooperating with the government s meestigation.

I July 2018, the Public Prosecution Service in Rlo de Janeiro amd representatives Tom ihe Brasifan aptirness aoboriyy CADE inspected the offices of
maore than 30 companies including Johnson B Johnson do Brasil Inddsiria e Comércio de Produtos para Sadde Lida, The authorities appear o be
Investigating allegations of possible anti-com petitive befavior and possible improper payments in the medical device indusiry. The Company continues o
respoid o inguiries reganding the Foreign Cormupt Practbees Act from dhe United S1aces Department of Justice amd the Unbied Swaves Securities and
Exchange Commission,

From tieme i tme, the Company has recelved requests from a varely of United Swates Congressional Comminess o prodace infomation relevant o
ongning congressional inguiries. 10 is the policy of lohnson & Jolnson o cooperase with these inguiries by producing the requested information.

GENERAL LITIGATION

T March and April 2015, over 30 putative dass acticn complaints wene [Bed by coigact lens patbents in a number of coans around the United Seates. agaknst
Johnson & Jabnson Vislon Care, Inc. (JJVCI) and other contsct lens manalocourers, distribusons, and retallers, alleging ventical and horicomal consplracies
tor Tix the retall prices of comact lenses. The complaints allege that the manufaciarers reached agreements with each other and cenain distibaors and
retallers conceming the prices ab which some comact lenses could be sobd to consumers, The plaintiffs are seeking damages aml injunciive relief, All of the
class action cases were transferred o ibe Unbted States Dismict Courn for the Middle District of Florkda in June 2015, The plaimiffs filed a consalidated
class actlon comgilain in Movember 20105, Discovery and pre-iral mistion practice are complete, Trial i scheduled o begin in March 2022,

Beglnning in Sepiember 2017, multiple parported class actions were filed on behalf of imdirect purchasers of REMICADE® agalnss Johnson & fohnson and

Janssen Biotech, Inc, (collectively, lanssen) alleging that Lanssen has violated federal antiomst laws through s contracting strategles for REMICADE®Y,
The cases were consolidated for pre-trial purposes as In re
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REMICADE" Aritrurst Litigarion in United States District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsvlvania, The consolidated complaim seeks damages and
injumctive relief. Discovery is ongoing.

T Jume 2008, Walgreen Co. and Kroger Co, filed an antivus complaing againsa Johmson & Sobison and Janssen Biotech, Inc, (collectively, Janssen) inihe
United Saares District Coun for the Eastem Disirict of Pennsylvania, The complaim allepes thin Janssen has violawed federal amioos laws thnough bis
contracting soalegies for REMICALE®. The complaim seeks damages and infunctive relief. In March 2019, summary judgment was gramed in favor ol
Janssen. In February 2020, thie Unbted States Count of Appeals for the Third Clrcult reversed the Disiriot Coun’s decision. This matter was setiled In
January 2022,

I Juive 2019, the United S10ves Federal Trade Commission (FTC) ssuwed a Civil lavestigative Demand 1o Mehnson & Johnsen in connection with is
investigation of whether Fanssen’s REMICADE"® contracting practces vialae lederal amitruss Liws, The Company has produced documents and
Infarmation responsive 1o the Clvil Invesdgative Demand.

I Crctbeer 2007, certain United States servioe members and their families brought a complaing againse a number of pharmacewtical and medical devices
companies, including Johnson B kehnson and certain of its subsidiaries in United States District Coant for the Disirict of Columbia, slleging that the
defendams violated the United Sates Ami-Termorism Act. The complaint alleges ihai the defendants provided funding for terrorist organizations through
their sales practices pursuani (o pharmaceutical and medical device contracts with the lragi Minisery of Healih. In July 2020, the District Court dismissed
the complaim, In Jamuary 2022, the Unieed Stases Court of Appeals for the Diserict of Columbia Circult reversed the Districy Counts docision,

In Crotober 2008, vwo separate putative class acbons were filed against Actelion Pharmacentical Lid,, Actelion Pharmaoruticals LS, Inc., and Actelion
Climical Research, Inc. {oollectively Actelion) in United Stmes Disrict Coun for the District of Marylasd and Unied Swaies Distriet Court for the Diserier
of Columbia, The complaings allege that Actelion vialated sinte amd federal amtimust and wn fair competition s by allegedly refusing o supply generic
phammaceutical manulsciurers with samples of TRACLEER®. TRACLEER" ix subject 1o o Risk Evalustion and Mitigation Sirategy requined by the Food
anid Drag Administration, which imposes restrictions on distribution of the product. In Janoary 2019, the plaintlfis dismissed the Distrial of Columbla case
amvl filed @ consodidated complaing in ke United Staies District Count for the Distrion of Maryland, In October 2009, the Coun granted Acielion's motion t
dismiss the amended complaint. In April 2021, the United Swtes Court of Appeals for the Founh Clreuit reversed and remunded. Discovery is ongaing,

In December 2058, Janssen Blotech, Inc., Janssen Oncology, Inc, Janssen Research & Development, LLEC, and lohnson & Johnsen (collectively, Janssen)
were served with a gud fem complaing fled on behall of the Unitied Staies, 28 states, amd the District of Colambia, The complaing, which was liled in
December 2007 in Uniled States Disirict Court for the Norbem District of California, alleges st Jomssen violoted the federal False Claims Act and siae
law when providing pricing infermation for 2 TIGA™ 10 the govermment in connecton with direct govemment sales and govemnmen-funded dug
reimbursement programs. At this time, the federal amd state govemments have declined 1o intervene. The case has been transfermed s United States Districl
Coun for the District of New Jersey. Janssen's motion 1o dismiss was denied in December 2021,

In May 2019, a class action amtitnest complaint was filed against Janssen R&D Irefland (Janssen) and Johmsom & Johnson in the United Siases District Coant
fior the Nonhern Distrion of California. The complain alleges thar Janssen violaed federal and siare anitnis: and consumer protection laws by agrecing o
exclusivity provisions in s agreements with Gilead conceming the development and marketing of combination antiretroviral therapies [cART) o treat
HIV. The complaint also alleges that Gilead enered into similar agreements with Bristol-Myers Squibb and Lapan Tobacoo, In March 2030, the Court
granted in part and denied in part defendants’ motions o dismiss. Plaintiffs filed an amended complain in April 2020, Defendanis moved to dismiss the
amended complalng. In Jily 2030, the Coun gramed in part and denied in part the renewed motion 1o dismiss, 1n December 2021, several insurance
companies and other payers filed individual “0pt-0w™ complaints containing albegations similar @ the oviginal complaint. Discoveny is ongoing,

In October 2019, Innovative Health, LLC liled a complain against Biosense \Webster, Inc. (BWI) in tbe Unitsd Staves Diserict Court for the Middle Diswict
ol Califomia. The complaint alleges that cemain of BwW1's business practices and contractual terms violate the antitrust lows of the United States and the
State of Califomia by resiricting competition in the sale of High Densiiy Mapping Catbeters and Ulimasoumd Cathetens, In Jamary 2020, BW] filed a
muthon t dbsmiss the complalst. n August 2020, the Court graneed (o pan and denbied n pan BWs motlon io dismiss, In December 2021, B Tiled a
mitkon for summary judgment. The irlal i set for April 2022,

In Movember 2019, Johnson & Fohrson received a demand lor indemnification from Phizer Inc., pursiant to the 2006 Seock and Asset Purchase Agreemeni
between the Company and Plizer, Alsa in Mevember 2009, Johnson & Johnson Inc. received a demand for indemnification from Sanodfi Consumer Health,

Irne,, puarssant e the 2006 Asset Parchase Agreement hetween JTohnson & Jahnson Inc, and Sanafi. In Lanuary 3020, Iohnson & Johnson mecelved a demand
for indemnification from
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Bochringer Ingelheim Phammaceuticals, Inc., pursuant 1o the 2006 Asset Purchase Agreement among the Company, Plizer, and Bochringer Ingelheim. The
notices seek Indemnification for legal claims related o over-dhe-coumer ZANTAC® {ranitidine) procucs. Plainifts in the undedying actions allege that
ZANTAC® and ather over-the-counier ranitidiee medications contain wnsafe levels of NDMA (N-nitosodimethylamine) and can cause andior have caused
variows cancers in patienis using the producis, and seck injunctive and monetary relief.

In October 2020, Forts Advisors LLC (Faris), in i capacity o8 mpresenttive of the former stockbolders of Auris Health Inc_ {Auris), (iled a complaint
agalns Jofinson & Johnson, Ethicon Inc., and cemain named officers and emplovees (collectively, Ethioon) in the Coun of Chancery of the Siate of
Deelaware, The complaint alleges breach of cantract, fraud, and other Causes of aciion agains Ethicon in connection with Ethicon®s acuisition af Auwris in
20014, The complaing seeks damages and sther reliel. In December 2021, the Coun graneed In pan and densed in pan defendants’ motion (o dismiss certain
causes of action, All claims agains the individual defendams wene dismissed,

Beginning in May 2021, multiple putative cliss actions were filed in state asd federal courts (Califomia, Flonida, New York, and New Jersey) against
variow Johnson & Jobnson entities alleging violations of state consumer fraud statutes based on nondisclesure of alleged benzene contamination of cerain
MNeutrogena and Aveeno sunscreen products and the affirmative promoton of those produces as “safe®; and, in a1 leasi one case, alleging a sirict labilicy
mamitfacaring defect and Lailure 10 warn claims, assening that the named plaing {Ts suffered unspecified injuries a5 a result of alleged exposune 1o beneene.
The Julicial Panel oo Mulii-District Litigation has consolidated all pending actions, except one product Liability case and one case pending in New Jersey
state cout, in thie Lindted States Districs Coont for the Soathern Disirict of Florida, Fon Lasderdale Division, In October 2021, the Company eached an
agreement in principle for the sedement of a natlonwide class, encompassing the claims of the consolidated actions, subject ws approval by the Flarkda
federal Court. In December 2021, plaintiffs in the consalidaed sctions filed o motion for prelinsinary approval of a nationwide class senlemsent.

Johnson & Jobnson (subsequently substiumied by Bohmson & Johnsen Consumer Dsc, (U] alongg with mone than 120 other compankes, (s a defenbn na
cost recovery and conribution action broughe by Occkdental Chemical Corporation in June 2018 in the Unied States Disorico Coun for the Distric of MNew
Jersey, related to the clean-ap of a section of the Lower Pesaic River in New Jersey,

Johnson & Jobnson or |1s subsidiares are also panles to a number of proceedings brought under the Comprebensive Envirenmenial Response,

Coimpeniation, and Liability Act, commanly known as Superfuiid, and conparable sate, bocal ar foreign lws in which the primary relief sought is the cast
ol past angl'or future remediation,
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0. Restruciuring

In the fiscal second quaner of 2018, the Campany announced plans o implement o series of actbons across its Global Supply Chain that are imeded o
focus resources aind inoresse iovesments in the oitlcal capabilities, vechmologies and solutions necessany o manuifacture and suppdy s product por felio,
enhance agiliny and drive growth, The Global Supply Chaln actons include expanding the use of sirmegic collaboratons and bolsiering inliatives w reduce
complexity, improve cost-competitiveness, enhance capabilities and aptimize the Supply Chain network. In fiscal year 2021, the Company recorded a pre-
tax charge of 0.5 billion, which ks Included on the following lines of the Consolldated Statement of Eamings, $0.3 billion in restnacuring, $0.1 billion in
oaher (income) expense and $0.1 billlon in cost of produois sold. Todal prapea costs of approximately $1.8 billion have been recorded since the
restuciuring was announced. See the following table for addidonal deails on the restructuring program.

In tonl, the Company expecs the Glohal Supply Chain actions i geserate approximately $0.6 hillion to $0.8 hilliea i anial pre-as eod savings thae
will be substantiolly delivered by the eod of 2022, The program ks set to be completed a1 the end of 2022, The Company expects 1o recond pre-tax

restruciuring charges al appraximately 52.1 billion to $2.3 hillion, over the 4 to 5 vear period of this acivity. These costs are asocisted with netwark
opuimizations, exit costs and sccelerated deprectaien and amoatizanion,

The following table summarizes. the severance charges and the associated spemding under these indtatives through the fiscal year ended R021:

{Dllars i Milliva) Severance Assel Write-offsSales Orher'! Total
Reserve balance, December 2, 2019 £ 164 — 15 E]
200 activity (29) - (4] (36)
Reserve balance, January 3, 2021 135 - 9 144
Curment year activity:

Clares — 53 420 473

Cash senlements (23 (A0} (427)

Settbed non cash - (53} (53}
Reserve balance, lanuary 3, 20220 % 12 - 5 137

I"Cnh{-ul!n: for deverance s expecitd (0 be substantially paid ol over the ned year b0 accandance will the Comgany's plans and local linss,
13 e b bacdes: project expense usch as salanies for employees supporting these |ndiatives. and consahing expenses.

The Compaity cominuisly reevaluabes is siverance reserves related o resticiugiing and ihe timing of payments. due w ihe planied release of ssoclates.
reganding several longer-ierm projects. The Company believes that the existing severance reserves are sullicsent to cover the Global Supply Chain plans

glven the perlod over which the actions will rake place. The Company will comtinue to assess and make adjusiments &5 necessary if additional amourts
beecoeme probable and estimable.
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Management’s Report on Intermal Control Over Finandial Reporting

Under Sectian 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxdey Act of 2002, managensent i requined o sssess the effeaiveness of the Company's inemal eontrol aver financial
repunting as of the el of esch lscal year amd repom, based an that assessment, whether the Compaiy s isermal comtrol over Ginancial reponing s effective.

Management of the Company |s responsibbe for esiablishing and maimaining adequare incernal control over financlal reponing. The Company's
intemal control aver finamcial reponing ks designed o provide reasonable assurance as 1o the reliability of the Company's fimancial reporting and the
preparatton of extemal fimancial statements (n accordance with generally accepued accoanting principles.

Intemnal controls over financlal reporting. no mateer how well destgned, have inherent limiations. Therelore, internal controd over financial reponing
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect o flnanclal stiatement preparation and may not prevent or detect all
missiatements, Moreover, projections of any evaluation of effectlveness to fubire periods are subject to the risk that controds may become inadequane
because af changes In conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the pedicies or procedures may deleriorae.

The Company®s management his assessed the effectiveness of the Company®s internal comtrol over financlal reponing as of Jansary 2, 2022, In
making this assessmeny, the Company used the crivera established by the Commitbee of Sporsaring Organdzations of the Treadway Commission (CO50) in
“Imemnal Controd-Integrated Framework (201 3)." These oriteria are in the areas of contrel envirenmeni, risk assessment, control activities, information and
communication, and monitoring. The Company's assessment included extensive documenting, svaluating and eesting the design and operating efectiveness
of its intermal controds ever fimncial reporting.

Based on the Company's processes and assessmeni, as described above, management has concluded ihat, as of Jansary 2, 2022, the Company's
Intemal control aver financlal reponing was efective,

The effectivensss of the Company's intemal control over financial repoating as of January 2, 2022 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLF,
an Independent registened public accounting firm, as stated in their repon, which appeass berein,

& J, Duso s/ Joseph ). Wolk

Joaquin Duat Jeseph 1. Wk

Threceor Executive Wice Presidem, Chief Financial Officer
Chief Executive Dificer
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ANDS (JAMP Pharma Corporation)
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INVEGA SUSTENNA
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( )
2020 10 2021 10
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IMBRUVICA
2019 (Pharmacyclics LLC)(
) (Janssen Biotech, Inc.)( JBI )
7,514,444 8,003,309 8,476,284 8,497,277 8,697,711 8,753,403
8,754,090 8,754,001 8,952,015 8,957,079 9,181,257 9,296,753 9,655,857
9,725,455 10,010,507 10,106,548 10,125,140 IMBRUVICA
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2021 11 (Janssen Products, L.P.)
(Janssen Sciences lreland Unlimited Company)(
) (Gilead Sciences, Inc.)
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Sciences Private Ltd.) (MSN Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)(
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(Elan Pharmaceutical Research Corp.) / /
(d/b/a Nanosystems) (Elan Pharma International
Limited) 1999
(Alkermes Pharma lIreland Limited)
(Elan Drug Delivery, Inc.)
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Johnson & Johnson

Opinions on the Financial Satements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Johnson & Johnson and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, of
comprehensive income, of equity and of cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 2, 2022,
including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financial statements’). We also have audited the
Company'sinternal control over financial reporting as of January 2, 2022, based on criteria established in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for each of the three fiscal yearsin the period ended January 2, 2022 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in al material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 2, 2022, based on criteria established in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Basisfor Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on the Company’ s consolidated financial statements and on the Company's internal control over
financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective interna control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financia statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosuresin the consolidated financia statements. Our audits aso included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. Our audit of internal control over financia reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for
our opinions.
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Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and proceduresthat (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of itsinherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated
financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relate to
accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especially
challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as awhole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit
matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they
relate.

U.S Pharmaceutical Rebate Reserves — Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid

As described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company recognizes revenue from product sales
when obligations under the terms of a contract with the customer are satisfied. Rebates and discounts provided to
customers are accounted for as variable consideration and recorded as a reduction in sales. The liability for such rebates
and discounts is recognized within Accrued Rebates, Returns, and Promotions on the consolidated balance sheet. A
significant portion of the liability related to rebates is from the sale of pharmaceutical goods within the U.S., primarily
the Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid programs, which amounted to $7.7 billion as of January 2, 2022. For
significant rebate programs, which include the U.S. Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid rebate programs, rebates and
discounts estimated by management are based on contractual terms, historical experience, patient outcomes, trend
analysis, and projected market conditions in the U.S. pharmaceutical market.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to U.S. pharmaceutical rebate
reserves - Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid isacritical audit matter are the significant judgment by management
due to the significant measurement uncertainty involved in devel oping these reserves and the high degree of auditor
judgment, subjectivity and audit effort in performing procedures and evaluating the assumptions related to contractual
terms, historical experience, patient outcomes, trend analysis, and projected market conditions in the U.S. pharmaceutical
market.
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Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our

overal opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls

relating to U.S. pharmaceutical rebate reserves - Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid, including controls over the

assumptions used to estimate these rebates. These procedures also included, among others, (i) developing an independent

estimate of the rebates by utilizing third party information on price and market conditionsin the U.S. pharmaceutical

market, the terms of the specific rebate programs, and the historical experience and trend analysis of actual rebate claims

paid; (ii) testing rebate claims processed by the Company, including evaluating those claims for consistency with the

contractual and mandated terms of the Company’ s rebate arrangements; and (iii) comparing the independent estimates to

management’s estimates.

Litigation Contingencies — Talc

As described in Notes 1 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company records accruals for loss
contingencies associated with legal matters, including talc, when it is probable that aliability will be incurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. To the extent adverse awards, judgments, or verdicts have been rendered
against the Company, management does not record an accrual until alossis determined to be probable and can be
reasonably estimated. For these matters, management is unable to estimate the possible loss or range of loss beyond the
amounts accrued. Amounts accrued for legal contingencies often result from a complex series of judgments about future
events and uncertainties that rely heavily on estimates and assumptions including timing of related payments. The ability
to make such estimates and judgments can be affected by various factors, including, anong other things, whether
damages sought in the proceedings are unsubstantiated or indeterminate; scientific and legal discovery has not
commenced or is not complete; proceedings arein early stages; matters present legal uncertainties; there are significant
factsin dispute; procedural or jurisdictional issues; the uncertainty and unpredictability of the number of potential claims;
ability to achieve comprehensive multi-party settlements; complexity of related cross-claims and counterclaims; and/or
there are numerous parties involved. Management continues to believe that the Company has strong legal grounds to
contest the talc verdicts it has appeal ed. Notwithstanding management’s confidence in the safety of the Company’s talc
products, in certain circumstances the Company has settled cases. In October 2021, Johnson & Johnson Consumer Inc.
(Old JJCI), awholly-owned subsidiary of Johnson & Johnson, implemented a corporate restructuring and created a
subsidiary, LTL Management LLC (LTL), which became solely responsible for the talc-related liabilities, and another
subsidiary, New JJCI, which became responsible for the remaining business of Old JJCI. LTL filed avoluntary petition,
seeking relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. As aresult of the LTL bankruptcy case, the Court entered a
temporary restraining order staying all litigation against LTL and Old JJCI. On November 15, 2021, the North Carolina
Bankruptcy Court confirmed the scope of the stay, issuing a Preliminary Injunction (PI) prohibiting and enjoining the
commencement and prosecution of talc-related claims against LTL, Old JICI, New JJCI, Johnson & Johnson, other of
their corporate affiliates, identified retailers, insurance companies, and certain other parties. Claimants have filed a
motion to dismissthe LTL bankruptcy case. The court commenced a hearing on February 14, 2022 regarding the motion
to dismiss and on whether the PI should be extended. The Company has agreed to provide funding to LTL for the
payment of amounts the Bankruptcy Court determines are owed by LTL through the establishment of a $2 hillion trust in
furtherance of this purpose. The Company has established areserve for approximately $2 billion in connection with the
aforementioned trust. The parties have not yet been able to reach aresolution of all matters related to talc, and while
certain amounts under various scenarios have recently been referred to in testimony as part of the LTL bankruptcy
proceedings, the Company is unable to estimate the possible loss or range of loss beyond the amount accrued.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the talc litigation is a critical
audit matter are the significant judgment by management when assessing the likelihood of aloss being incurred and
when determining whether a reasonable estimate of the loss or range of loss for the future and existing talc claims can be
made, which in turn led to a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity and effort in performing procedures and
evaluating management’s assessment of the loss contingencies associated with thislitigation.
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Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our

overal opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls
relating to management’s evaluation of the talc litigation, including controls over determining whether alossis probable
and whether the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated, as well asfinancial statement disclosures. These procedures
also included, among others, (i) gaining an understanding of the Company’s process around the accounting and reporting
for the talc litigation; (i) discussing the status of significant known actual and potential litigation and the ongoing L TL
bankruptcy proceedings with the Company’s in-house legal counsel, as well as external counsel when deemed necessary;
(iii) obtaining and evaluating the letters of audit inquiry with internal and external legal counsel for significant litigation;
(iv) evaluating the reasonableness of management’s assessment regarding whether an unfavorable outcome is reasonably
possible or probable and reasonably estimable; and (v) evaluating the sufficiency of the Company’s litigation
contingencies disclosures.

Litigation — Opioids

As described in Notes 1 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company records accruals for loss
contingencies associated with legal matters, including opioids, when it is probable that aliability will be incurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. To the extent adverse awards, judgments, or verdicts have been rendered
against the Company, management does not record an accrual until alossis determined to be probable and can be
reasonably estimated. For these matters, management is unable to estimate the possible loss or range of loss beyond the
amounts accrued. Amounts accrued for legal contingencies often result from a complex series of judgments about future
events and uncertainties that rely heavily on estimates and assumptions including timing of related payments. The ability
to make such estimates and judgments can be affected by various factors, including, among other things, whether
damages sought in the proceedings are unsubstantiated or indeterminate; matters present legal uncertainties; there are
significant facts in dispute; procedural or jurisdictional issues; the uncertainty and unpredictability of the number of
potential claims; ability to achieve comprehensive multi-party settlements; complexity of related cross-claims and
counterclaims; and/or there are numerous parties involved. The Company has been named in numerous lawsuits brought
by certain state and local governments, including tribal governments, related to opioids matters. In October 2019, the
Company announced a proposed agreement in principle that would include the Company paying $4 billion as settlement
of the matters. In October 2020, the Company agreed to contribute up to an additional $1 billion to an all-in settlement
amount that would resolve opioid lawsuits filed and future claims by states, cities, counties and tribal governments, for a
total of $5 billion. In July 2021, the Company announced that the terms of the agreement to settle the state and
subdivision claims have been finalized, depending upon the level of participation by the various parties. The terms
provide a period of time for statesto elect to participate in the agreement and, thereafter, a period for the subdivisions of
the participating states to opt-in. The subdivision opt-in period expired in January 2022. The Company retains the right to
opt-out of the agreement until late February 2022 if, in its sole discretion, there isinsufficient participation.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the opioidslitigation is a
critical audit matter are the significant judgment by management when determining whether a reasonabl e estimate of the
range of loss for the agreement to settle the opioids litigation can be made, which in turn led to a high degree of auditor
judgment, subjectivity and effort in performing procedures and evaluating management’ s assessment of the loss
contingencies associated with this litigation.
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Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our

overal opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls
relating to management’s evaluation of the opioid litigation, including controls over determining whether alossis
probable and whether the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated, as well asfinancial statement disclosures. These
procedures also included, among others, (i) gaining an understanding of the Company’s process around the accounting
and reporting for the opioids litigation; (ii) discussing the status of significant known actual and potential litigation and
ongoing settlement negotiations with the Company’s in-house legal counsel, as well as external counsel when deemed
necessary; (iii) obtaining and evaluating the letters of audit inquiry with internal and external legal counsel for significant
litigation; (iv) evaluating the reasonabl eness of management’ s assessment regarding whether an unfavorable outcomeis
reasonably possible or probable and reasonably estimable; and (v) evaluating the sufficiency of the Company’s litigation
contingencies disclosures.

/< PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Florham Park, New Jersey
February 17, 2022

We have served as the Company’s auditor since at least 1920. We have not been able to determine the specific year we
began serving as auditor of the Company.
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